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Railway Bridge at Prayagraj, across river Ganga is operational from
12 Dec 2024 and extensively used during Mahakumbh 2025.
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5% TR-FEiaa dsfiea fes=n @) 0.16 0.16
@ feammaratedffEw
99 FeR (31 HTE 2024: 99 FeR) JTSHIATSHIATE NSHa Tl Hed AT

1+8-2026 92.49 87.79

et fraw 3179.16 3,174.47
A TEah Hod

mﬁéﬂ - -

mﬁéﬂ 3179.16 3,174.47

Iga Tarett 1 et TR o T & L

* R T U HehiHehel Soiiad folfies (ifiunster) 7t Soy Ug shoHt fefiee, s wia it san oo fafres
(SfsfIurTeT) St et werres shafat off, oo o s7ef| &)

6 TATAR STeT (FTERTer)
31| 2025 T 31 HT=r 2024

AT A

EeiehTiefsh SATIR ST, 3<% W SITd & 1,108.42 1,108.42

TS TieTe YT & foIw o) (1,108.42) (1,108.42)

EReic)

ST H{HT =T 3,340.51 3,263.01
3,340.51 3,263.01

H2TT: TieTe YT o foTw sim (1,352.90) (919.72)

et SATIR aeY 1,987.61 2,343.28
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1o serde gl UUs Sil1a doIcaglol

O O O\

@Uoil fcifdics

et fertr ferarott ot feeaT

6

@t IR ARSI ARG o, IR 2T F FET A-TAT Ifoct Rad il BIghT)

SITAR AT (STHT)

SUTUR U 1A THTST
=

CWr-N

AT st 37 fafer & Fefafaa srafeat o fog s

feramor

T

IEcES
HrTg
LUEL

<6

wE

6HTE-1 99

1-2
aret

2-3
aret

> 3 |t

D

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

31 6T 2025 dh
fafdare samom e - I g

ST ®
ffdiame s e - e =
i & Sechata gfg gt &

fafdfere samam g - =T e

forenfea samam 9T - T A

ST e
foranfeq samam e - fo9 swor

Sifaw # IeoreH gfg Bt 2
foranfed samaw e - swor exfa

662.52

145.71

489.59

1,001.17

200.34

841.18

1,108.42

3,340.51

1,108.42

TETT: STUTETd SwOT B 37T
T g gHTESH

(2,461.32)

<hel

D

-1 1,987.61

vi)

31 9T 2024 9
fafdeme SR o - T g

EIcIE
fafdare =R e - 59 swor

Sifem & SeeteH1a Jig gl 8
ffdiare g gre - w07 erfa

Torenfea samaR yTw - =W AT
ST

feranfea s yre - S w7
S & Secha1a gfg gt &
feranfea samam wTe - =Rt arfa

2,162.46

147.92

111.44

42.99

798.20

1,108.42

3,263.01

1,108.42

TETU: STUTET SROT BT 37T
Ty Yo gHTESH

(2,028.14)

<hetl

D

-1 2,343.28
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e Serde dof UUs Sig doIcadlel dudil ferfdcs 2\
et ot ferawoT &t e
@t TR AR U AT |, I 22T F Wt AT e iad &l BIge?)

A

7 o= forfia wuta &
9
31 WTRI 2025 KT 31 WT=N 2024 i g
R Taq=
ofh 3 ST TIRT frereht aftaeraraT Stafer gor oot <h fofer & weh o & 31fereh & 213.92 591.00
o) %
LT SH1/STAE!/3T=T ST 4,679.05 4,920.06
T wferer ST o forg s (53.15) (53.15)
4,839.82 5,457.91
ERpic
/T R FAW
HETTeh Shu a1 3T 31 i fIT 7T 0T O T TR hT I SH07 6,796.31 6,796.31
T YT (207.25) (138.16)
e ohT ST 6,589.06 6,658.15
= AW 1,034.10 1,079.22
111.11 145.46
ITe/3ATI AT
YT HYTT sl /0T T 34,006.55 34,006.55
e, ST SfiT |Tay ST O SAfSd SIS 745.45 625.96
AT
LT SHT/STAS/3T=T ST 1,171.10 1,262.31
TS TieTer ST o fofT wi=r (77.76) (8.44)
I — =T - 0.04
43,579.61 43,769.24

I B e




B3]

S I%ﬁ' AN (g AN LJ Ia_ L O N N\
Temtort o Terawom =t fewan
(@it T AR SU T o, R 32T o FET AT IfecTRad hl BIgeT)
a
g
- 8 i e ity g
31 W= 2025 T 31 HT=I 2024 T
AT o afEaf
- forefter ufta et ux srafara swor =1l 591.94 506.54
% - SHHERT AT o g ST 108.96 118.17
FA 700.90 624.71
SATEA T T 37T
- 7 AR g 28.79 23.13
- gfanifera amTd W ferdter afwataat (9.87) (8.70)
AT R o, 95 719.82 639.15
9 WSR
31 W= 2025 T 31 HT=I 2024 T
eIl AT 595.05 669.76
T, TR A1EH ST 3T aq 16.90 23.74
FIH SN 15.44 12.82
T JTFE (66.64) (54.65)
faef st 2,242.10 3,201.84
ERUEL 2,802.85 3,853.50
10 ehe 3R Tehe o THE
31 W= 2025 T 31 AT 2024 T
ST % qTE W:
B IGREIGIRY 324.29 229.65
- < TR @ 3 3 e TR STafy e ST T 6 4,864.34 2,048.19
EETAIDR: 2.17 2.57
el THAT AR TR TR 5,190.80 2,280.41

3T ook o Y& H TSV o &9 § Fafed smwm ufyme 2,335.81 g
T (31 | 2024, 139.15 G T IM(HA &




BE=Ed

1(_(\;5'\_ AY aa(_‘ N\ LJ Ia_ LJ O N O\ S
TCWTUTT Ta= TIauTT <Rt T8& T
11 3T & S (@t UivrEt TRE T 503 7R H, IR 32T F WET 79T Ifeciiad ol BIgH)
31 |T= 2025 Y 31 |T=H 2024 T 9
ST 3 T & e B T e Srafey el aat s i 14,159.13 14,286.70 | =
T 31 forfer ufufct & siarta yenfed S o s afsr foreht (213.92) (591.00) E
aftaeardT e 12 7EH & Il ®
FHe I Ak I 13,945.21 13,695.70 %
+ZHH Sk o Y& | TRUITTYRR & &9 H Fafga sy Uiyt 4,831.42 /g
9 (31 AT 2024, 6,924.87 AT T9) IMIHA B
12 AU & AU
31 | 2025 T 31 WT=F 2024 T
FAU L IREAfTET (T % 91E 3[E) - 456.29
- 456.29
13 3 qaHE uREa Tt
31 | 2025 T 31 |TE 2024 Y
Seadt @ - (379e) - "t 727.22 960.27
ST LR 3T JLT(eh TR & a1 9 22.22 22.22
749.44 982.49
arerer ufterufrat (i e s HEe o ) 5,495.62 -
6,245.06 982.49
4 % T AT gREdtar § gRad e §:-
Terawor 31 | 2025 T 31 WT=F 2024 T
fraifén srafer sht grestra o srgate afwafoar - -
STIS: ST o R STgee g afEdT 5,495.62 -
FRTS: ST T o &9 § H=2rclT ITH - -
TS STgater wivefr @ ST o T - -
feaifén srafer o 37 o sigerer et 5,495.62 -




B3| RPN

N EBWWWWWQIHWW
Tematort e ferawont = e
@it vt TR TU AT ®, YR 22T F WET AT SfeetRad hl Big?)
14 VR OS
31 | 2025 T 31 AT 2024 T
ATErRA AT AT
Wﬁmq@ﬁ
34,81,000 (31 AT 2024: 34,81,000) TR S, T 1000/- TR 34,810.00 34,810.00
SR Ira g
zﬁaﬁwm
12,08,605 (31 T 2024: 12,08,605) SR T, Tedieh 1000/- T 12,086.05 12,086.05
ATE TR quid: Tehar e aeit
zﬁaﬁsﬁmwﬁ
12,08,605 (31 T 2024: 12,08,605) SRt S, Fedieh 1000/- T 12,086.05 12,086.05
12,086.05 12,086.05
() Tt od o T R 2id W ThTAT IERT T THTLT
- 31 W= 2025 T 31 W= 2024 T
Siorardt SRl AT HEAT  STraret IIERl Al wEaT
e i J[ETTT H IeHT 12,08,605 12,08,605
e 3 e ST . ]
Y o 37§ IHT 12,08,605 12,08,605
(@) et It & St vt/ SAfereR

et 35 St STeRT BT E 71000 TR SR 2 e 3T ST S S ST U A 35 AR 1 st wred
T3 B T S ST T et ¥1 Fereh deet g SETfer cnier (i e B Sigeht) aifies S Saehi §
TR o STIATEA o STef 21 ST oh qieemTo i feafa #, sfmet Srmeames at stfmm= afywt 3 oo % o,
maﬁmmmw%wﬁﬁl 7 foreoT Srererrent gRT efia 3t St Y Ee o STaTd & grm|

() B ar sifam gifesT dhuet & daty & SraraTiar ted
SHUT o UTH SIS BieeT ShUHT AT A Bl ShoHT e 2l

(ST) BT | 5% A 3TFereh IR W JTel YRR T farawor

31 W= 2025 T 31 AT 2024 T

Terawor aTiia sferdt SRR it et Sterardt ol <Y
e e
I o Tegufd 3T 3k BTG TeeT 12,08,605 12,08,605
12,08,605 12,08,605
(%) T o1 T A e e ot forsh ferfraen o forg forshedt ST stgstell/sfaargaratl & dad ST sl o forg ah1g |emor
IR STRfera Tt fohe e 2

() S¥Ae Ug FHut feAfies (‘shieiuer), sF Wes ol fafies (‘sivadiuer), YRa s Ug aresd fefieg (‘sfisfidier)
3R sTmefiee fetfiree (emefieer) % weier # sitenfies ofi foxdia wiinfn i (Sremdumemm) s wherd goi et
AT o afoTEeET i sfowied, stetuer ot stefis & wee § S0 o s i sfeadt e oS ot e
Ts=r o uftafdd s 6 STgaf 3 % g foiar qiad o fofg WRd §TehR o STTHIGH o STTER0T H SR IRIh TR
o ToT faIRT 1T Hrefstier wufer Sere forvT o st o forem s gU, ST o 28 35, 2017 1 YR 6 WA

HECEARIRI NN Ca|
() I ok SR T ETT STeraret/TTemT=r SR 7 ufter-ir whig sfafar ST = i 8 2
(ST) T 3 2T St 3 Pl oft Frereh o aTfRreer g 1S oft B rehra A 2



e RPN B2
Ea&azaammmmmm AN

Teoatorat fermta oo =6t ewar
@t TR AR U AT |, I 22T F Wt AT e iad &l BIge?)

)
15 o= gferret E
31 AT 2025 &Y 31 |7 2024 Y &
st srrferd 0.06 0.06
W s 1,473.65 1,473.65
Tesier T frord 78.66 91.16
e TS 12,739.17 10,079.66 %
14,291.54 11,644.53
@) Ui SR
picas 0.06 0.06
ELEnERtCE) - -
ST 0.06 0.06
@ " g
TR ST 1,473.65 1,473.65
e a3 S T - -
ELIRL 1,473.65 1,473.65

T Testel St o 9 Tstel 2t & o sforsy ot SRet 3o 8 T TR 3t o foTQ 3T o H1 o 37T 1@ ST 2
@) feaer wrem et

TTfTes ST 91.16 103.66
SIS oY o R TR (12.50) (12.50)
SHT Y 78.66 91.16

* et o shoeft AR 2013 % q@d AR WU % SITER fs=t i qehmE iy & R W fea=r fgrwm e

(SIS ST 9|
@ wfaenfa wars

TR ST 10,079.66 8,181.29
a9 o forw em/(a1f) 3,059.62 2,063.03
I T A - -
ifer e (412.61) (177.17)
ST AT T - -
e Teer=r e foid & Tmiaia 12.50 12.50
T T STRfard ffer o werTaror - -
ELIRL 12,739.17 10,079.66
FHel I gTorrer 14,291.54 11,644.53

I ]



B

TET AT Ta 1 TIauTt <Rt T8 T
@t IR ARSI ARG o, IR 2T F FET A-TAT Ifoct Rad il BIghT)
16 SUR
31 HT=H 2025 &Y 31 9T 2024 Y
TR-FAT 39
St Ao
TATEHT HUTIS THI(AS AREY) : 192.11 217.92
FHel IR-AAHH IR 192.11 217.92
FAAT SR
HITT UR T ARG TR K0T
- ST Sh U TGS ** - -
TR TTehT T 3T 3RUT 37T 31T 6,589.00 6,589.00
FHel T IUR 6,589.00 6,589.00
* GETEAT fSeer 99T (FSaRE) |
TR SR ZT 2005 H & 12 si2reie a1 U S shgam shai fAfiee (BBU) o a1 qatiad shi Teliehd ATSHT o HATETL, HRd
TTHR F 3.88 HUS TIF o K0T bl 3(dadl H Ut i, YA TR o 10.00 FE 9 o K0T YT SH1AT SATST ol Sidarel §
itarfld s ST AT T o 10.00 IS T o K0T T AT SATSH b I &L fSsi= (SISHATEY) H uitarfeid it oht 3rafa
&1 TT5) 39 ASHT o T8, T 2007-08 H 0.50 IS FRI hT GHIT AT fohedl H I T FSaiart (SISHEST) T A F Tl
2 3fIT 28 31, 2017 T WTRA o TSUTeT T 3fererd TR SR foh )
% heAT Seh W TGS
HIT S § HTSRGIHE T & & Tieh S e Rl oh sieeh S LA & ST wetie 3 ARfid, wrffer 37 fthae=r 3R arei
Hied ST Hufai o s 3 22, T U, HIAHT - 700020 H 3T 3 RS 3 G Suieh ZI TS &9 & Fierd 2
G T AT & 10.10% Ffer I & ST AT O IHTAT ST HhelT 2
17 9E™=
31 HT=H 2025 Y 31 9T 2024 Y

TR
FHERT AT  foTT Jraem
- Tt 8.15 50.54
- STIHTIT FehahT0T 410.19 391.44

418.34 441.98
AR
FHERT AT % foTT Jraem
- TR 15.90 -
- STIHTIT FehahT0T 25.62 81.26

41.52 81.26




1o serde a6l UUs Sl1g dIcadiol
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dYoll

TCTTUTT eI T TeIaRuTt kT Tt

18

19

@t TR AR U AT |, I 22T F Wt AT e iad &l BIge?)

=T AETAT

R FdaT

Foler ST (Ste3TEl) 1 gvia
T T-FAHT T,

AU

ERIIEER=CADI

fooler T (Sre=TRE) 1 Tviad
TTeehi & AW

T TAUT STt

STUR ATt

R FAH=

IR FaTd

- G&H JEHT TR AT ITAT oh STATAT S TR T Foed ThTAT
- & JEHT TR T I h el b T (e 36 99)

A

IR T

- GEW T SR T IHT o ITATIT S TR T Fed FhT
- GaT ITHT SR T ITHT hT et FhrT TRT (A 36 3E)

31 HT= 2025 &t 31 |T=r 2024 T
48.33 69.94
4,086.95 4,086.95
4,135.28 4,156.89
139.41 130.11
24.19 26.77
262.14 247.23
5,587.34 2,297.03
6,013.08 2,701.14
31 |T=F 2025 Y 31 AT 2024 T
323.96 323.55
323.96 323.55
499.00 501.04
499.00 501.04

v
a
<
(a\}
(=3
N
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1o serde gl UUs Sl1a dIcagiol budil

N O \

et fertr ferarott ot feeaT

@t IR ARSI ARG o, IR 2T F FET A-TAT Ifoct Rad il BIghT)

19
SATAR 39 ST TS STHAT
31 9T 2025 T AT sht e fatar & feferRaa srater o forg s
wH. Forawor T AT AT <199 | 129 | 2390 | >39 | FHA
i) |oHTETHS -
i) | 49435 328.61| 822.96
iii) | fernfea sepmn-THTHTHS -
iv) | ferenfea -1 -
FA - -l 49435 - -l 328.61| 82296
31 W= 2024 Ak AT sht e fatar & et srater o forg s
wA. Forao T FeRTAT N <1od | 128 | 239 | >39 | FA
i) |HeETEg }
i) |3 501.04 323.55| 824.59
iii) | foranfeq semT-uHTETS -
iv) | ferenfed serrn-et= .
FA - -l 501.04 - -l 32355 824.59
20 et o meiat
31 HTH 2025 KT 31 HT= 2024 ST
TR-gaa=
ST 37 G ST 69.89 121.49
69.89 121.49
AT
FHHAN AT 3T 107.15 121.48
AT ThT O SUR o T 3fSid T 2F I 34,016.12 34,016.12
feder s (SrgerEh) w1 gAtieA 50.00 50.00
ST 37 F&T ST 4,060.22 4,181.39
T 0.20 -
38,233.69 38,369.00

21  SAHM & AT
31911 2025 T 31 |T= 2024 i
AT L ST (ST T [3) 90.98 -
90.98 -
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N\

O O O\

1o serde a6l UUs SlR1g dIcaglal d

oot et feramott ot feem

(@t TIRTET TR SO AT W, I 32T T Tl SIAT e Rad hl BIgHy)

22 uftemes 8 aeE
31 WTRI 2025 KT 31 | 2024 T
LT § T 12,710.23 24,859.23
HALsY afEufoEr 5,495.62 -
ST B TR TAE - 21,482.90 T TUF (31 AT 2024, 29,333.89
T FU)
18,205.85 24,859.23
I TR
Ty ot farsht 70.74 151.14
18,276.59 25,010.37
23 A
31 W 2025 T 31 WT=H 2024 T
TS 3T
- Sfes ST FLEIT ST T 1,245.64 962.73
- Tig T 4.69 4.47
= T-a =T 3T 45.18 18.53
ECEIRKLIRIEE] - 21.97
HOf, € ST ITHT T ToTshl 0 AT () 4.67 2.03
Gferer yifer o fete s e foram mn - 41.68
Y STt =T TeRdienor / TH g, 3R Sum . ot Siedt 1.30 13.21
1,301.48 1,064.61
24 IQWRT Y T AT 6T ANTa 31U 20251 31 WT= 2024 &t
el ATl 3T STHITT HTHIRI T THITH i 669.76 892.13
;99 o G THier 466.49 6,117.46
1,136.25 7,009.59
TR e HTT SR ST AT o 3faq L 595.05 669.76
541.20 6,339.83
e T % S 3T = 14.82 109.27
556.02 6,449.10
25  geaell W UiEdy 3R ST WIfd WY 31 W= 2025 KT 31 | 2024 hT
EARRSUIG R
Y shY YT § gl 3,201.84 3,738.62
T4 9N o 37 § gaedt 2,242.10 3,201.84
T ¥ (3fg) / 959.74 536.78
258 3T ATAY TH 3T FUOT THR 31WTEI 20251 31 T 2024
3I9-3hT T 6,055.19 8,579.54
fmToT el = 792.52 2,064.53
TS = 3,031.36 -
9,879.07 10,644.07
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B3]

N

Il_c\;g\._ N\ aaf, A ° Ia_ ° o N\

o

S osw

E

% 26
27
28
29

I [

Toaturat fomttar et BT
@t IR ARSI ARG o, IR 2T F FET A-TAT Ifoct Rad il BIghT)

HER, TAT AR Tt AR hl Tad 31WTei 20251 31 WIS 2024 &t
e, TSIT ST Bt SIS 1 @d 80.79 453.02
80.79 453.02

HUAR AT =T 31 TR 2025 RT 31 AT™ 2024 Y
A, Herelt T S 2,135.37 3,007.82
i T s o= et & e 179.99 270.74
FHHA FHeAToT T 35.61 46.67
2,350.97 3,325.23

forfiar e 31 TR 2025 KT 31 HT=F 2024 <Rt
EEXIERC T M) 50.84 69.29
50.84 69.29

Heagra AR afeie saa 31WTei 2025t 31 AT 2024 i
L 113.53 142.33
AU 5.96 7.38
119.49 149.72

S RCE) 31 TR 2025 KT 31 HT=F 2024 <Rt
formam 6.77 7.14
wfrer 0T, g1t 37 7= & for sy 583.57 89.10
EERIEE] 11.00 15.20
R FoRT T 3o 61.21 81.87
AN TSI ST (1T 42) 30.66 22.07
T TS STUTIT 43.22 32.74
Elti 118.81 50.38
T ST 79.20 178.58
LA T 7273 76.70
GARTH T T [ooh 85.05 93.61
fafoa = 7237 119.27

T qliErehi A (e 34) :

3fee b1 0.80 0.95
I T ek 0.25 0.55
3= 0.35 1.04
T, SATHIT ST et 4.74 5.23
e g wemdt 8.03 12.52
AT (3TTH) 83.40 117.03
e S 3 TRt 3o 2.15 28.83




d 0D N o\ Bdl{’

fc serde a6l UUs Sl1a dIcagiol dbudil 2\
TETTOTT T TIaUTl okl Te&dT
@t TR AR U AT |, I 22T F Wt AT e iad &l BIge?)
forstedt 3fit $em 119.81 349.93 g
SR A 5.24 189.21 =
fapran 108.69 110.20 E
T 3R T
- AT 0.01 0.05
- T SR AR 0.51 1.97 %
-3 4.24 3.31
T3S TATOHT T - 0.25
TEEIAT 37 I 8.22 0.80
a{iegor Yok 12.86 14.50
PIEIRCE] 48.62 49.40
1,572.51 1,652.45
30 T

31 9T 2025 31 6T 2024 T
FAATT TR
FAAT SATIH THR 1,029.68 730.29
MAT shfge amsar
e
Sl Hawet it 3cuftr R Setera ¥ Teifera (80.67) 1.99
AT T BT feramor O wrear ure st s 949.01 732.29

¥ 3 S aArEenTs # forenfia sreqott & wafe srmeurfia

o e foree T 21 BT Yeitispa e fefm Stmam - -
o QU fSfe T 2T =T o qrFaitiichel feham ST - -
HTETSATE T HATTHL THR - ]

T Y T UM ToRY T TR AT o |1 L a9 ot e

TR § T8 TR AT 4,008.63 2,795.32
TG AT 9T JTIR ST T 25.17% T A (31 ATE 2024: 25.17%) 1,008.97 703.58
T I o T ST 3ot o ft 718 et o Waier H WHTEIS oh STqHfd & - -
ST T o Heter H THTIISH (80.67) 1.99
I - -
25.17% 1 TTefl ot & e 928.30 705.58
T 3R BT feramor # fraie ferar e e s 949.01 732.29
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1o serde gl UUs Sl1a dIcagiol budil
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TCUITOTAT T TIaXuTl <Rt 128 T
@t IR ARSI ARG o, IR 2T F FET A-TAT Ifoct Rad il BIghT)
31 TR IAQTHET 3T Ufdagamd
Teramor 31 WT=r 2025 9k | 31 W= 2024 Tk
i) | 3Tl <FaTT;
- Teranfea forshit st @i 88.10 87.89
- feranfea SRt wim 497.28 497.28
- feranfea e @i 154.45 154.45
- Teranfeq diuw mim erdfier & arefiq 54.14 54.14
- Seh TR 6,556.09 5,960.21
- foranfaa areq wel & AT (TRAN | &) - e 12.55 12.55

- SuEdteAR 3aft 3R SATadesTr 2u (a9 2019-20) & st= i@ & HRT

5.15

3% Zheh JAITh, 31.85 IRG T o AT & Heiferd faanfad saret 7T off 2
*2HT BT et ST Ta o ST &, ST | ST 1 § 30T 8¢ &, S o STferenTiet o wwer JehauerTsit
3R F Sfeafaa amer wfirer €1 stffiaant o sl sreTd, ariami ar St g, St st A &, @ i fafie
AT TToRATSAT o TiomaT ot it et €, S SElTT SToT Heieh STTH el TrTTIT ST 8ehdT| St Ao fedi i & & fog
ST IRTe ActTeshil sl R st & ST 38 gl fore o & fo U forael o foreg sweht et fearfar wstera 21 wefer o
AT @ foh hTaITEl o sr=iTel § 3Heh U Ush 3feid ATHET & 371 gHfeTT fohell ST STerer sht STreredshal e 2| AeTerd! Hrett

1 foreqa foraror e 43 # femma 21
32  Hafea uer TRt
%) fafafaa arfersrr deifer ver s AT ST st 36 TTer Sk Hefer Y TeRf TE R @
| ey
FHTSR ThYT foeer (BaTf.) 27.12.2022 & 37ee] Ud yaty fewren

FHTSR T et (FATH.) 03.02.2023 & 06.06.2024 T

e (fore) - sAfafes mm

FATSI kT foeett (Faf.) 01.02.2025 &
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W) a9 o SN T geat o a1y gt o -a S T
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31 |T= 2025 31 HT=F 2024
i) | Srsfer TR/ quteRTicTeh fHasTeRT ST ATRCS e -
e % &9 ¥ 9a 3R 137.34 94.84
e o w0 H wfeorsy ffer & awmem 9.59 8.69
(ST 3R W H ST a0l A S &)
i) | TR-EE T e o AT sae Yok 3T 31 [eh 0.60 0.85
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Y o 37 | AreHT aREfE St qe - -
T T 1 HI=3T YT 3[5 oaaT 428.10 473.60
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CEGIDED) -1%

31 AT, 2024 St

AT &9 +1%
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U7 SReH e e 8 e wiaer foret o amem 2 areeh S1gsier o qed STo el i 1 e o e &, e forctar
BT BT 21 0T S T : Ieht TRETer Mo (e TR ST S sEeh e iR, R S, e
Gt 3 s foreer wTe ST ORI e €, ﬁWEﬁﬁT%l

SRUT ST Rl 3 TTEehi shl w01 THTA 3T Frg-aerar vt i fersderor snteh Feifra forar s & 5= =501 & forw strerwaren
STTHIE STH ST o TG 0T ST fohal TIT 3 STt STy TR & argett ahi Tt sy i g e AT ox <t it 2|
ST 0T BT o foTu Ueh vt Tefud it & ST fUsel 37T BTt o Sl §371 oh ST 9T SATATIEh 37T 31T 9T TSR o6
Wﬁaﬁfmaﬁﬁ%mwaﬁmﬁ%mﬁﬁw%@m&m%wmsﬁmw TR 9T TRt
ST 371 e i & 21 99 3 S ST ST TR S w3 T g e 8 qRE 96 TR G

SRUT BT o foTT =T 31 HT= 20259k | 31 HT= 2024 9%
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shiee g1 gaH 1 18 583.57 89.10

0T T STt - (41.68)
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) AT SHRaH

AT T ILTA sieh STHT S 0T oh ITANT o WTEH ¥ Toraqqraor shi et ST ereficiod o st e sH1g W 8l
rer € 1S AforehT ST ST A1 o ST 9L ot 3hi forefer SaTit sht afoereidT SThTget 3 SIisT SReqd ! o

srfya wivr RUHIAFT | 12 A FR G FA

31 HT=I 2025 1 GHTH 99 & {10
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Y 31 AT 2024 ! TETH GAT

U 364.62 50.00 314.62 364.62
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2T ST TT ST Weh| Fafer Fetford it o sfhet 371 H0T-3het Sfeerdt 31T o STam o dSft 6t Frret s 2
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31 HT 2025, 31 A= 2024 T ST =T T of:

Terawor 31 9T 2025 31 T 2024
AT o ST YIIEERT T o7 et gfeperet 26,377.59 23,730.58
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41 ST UTH 115 "UTEH! 6 WY ST H TSTEA" o FTH The 0T
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H ITH TSTE 2l T " ok W1 gl O AT 21 o foraeor 2t iy shi Ao ok forg sfeerd s1qurer vl =
SUANT LA ©, ST AU FRT & SIS 175 ATt oh STT& 8 Hoft ohl forefar fearfar ow oi1-a 261 shis Hecaqol gl e wet
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Y o SR ST FRT 3T ToTed 39 Y 2:-
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TfETe & TSI (TS § Tehat TR - 21,482.90 Ar@ &Y (et a - 12,710.23 24,859.23
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ITITH o ITATAT 1T g9 T 22.07 22.07
) i vt % sieta Hiuderr st feero e @
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Director (Finance) From 07.06.2024

Shri Naresh Kumar

Director (Technical) From 14.07.2025

Shri Aditya Kumar Ghosh
Govt. Nominee Director Upto 27.02.2025
Shri Udai Bhan Singh From 27.02.2025

Govt. Nominee Director

Smt. Sarla Devi

Independent Director Upto 14.02.2025

Chief Vigilance

Officer Ms Chandrani Gupta Full Year

Auditors . Batliboi, Purohit & Darbari
Chartered Accountants

Solicitor . Fox & Mondal
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Fox Mondal & Associate LLP
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Fox & Mondal LLP
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HDFC Bank
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NOTICE OF RESCHEDULED 39th ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING (AGM) OF THE MEMBERS/SHAREHOLDES OF
THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED

NOTICE is hereby given that the 39thAnnual General Meeting of the Members of The Braithwaite Burn and
Jessop Construction Company Limited which was scheduled to be held on 11th Septemer 2025 at 11:30 a.m.
at the Registered Office of the Company at 27, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700001, W. Bengal has been
rescheduled to be held on Friday, 12th September 2025 at 11:30 a.m. at 27, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata
- 700001, W. Bengal to transact the following businesses :

Ordinary Business :

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements containing the Balance Sheet as at 31st
March2025, Statements of Profit and Loss, Cash Flows and Changes in Equity including Notes etc. forming
part thereof for the financial year ended 31st March 2025 together with Report of the Board, Report of
Independent Auditors & Comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

2. To Declare Dividend for the financial year 2024-25.

3. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to fix remuneration of the Independent Auditors, to be
appointed by The Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the Financial Year 2025-26.

4.  To take note of the Appointment of Directors made by Government Order.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

(Navin Kumar Mishra)
COMPANY SECRETARY

Regd. Office :
27, R.N.Mukherjee Road .
Kolkata — 700001

Date : 08 September 2025

Copy to : All the Directors and Statutory Auditors
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NOTICE OF 39th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO THE
MEMBERS / SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that the 39th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members / Shareholders of The
Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction Company Limited shall be held on Thursday, 11th September
2025 at 11:30 A. M. at the Registered Office of the Company at 27, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700001,
W. Bengal to transact the following business :-

Ordinary Business :

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements containing the Balance Sheet as at 31st
March 2025, Statements of Profit and Loss, Cash Flows and Changes in Equity including Notes etc. forming
part thereof for the financial year ended 31st March 2025 together with Report of the Board, Report of
Independent Auditors & Comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

2. To Declare Dividend for the financial year 2024-25.

3. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to fix remuneration of the Independent Auditors, to be
appointed by The Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the Financial Year 2025-26.

4.  To take note of the Appointment of Directors made by Government Order.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

(Navin Kumar Mishra)
COMPANY SECRETARY

Regd. Office :
27, R.N.Mukherjee Road .
Kolkata — 700001

Date : 20th August 2025

Copy to : All the Directors and Statutory Auditors
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NOTE :

1. A Member entitled to attend and Vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and Vote
instead of himself and such Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Proxy Form is enclosed
with this Notice.

5
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2. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and MCA Circulars, the Annual General
Meeting will be held through Video Conferencing (VC) /Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) and
accordingly, the 39th AGM of the Company shall be conducted with option to Members to participate
through VC/OAVM, if so required and the VC/OAVM link for this purpose shall be shared separeately.

3. The deemed venue for 39th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company as stated in the Notice of
the AGM.

I BN
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PROXY FORM

0 [Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
g' Administration) Rules, 2014]
S
N
E CIN : U70100WB1986GO1041286
g Name of the Company : THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY
E LIMITED
gc Registered office : 27, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Modi Building, Kolkata, WB - 700001. INDIA
% Name of the Member(s)

Registered address

E-mail Id

Folio No/ Clint Id

DPID : Not Applicable

I/ We being the member of the Company holding.....shares in the above named Company, hereby appoint

1. Name:................ Address : E-mail Id:

Signature: ..........c.oooiiiiiii , or failing him
2. Name: ................ Address : E-mail Id:

Signature: ..........oovviiiiiiiininn , or failing him
3. Name:................ Address : E-mail Id:

Signature: .......oooviiiiii s

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 39th Annual General Meeting
of members of the Company, to be held on - ---day, --  ----, 2025 at the Registered Office of the Company
at Kolkata., and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No.
|
2 i, ®
=
3 g g.
U & S
&E @
<
Signed this ......cccoevvevieiieiieiee, day of September 2025
Signature: ........oooiiiiiiiiii (Signature of Member)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office
of the Company, before the commencement of the Meeting.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I have great pleasure in welcoming you all to the 39thAnnual General Meeting
of the Members of the Company. Annual Report containing the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
31stMarch, 2025 together with Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and Comments of Comptroller & Auditor
General has already been circulated for your perusal.

Before I proceed to take up the formal agenda of today’s meeting, I would briefly share with you the performance
of your company during the financial year 2024-25: -

° During financial year 2024-25 the Company generated total income of X 19578.07 Lakh as against X 26074.99
Lakh during financial year 2023-24.

e  Net Profit (Profit after Tax) for the said period is X 3059.62 Lakh (Previous financial year ¥ 2063.03 Lakh).

e  Reserves & Surplus stand at ¥14291.54 Lakh w.r.t X11644.53 Lakh in FY2023 — 24 (23% growth YoY) and
Net Worth is R26377.59 Lakh vis-a-vis ¥23730.58 Lakh in FY 2023 -24 (11% growth YoY).

° During the year under report our order book has displayed an upward trend with a value of X 45390.23 Lakh
as on 31 March, 2025. We are optimistic that order book will grow further considering forthcoming business
opportunities.

The major projects, Railway Bridge across Ganga River at Prayagraj, seven Railway Bridges on Bairabi-Sairang
Line in Mizoram and two Rail Bridges across Irang & Iring Rivers in Manipur have been undertaken efficiently.
Railway Bridge across Ganga River at Prayagraj has been operational since 12 Dec 2024 and extensively used
during Maha Kumbh. Bairabi — Sairang Line in Mizoram is also likely to be operational in near future. The other
projects in Karnataka and Chhattisgarh are also nearing completion. The company has effectively & efficiently
undertaken the operations in spite of uptrend in construction input costs and logistic challenges of remote projects
sites and been able to maintain operating margins/ profitability. The successful completion of challenging projects
has augmented institutionalise expertise of the organisation, boosted the confidence of the team and enhanced
technical/ financial credentials of the company for future business opportunities.

Concerted efforts are being made to consolidate business in the Core Segment of Railway Bridges as well as
diversification opportunities in other segments are being explored. Recently the company has made a modest
beginning in other business segments - Road-over-Bridge (RoB), Re-girdering of Rail Bridges, Foot-over-Bridges
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(FoB), Industrial Structures and Legacy Waste Management. The company is also attempting entry in the Pontoon
Bridges of IWAL It is encouraging to note that order book of over ¥ 45000.00 Lakh has been achieved in these new
verticals. The company is continuously working towards enhancing efficiencies, improving customer relationship,
reconfiguring the organisation’s structure to match the future business opportunities and challenges.

Our primary objectives to achieve growth with sustainability by diversifying our services across various infra
sectors. A robust business acquisition strategy, for small/medium/large value projects on our own or though MoU/
Tie up with reputed entities, is being pursued. Prudent financial management, risk mitigation, cost consciousness
& optimization and business competitiveness while ensuring financial stability & resilience underpin our approach
in all endeavours. The Company is taking measured steps in the right direction factoring sustainability, growth and
profitability.

We are steadfast in our approach to develop a lean and agile organisation with a diverse and multi-skilled team to
address the current business requirements as well as new areas of work. While consolidating our institutionalised
expertise, we will maintain thrust on training, enhanced skills, technologies, innovative methods/ processes and thus
enabling our team to be future ready. We are also committed to sustainability and conservation of environment and
adhere to the environmental standards while undertaking our projects/ operations.

The Company is committed to adhere to the corporate governance guidelines issued by DPE, Govt. of India.
Quarterly and Annual compliance report under Corporate Governance guidelines are filed with DPE within the
prescribed due date, without any delay. As per Grading Report of CPSEs issued by DPE, BBJ has consistently
achieved ‘Excellent’ Grade for Corporate Governance Compliance. Detailed Report on Corporate Governance has
been given separately in the annexure to Directors’ Report of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. We are
actively engaged in our corporate social responsibility as per extant guidelines and directives of DPE/ Gol.

I take this opportunity to express my sincere thanks and gratitude to my colleagues on the Board of Directors for
their valuable support and co-operation in the overall management of the company.

I am also thankful for the whole -hearted support received from Ministry of Heavy Industries, Ministry of Railway
and other Ministries /Departments of Govt. of India, State Governments, Syama Prasad Mookerjee Port, RVNL,
IRCON, Financial Institutions, Banks, Regulatory & Statutory Authorities, Comptroller & Auditor General of India,
Auditors, Legal Advisors & Consultants, Joint Venture Partners and all the stakeholders. We look forward for their
continued support in Company’s future endeavours.

I, on behalf of the entire Board of Directors, sincerely thank the employees of BBJ at all levels and would like to
place on record our appreciation for their commitment, hard work and dedication.

Thank you all.
Jai Hind

Cmde. Rakesh Chhillar (Retd.)
Chairman & Managing Director
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Shareholders,
The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction Company Limited.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 39th Annual Report on the Company’s Operation and Performance
together with Audited Annual Financial Statements for the financial year ending 31st March 2025.

1 Financial Highlights
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1.1.1  The Financial Statements of the Company are prepared on accrual basis of accounting in compliance
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments thereto to the extent notified and applicable
provisions under Companies Act, 2013.

1.1.2 A summary of Financial Performance of the company for the financial year 2024-25 vis-a-vis 2023-
24 is given below:-

(% in Lakh)
PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from Operation 18276.59 25010.37
Other Income 1301.48 1064.61
Profit/(loss) before Depreciation, Finance Costs, 4178.96 3014.33
Exceptional items and Tax Expense
Less: Depreciation/ Amortization/ Impairment 119.49 149.72
Profit /(loss) before Finance Costs, Exceptional items 4059.47 2864.61
and Tax Expense
Less: Finance Costs 50.84 69.29
Profit /(loss) before Tax Expense 4008.63 2795.32
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 949.01 732.29
Profit /(loss) for the year 3059.62 2063.03

1.1.3  Total income of the Company for financial year 2024-25 is ¥ 19578.07 Lakh as against the ¥ 26074.99
Lakh during financial year 2023-2024. Net Profit (Profit after Tax) for the said period is ¥ 3059.62
Lakh (Previous financial year X 2063.03 Lakh).

1.1.4  Your Company consciously targeted remunerative orders from Railways and other Clients, aiming
impetus of growth both in terms of Operation and profitability. Your company has maintained the
track record of a consistent profit making CPSE.

2 Capital Structure

2.1 There was no change in the capital structure of the Company during financial year 2024-25. The Authorized
Capital as on 31st March, 2025 is X 34810 Lakh and paid-up share capital is X 12086.05 Lakh.

General Reserves

3.1 General Reserves (excluding Retained earnings) as on 31st March, 2025 stands at ¥ 1473.65 Lakh (Previous
financial year 2023-24 X 1473.65 Lakh).
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Dividend

Dividend would be payable to the Govt. of India post recommendation by the Board and subsequent approval
by the Shareholders of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting which shall be held as per the
requirements under Companies Act, 2013.During financial year 2024-25, your Company paid dividend of
% 412.61 Lakh for the financial year 2023-24.

The dividend pay-out shall be in accordance with the Guidelines on Capital Restructuring of Central Public
Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) and as directed by the Govt. of India / Department of Investment and Public
Asset Management (DIPAM) or exemption, if any, as may be considered by DIPAM.

Management Discussion and Analysis
Brief Profile of the Company

5.1.1  Incorporated on 17th September, 1986 as a Central Public Sector Undertaking (CPSE), President of
India through Ministry of Heavy Industries (MHI), Government of India holds its entire 100% equity
share capital. The Company is a Schedule ‘C’ CPSE under MHI.

5.1.2  The Company is engaged in the business of:

i Engineering Procurement & Construction (EPC) business — Steel Bridges for Railways,
ROB, Regirdering Job,

il Project Management Consultant (PMC) business — Civil Construction ,

il Industrial Structures,

iv Bio mining legacy waste,

v Company is also endeavouring to diversifying in other related sectors.

5.1.3  Projects undertaken by the company are spread in different parts of the country

5.1.4 Quality Management System of BBJ is in accordance with requirements of Quality Policy and
certified under ISO 9001:2015 certification.

VISION MISSION & OBJECTIVE OF BBJ:

5.2.1 Vision
. To innovate, design and construct Bridges and other Engineering marvels with high
Engineering standard through state of art technology and cost efficient practices.
. To remain profitable, productive, creative, compliant and financially sound with care and

concern for all stake holders.
5.2.2 Mission & Objective

. To become a world class premier Engineering Project implementing organization.

. To construct signature Bridges and Engineering marvels with in and outside the country.

. To be innovative, entreprencurial, constantly creating value and attaining global benchmarks.
. Committed to total customer satisfaction and continuously enhancing capabilities of the

organization and employees through innovation and skill upgradation.
Industry Structure and Developments
5.3.1 State of the Economy-Global & Indian Economy
Assessment and Outlook of Economy as stated in the Minutes of the Monetary Policy Committee Meeting,
Reserve Bank of India is placed below:

“The Monetary Policy Report of April 2025, released alongside the 54th meeting of the Monetary
Policy Committee, reflects a balanced approach by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to support
growth while maintaining price stability. The decision to cut the policy repo rate by 25 basis points
to 6 per cent is underpinned by easing inflation, particularly in food prices, and a gradual recovery
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in economic activity. With GDP growth for 2025-26 projected at 6.5 per cent and inflation expected
to remain within the 4 per cent target band, the report signals cautious optimism despite global
uncertainties.

On the external front, robust services exports and strong remittance inflows have helped cushion
the merchandise trade deficit, keeping the current account deficit at sustainable levels. Meanwhile,
improved system liquidity, lower short-term borrowing costs, and stable foreign exchange reserves
underscore the resilience of India’s financial system. The RBI has affirmed its commitment to closely
monitor evolving conditions and take timely, calibrated measures to preserve macroeconomic and
financial stability.”

(Source - https://www.pib.gov.in/PressReleaselframePage.aspx?PRID=2120509)

Indian Infrastructure Sector & Government Initiatives

5.3.2.1 Government Initiatives shall significantly contribute to overall growth in the Infrastructure
Sector through:
Robust demand
Attractive opportunities
Policy support

Increasing investments

5.3.2.2 The vision of the Govt. for development of Infrastructure and Railways is expected to
boost up the Construction sector with excellent growth opportunity. Your Company, with its
experience, expertise and competence/capability in Bridge Construction, Civil Construction
and Industrial Structures, is well placed to leverage its strength. Your Company’s strategy to
consistently endeavor towards market development and enhance capability through tie-up
with established entities while maintaining focus on sustainability and growth, will enable it
to create long-term value for all the stakeholders. Your Company will continue to focus on
being Purpose-led and Future Ready.

5.3.2.3 Your Company is also geared up to improve its financials through proliferation in Modern
Infra Projects and exploring other business opportunities through diversification in PMC
business besides exploring more out of the ambitious plan of Railways in the coming years.

5.3.2.4 Steps taken by your Company will significantly improve its performance from the
conventional business trajectory to the Diversified area with promised growth rate.

5.3.2.5 Continuous emphasis on infrastructure by Govt. of India and the ability of Your Company

to work in difficult areas like North East, Jammu & Kashmir etc. is expected to result in
enhanced business in these areas.

5.4 Strength and Weakness

54.1

Strength

Strong brand awareness and reputation, rich experience in important/ signature Bridges in India.
Operates in Bridge, Civil Construction and Industrial Structure projects.

Decades of experience of working in remote and in-accessible area

Track record of successfully completing complex projects

Enduring relationships built on mutual trust and respect with our clients, sub-contractors, financial
institutions and other stakeholders

Lean Organization with highly qualified and experienced Engineers/Executives and other skilled
employees
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2 . Positive Net Worth. Consistent profitability since 2005.
5 . Having Credit rating facilities of A1+ in short term and A+ in long term instrument.
§ . Credentials to work in remote and high terrain areas in North & North East.
§ 5.42 Weakness
§ . Depleting numbers of experienced employees due to superannuation at higher level and key position
j in the Company,
E . As the company face financial constraint due to its small size, therefore, credential of major projects
< are not available for acquiring big works, thereby losing valuable business in Bridge, Road and Civil
Constructions etc.
. Inability to enter in to BOT/BOO and other major project execution, due to financial and other
limitations.

5.5 Opportunities, Threats and Constraints
5.5.1 Opportunity
. Declared Policies of Govt. of India towards ‘Atmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyan’, ‘Make in India’,
‘Smart Cities Mission’ , ‘PM Gati Shakti Yojna’ and various other initiative would result

in demand in road and civil construction etc. thus offering substantial opportunities for
construction companies.

. Higher budgetary allocation for infrastructure sector by Govt. of India.

. Pro- industry policies and initiatives such as rationalisation of corporate tax, setting up of
REITs and Infrastructure Investment Trusts would drive investment in infrastructure sector
etc.

. Thrust in infrastructure work by the Govt. of India and development work in border area and

North Eastern State’s development work.

. Thrust in infrastructure development for surface transport.
. Joint Ventures/Collaboration for major Indian projects.
5.5.2  Threat
. Huge investment in infrastructure has attracted large number of private sector players which

has intensified competition.

. Profit margins may shrink due to increased competition from Private Sector players.
. Restriction on nomination business.
. Reverse auction affects operating margin.

5.5.3 Constraints
Company being a public sector entity has lesser flexibility vis-a-vis Private Sector competitors..
Notwithstanding and in spite of small size and financial limits, Your Company with its core
competencies has maintained profitability and continuously paid Dividend to Govt. of India while

making modest contribution to infrastructure initiatives including North & North East part of India.

5.5.3.1 Long gestation period of the major Projects in hand leading to locking of financial assets
thereby limiting participation in new projects.

I N
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5.5.3.2 Lack of credential for high value and complex civil project/ via-duct / elevated corridor.

Risks and Concerns

5.5.4.1 Restriction in business by nomination, stiff competition & aggressive bidding by Private
Sector, large value EPC contracts vis-a-vis limited financial capacity/Turnover coupled with

lesser operational flexibility vis-a-vis Private Sector competitions may affect future business

opportunities.

5.5.4.2 The Company’s employees and projects have been exposed/are exposed to risks of operating
in difficult geographical terrain. It, however, takes pride in executing prestigious works in

the national building task. The Company has taken measures to provide adequate safety.

5.5.4.3 Risk related details are also mentioned under Notes on Financial Statements.

5.6 Present Operations, State of Affairs and Outlook for Future

5.6.1

5.6.2

5.6.3

The business environment is facing stiff competition from Private Sector with aggressive bidding. In
addition, Reverse Auction has also limited the opportunities. Large value EPC Tenders, necessitate
enhanced credentials (Technical as well as Threshold Financial Capacity). In this present scenario

margins are reduced substantially.

As a result of above initiatives towards enhanced efficiencies, Your Company is very optimistic of
securing and improving the Order Book substantially in near future. We are consistently looking
towards enhancing efficiencies in Bidding, Operations, procurements, executions and faster turnover

of Projects.

Your Company is also exploring Joint Ventures and Tie-ups with reputed entities to meet the
challenges of higher value EPC & other Contract while leveraging its ability to undertake complex
Projects in difficult terrains of North & North Eastern India.

5.7 Discussion on Financial Performance with Respect to Operational Performance

5.7.1

5.7.2

BBJ is engaged in Engineering, Procurement & Construction (EPC) jobs for Construction & Erection

of Steel Bridges for the Railways, civil construction, ROB and other civil projects.

Current business verticals of the Company are given hereunder:

S1 No Particulars Products & Services Customers / Clients

(a) | Engineering Construction of: Steel Indian Railway and other
Procurement & Bridges, Rehabilitation CPSEs
Construction (EPC) of old bridges,
business — steel Manufacturing & supply
bridges of bridge girders etc.

(b) | Project Management Construction of: Kendriya Vidyalaya Sangathan,
Consultancy (PMC) Buildings, School North Eastern Council (NEC)
business — civil Campuses, Road etc.
construction job

(¢) | Industrial Structure Fabrication & erection MECON and other CPSEs

of steel structure
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S1 No Particulars Products & Services Customers / Clients
(d) | Bio-mining of legacy Waste Management Chandigarh Municipality
waste

5.7.3 Operational Performance

5.74

5.7.3.1

5.7.3.2

The order book position as on 31st March 2025 is X 26687 Lakh from Railway Bridge
projects and I 18703.23 Lakh from Civil and Industrial Projects including Industrial
Structure, aggregating to X 45390.23 Lakh.

During financial year 2024-25, order of X 25598.06 Lakh secured for Road Overbridge, Re-
girdering, Station development etc.

Diversification & Future Out Look

5.74.1

5.74.2

5.74.3

The outlook for the future is positive and Company is likely to excel in the forthcoming
year.

Steps are taken by your Company for consolidation and diversification of Product line
under two business model viz. Project Management Consultancy (PMC) and Engineering
Procurement and Contract (EPC). Civil Engineering and Construction Projects, in addition
to the existing product mix, all that come within the business model of Your company and
with the limited means and resources we have already executed Orders for Construction
of Road, Bridge and Civil Construction works with level of experience, expertise and
efficiency matching with the requirement for the job.

The Company is conscious of the need for enhancing its credentials (Technical and Financial)
and be “future Ready” for high value PMC/EPC/Rate Contracts.

Steps are being taken by the Company for consolidation of the existing Product line as well
as re-activation of wider Product line of the Company in the past.

Towards this, the Company is continuously exploring Collaboration/Tie ups with reputed
entities for higher value orders and more opportunities.

Diversification in related Sectors as Elevated Corridors, Cable Stayed Bridges, FOBs ,
ROBs, Industrial Structures etc. are being pursued. Efficiencies in complete spectrum of
activities are being enhanced.

Steps are being taken to complete the existing orders and release the financial assets and
leveraging the same for future orders. Proactive approach and de- risking of potential
challenges in being practiced. Your Company is optimistic of significant improvements in
Production and Profitability in future.

Strategic Tie-Up in the Form of MOU /Consortium is under consideration of your Company
with other major players in Construction Industry to quote for the High Value Tenders . This
policy initiative is primarily intended to explore the benefit of techno-economic synergy
amongst the Companies through MOU process . Besides being technically compatible, the
process would in course of time become beneficial for the Companies and the consortium
and would result in value addition to the bottom line.
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5.7.5 Company’s plan to strengthen its core competence and venture into new verticals in the following
manner :

1) Enhancement in EPC business

a) Through Joint Venture: Ties up/Joint venture (JV) with other agencies to participate in
high value Govt. tenders.

For this purpose, Your Company has formed JVs with ITD Cementation and ABCI
respectively which are presently in operation.

b) Regular participation in bids invited by Railways, RVNL, IRCON, etc. for Construction
of Steel Bridges under State connectivity projects, construction of new line / doubling
line projects of various sections of Railway etc.

2) Enhancement in Marketing efforts in PMC business:

To explore opportunities in PMC business for bagging and executing PMC contracts has been
explored towards diversification. Project in PMC business has recently been undertaken by
BBJ for execution. Competitors in this vertical are other CPSEs.

5.8 Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

5.8.1 The Company has adequate system of Internal Control and Internal Audit System which helps the
management to review the effectiveness of financial and operating controls. It also ensures that all
transaction are authorized, recorded and reported correctly.

5.9 Developments in Human Resources, Industrial Relations

5.9.1 This section has been discussed separately in the Directors’ Report.

5.10 Environmental Protection and Conservation, Technological conservation, Renewable energy
developments, Foreign Exchange conservation :

5.10.1 This section has been discussed separately in the Directors’ Report.

5.11 Corporate Social Responsibility

5.11.1 This section has been discussed separately in the Directors’ Report.

5.12 Cautionary Statement

5.12.1 Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s objectives,
projections, and expectations may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable
laws and regulations. Actual results might differ substantially or materially from those expressed or
implied. Important developments that could affect the Company’s operations include a downtrend in
the infrastructure sector, significant changes in economic environment in India and abroad, exchange
rate fluctuations, tax laws, litigations and labour relations.

5.12.2 General Source of Information under this section has been as follows :

. Minutes of the RBI Monetary Policy Committee Meeting and India Brand Equity Foundation
(IBEF) - Trust established by the Department of Commerce, Ministry of Commerce and
Industry, Government of India.
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Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)

Your Company has been exempted from MoU process vide OM No. M-03/0021/2022-23-DPE(MoU) dated

25-10-2022. However, an Internal MoU had been formulated following DPE Guidelines and ratified by the

Board.

Board, Committees and Related Information/Disclosures

Board of Directors

7.1.1 Details of composition of the Board and other Committee Meetings, date of Meetings, number of

Meetings during the period including presence of Directors/Members in the said Meetings and other
required details, are covered separately under Corporate Governance Report, annexed to and forming
part of this Report.

Key Managerial Personnel

7.2.1 Following were the Functional Directors and Key Managerial Personnel as on 31st March 2025: -

i Cmde. Rakesh Chhillar (Retd.) — Chairman & Managing Director and Director (Technical)
Additional Charge

i Shri Sujit Kumar Ghosh— Director (Finance)

ii Shri Navin Kumar Mishra — Company Secretary (CS).

Board Evaluation & Training of Board Members

7.3.1 Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification bearing no. G.S.R. 463(E) exempted Government
Companies from annual evaluation of its Directors.

7.3.2 The non-executive Board members are appointed by Govt. of India into the Board are of eminent
personalities having wide experience in the field of industry, commerce and administration. Their
presence on the Board has been advantageous and fruitful in taking business decisions. Directors
are given presentation on the overview of the company with the object to familiarize them with the
Company’s business and other activities. The Board is kept up-to-date about the overall affairs of
the Company through Agenda papers and briefings by senior officials with respect to the Financial
Performance, status of ongoing Projects and other important business operation related matters.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
7.4.1 Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act, the Directors certify that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards as per
Companies Act, 2013 have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

(b) Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and have made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and of the profit and loss of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2025;

(c) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(e) Proper systems are devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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Declaration by Independent Directors

7.5.1 Due to vacant position of 2 Independent Directors as at 31st March 2025, declaration as prescribed
under Companies Act, 2013 including declaration under Section 149 from Independent Director is
not applicable.

Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and CSR Committee

7.6.1 Your Company continues to hold Meeting of Audit and other Board level Committee at regular
intervals to ensure transparency, accountability, integrity as prescribed in DPE Guidelines on
Corporate Governance.

7.6.2 Details of Constitution, Meetings, Attendance and other details relating to various Committees
constituted by the Board are covered under Corporate Governance Report, annexed to and forming
part of this Report.

7.6.3 Audit Committee of the Board has been constituted as required under the Guidelines on Corporate
Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises 2010 by Department of Public Enterprise (DPE
Guidelines on Corporate Governance).

7.6.4 Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee are governed under Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Clause 4.2 on ‘Role of Audit Committee’ under DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance.

Related Party Transactions

7.7.1 During the year under review, the company had not entered into any contract/ arrangement/transaction
with related parties which could be considered material in accordance with provisions of related
party transaction referred to in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

7.7.2 Routine transactions covered under Related Party, if any, are disclosed & explained in the Financial
Statement Section of this Report.

Disclosures as per Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

7.8.1 The Company, being a Government of India Enterprise, is exempt from disclosure requirements
pertaining to remuneration and other details as prescribed under Section 197(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014.

7.8.2 Your Company has not paid any remuneration attracting the provisions of Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Information & Vigilance Framework, Policies, Procedures
Quality Assurance/Quality Control & Safety

8.1.1 Your Company is committed to follow the quality norms and standardized specific process as
specified in the contract to maintain the desired quality. As part of the continuous apprising and to
facilitate the functional requirements, a Quality Assurance/Quality Control process is followed as
practice. Safety in construction is not a matter to be taken lightly. In fact, safety needs to be the top
most priority in every aspect of construction at all times. The Quality Management System of the
Company is Certified under ISO 9001:2015, being in accordance with the requirements of Quality
Policy.
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8.1.2 On annual basis, National Safety week is celebrated at Head Office, organized by Quality Cell &
General Guidelines for Safety is read out for awareness on this occasion to facilitate the requirements
of Safety at project sites.

STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK

MANAGEMENT POLICY FOR THE COMPANY INCLUDING IDENTIFICATION THEREIN OF

ELEMENTS OF RISK, IF ANY, WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE BOARD MAY THREATEN

THE EXISTENCE OF THE COMPANY

8.2.1 The risk management system is an integrated and aligned system with the corporate and operational
objectives. Risk management is undertaken as part of normal business practice and not as a separate
task at set time. Being an integral part, policy initiatives were taken to secure Risk Management
wherever required and necessitated in the process of functioning .

Corporate Governance

8.3.1 Your Company constantly endeavors to adopt best practices of Corporate Governance to ensure
transparency, integrity and accountability in it’s overall functioning. The Corporate Governance
Report is submitted along with Certificate on Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance,
duly certified by the Statutory Auditors in terms of the DPE Corporate Governance Guidelines.

8.3.2 Your company has adequate Internal Financial Control in place and such controls are tested from

time to time through the process of Audit Committee constituted by Members nominated by the
Board .

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

8.4.1 The Company has well placed vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation to the Company’s Code of
conduct which includes the duly adopted Whistle Blower Policy to conduct of the affairs in a fair
and transparent manner, by adopting the highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and
ethical behavior.

8.4.2 Focus of the policy is to create a fearless environment. The Whistle Blower Policy is posted on the

website of the Company and available at https://www.bbjconst.com/rti/bbj-whistle-blower-policy.
pdf.

Right To Information

8.5.1 Company has appropriate mechanism to provide information to citizens under the provisions of
Right to Information (RTI) Act, 2005.

8.5.2 Total 38 applications under RTI Act were received during the financial year 2024-2025. Applications
were replied within the prescribed time limit under the said Act.

Vigilance

8.6.1 Ms. Chandrani Gupta, IES, is the Chief Vigilance Officer. During the financial year 2024-2025,
vigilance activities were managed effectively.
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8.7 Adherence to the Accounting Policy /Standard

8.7.1

8.7.2

8.7.3

Financial Statements of the Company was drawn in accordance with the applicable Accounting
Standards and Rules as per Companies Act, 2013 and are being followed since its adoption.

Details of significant accounting policies are adequately explained under Notes forming part of the
Financial Statements.

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013, are made and maintained continuously.

8.8 Internal Audit and Internal Controls

8.8.1

8.8.2

8.8.3

8.8.4

8.8.5

8.8.6

The Company has adequate internal financial controls system for ensuring orderly and efficient
conduct of its business including adherence to the Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets
and prevention of frauds, accurate and prompt financial reporting, for compliances and improve the
effectiveness of risk management towards good corporate governance.

Company ensures that business is conducted in accordance with the legal, statutory and regulatory
compliance requirements.

Firm of Chartered Accountants are appointed by the Board of the company to carry out Internal
Audit Function and Reporting thereon. The Reports of Internal Audit findings are periodically
submitted to management and Audit Committee of the company. Corrective action in respective
areas are undertaken and thereby strengthen the overall control system as per suggestions by Internal
Auditors.

The company has adequate internal control measures in the form of established office procedures
issued by the management covering all important activities i.e., Marketing, Purchase and Works,
Material, Stores, Accounts and Personal Manual etc.

The Internal Audit Scope, Plan, Internal control mechanism and issues of financial and operational
system are made more structured to take on all kinds of future challenges.

The Management takes reasonable care and ensures safeguard of assets, prevention and detection of
fraud and error, accuracy and completeness of accounting records and timely preparation of reliable
financial information.

9 Auditors
9.1 Report of the Statutory Auditors on the Accounts of 2024-2025

9.1.1

9.12

9.13

M/s Batliboi Purohit & Darbari, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata, Chartered Accountants (FRN
303086E), Kolkata have been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial
year 2024-25 by the Order of Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Observation in the Report of the Statutory Auditors on the Annual Audited Financial Statement for the
financial year 2024-25 have been adequately explained in the notes on accounts. Management Reply
on the Auditors’ Observation has also been placed along with the revised Report of the Statutory
Auditors dated 5th August 2025 (which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 25th June 2025)
in the Audited Financial Statement section of this Annual Report.

As required under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Companies Act, 2013, there is no adverse reporting by
the auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 in respect of frauds.
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9.2 Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG)

9.2.1 C&AG vide their Comments dated 12th August 2025 in view of the revision made in the Statutory
Auditors Report to give effect to some of observations raised during supplementary audit, C&AG
have no further comments to offer upon or supplement to the Statutory Auditors’ Report under
section 143 (6) (b) of the Act. Copy of the Comments of C&AG forms part of the Annual Report of
the Company for financial year 2024-25.

9.3 Secretarial Auditor and Audit Report

9.3.1 Provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 regarding Secretarial Audit is not applicable to
the Company.

9.3.2 The Company has secured compliance of applicable / mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

10 Human Resources, CSR, Women Empowerment & Welfare Activities

10.1 Human Resources

10.1.1 With a view to attain the operational excellence, rigorous and constant efforts are being carried out to
meet the organization expectations as well as keeping pace with the changing industrial scenario.

10.1.2 Policies were modified as needed, focusing on recognizing employees as an important resources in
the Organization through Employee Centric Approach. Many initiatives were taken towards creation
of proficient HR Systems leading to increased transparency and effective communication system in
the Company and MoU parameters were properly addressed through proper system in place.

10.1.3 Any grievances related the employee are to be taken up by Grievance Committee for resolving in
time. In keeping with the functional and behavioral skills of the employees, training under different
modules were arranged at various levels to enhance proficiency and to encourage the self-learning
among employees.

10.1.4 Furthermore, in view of the present innovative and challenging market, your Company arranged
need based Training Programs to make officials / employees aware of latest trends / techniques and
changes that are taking place in their respective functional areas and to enhance their knowledge so
that they work with improved potential and zeal to achieve the overall organizational goal as a team.
Industrial Relation remained cordial throughout the year under review.

10.2 Corporate Social Responsibilities; details about the policy developed and implemented by the
Company on Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives taken during the year
10.2.1 Annual Report on CSR as required under The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 is placed as Annexure to this Report, elaborating the CSR fund and its utilization during
reporting period.

10.2.2 CSR Policy of the Company is available at the Web-site of the Company at https://www.bbjconst.
com/rti/bbj-csr-policy.pdf
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10.3 Empowerment of Women

10.3.1 The Company continues to accord due importance to gender equality. All necessary measures/
statutory provisions for safeguarding the interests of women employees in issues like payment of
wages, hours of work, health, safety, welfare aspects and maternity benefits etc. are being followed
by the Company in its letter and spirit.

10.4 Welfare of Weaker Sections of The Society

10.4.1 Statutory welfare facilities as incorporated in extant Labour Laws and Rules made thereunder are
administered by the company for welfare of the employees apart from the provisions of welfare and
social justice towards reservation policy for SC, ST, OBC, EWS and Differently Abled respectively
in line with the Govt. Policies and Guidelines.

10.5 Encouragement / Assistance to MSME
10.5.1 Out of total purchase for the period under review, most were made through MSMESs. Nothing remains

unpaid to the MSME suppliers at the end of the financial year 2024-2025 for a period of over 45 days.

10.5.2 Aids and Supports were extended to the Social Welfare Organizations through selective sourcing /
procurement of materials and services from them in need in phased manner.

11  Other Disclosures

11.1 Legal Compliances

11.1.1 Board is apprised of the statutory and other mandatory legal compliances on regular basis through
Agenda Notes including notices, if any, received from statutory authorities and the remedial action
taken by the Company to meet those requirements.

11.2 Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)
Act 2013
11.2.1 The company has complied with the provision relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013. The Internal Complaints Committee is empowered to look into all complaints
of sexual harassment and facilitate free and fair enquiry process with clear timelines.

11.2.2 Details of cases as required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 is given hereunder :

(1) number of complaints filed during the financial year : Nil
(ii) number of complaints disposed of during the financial year : Nil
(iii) number of complaints pending as at the end of the financial year : Nil

11.3 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

11.3.1 For the period under review, no Loans, Guarantees and Investments were made by the Company
which requires approval under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Details of Loans, Guarantees
and Investments are covered under financial statements and Notes forming part thereof.
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11.4 Code of conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel

11.4.1 Your Company has well defined policy framework which lays down procedures to be adhered to by

all Board Members and Senior Management for ethical professional conduct with the objective to
conduct the Company’s business ethically and with responsibility, integrity, fairness, transparency
and honesty. The Code is available on the Company’s website https://www.bbjconst.com/rti/bbj-
code-of-conduct.pdf . All Directors and senior management personnel have complied with the Code
of Conduct for the period under review.

11.4.2 Declaration by Chairman & Managing Director on compliance with the Code of Conduct in line with

Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs by DPE

Declaration on Code of Conduct

In terms of Clause 3.4.2 of the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises 2010 dated 14th May, 2010 issued by the DPE, I hereby declare that all Board members
and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as prescribed
under said Guidelines on an annual basis for the financial year 2024-25.

Signature :
Cmde.Rakesh Chhillar (Retd.)

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: - 09832486

11.5 Progressive use of Hindi

11.5.1

Measures taken for effective implementation of Hindi in the Company

During the period under review, the Company continued its effort for proper implementation and
compliance of the Official Language Policy of the Rajbhasha Vibhag, Government of India. Few
major compliances are as follows :

*  Quarterly meetings of Official Language Implementation Committee of the company were
held regularly.

*  Quarterly Hindi Workshops were also organized.

»  Participation in meeting called by TOLIC for their review and ensured participation in various
competitions held by TOLIC in Hindi Language.

*  “Hindi Pakhwada” in the month of Sept, 2024 was organised in the Company and during
the said fortnight various Hindi workshops and competitions between the employees of the
company were held. To encourage the employees, prizes were also distributed among the
winners of these competitions.

11.6 Extract of Annual Return

11.6.1 Web link of annual return duly filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs are available at following

web-link - https://www.bbjconst.com/financials.html. In view of the provisions stated in above first
para, ‘Extract of the annual return’ in Form No. MGT-9 does not form part of Board Report for the
period under review.
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11.7 Performance of Subsidiaries, Associates And Joint Venture Companies During The Year
11.7.1 Bhagirathi Bridge Construction Company Private Limited (BBCCPL) is the Joint Venture Company,

11.7.2

11.7.3

11.7.4

11.7.5

jointly promoted by BBJ and Gammon India Limited (GIL). After status of nominee Director as
‘Inactive’, request was made by BBJ for either rectifying the defect for its Director or make fresh
nomination of Directors in terms of Articles of Association and the Joint Venture Agreement for
formation of BBCCPL. Despite several reminders, no rectification or fresh nomination of Directors are
made by GIL. Due to this reason, there is deadlock in holding Meetings of Directors or Shareholders
since there is no quorum for holding the said Meetings of Board or Shareholders. There has been no
new development in this regard.

Form No. 22A, Active could not be filed due to said deadlock and therefore, the present status of the
Company is inactive, non-compliant.

BBCCPL is virtually defunct Joint Venture Company, with its substratum lost after completion of the
purpose of Construction of Second Hooghly Bridge, for which it was incorporated. Presently, there
are no employees on the roll of BBCCPL.

Bharat Process and Mechanical Engineers Ltd. (BPMEL) a subsidiary is under liquidation upon
passing of winding-up order by Hon’ble High Court at Kolkata. The Process of liquidation is yet to
complete.

Due to non availability of Financial Statement of the defunct JV/subsidiary consolidated Financial
Statement is not prepared.

11.8 Environment and Pollution Control, Conservation of Energy and Technology & Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo

11.8.1

Conservation of Energy, Environment And Pollution Control :

11.8.1.1 Environment and Pollution Control continued to receive specific attention during the year
under review. Through internal mechanism, steps are being taken for conservation of energy
through periodical checking of system and its policy to monitor the level of emission of
Carbon and other gases from the Plants in use at it Project sites at various locations.

11.8.1.2 With limited deployment of its resources, nature of contracts & short duration of its Projects
going on at various sites, use of alternate source through capital investment in energy
conservation equipment at said sites and is not feasible for the time being. However, avenues
are explored for utilizing alternate sources of energy in feasible manner in future.

11.8.1.3 The stress is given to minimize the energy consumption in all new construction projects by
adopting to the best available power saving technologies switching over from LCDs to LED
lightings has already been accomplished. Besides most of the projects executed are in line
with the Energy norms, the equipment used are all energy efficient.

11.8.1.4 Your Company remained eco-friendly to the Community and it’s people at large. No Notice
or Show Cause was ever received from the Authorities or Regulators for any non compliance
of relevant Laws.
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11.8.2 Technology Absorption:

11.8.2.1 During the last three years reckoned backward from the beginning of the financial year
2024-2025 there was no import of technology by the Company.

11.8.2.2 Awareness about the new technologies and products is being imparted to the senior
management for utilizing the same. Presentations on the new and innovative technologies
are being organized. Due to various factors viz. conventional nature of job, cost and size
constraints etc., Research & Development activities are not presently taken up by the
Company.
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11.8.3 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

11.8.3.1 During the period under review there was no foreign exchange transaction undertaken by
Your Company.
12 Other Disclosures as Prescribed under Companies Act 2013

SI. No.

1) Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the
financial position of the company which have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the company to
which the financial statements relate and the date of the
report

Comments
Nil

Particulars

2)

A statement indicating the manner in which formal
annual evaluation has been made by the Board of its own
performance and that of its committees and individual

BBJ is a Private Limited Company,
with 100% Government shareholding.
Moreover, on account of exemption

directors. given to specified Government
Companies, these provision are not

applicable to BBJ.

3) Company’s Policy on Directors’ and

remuneration

appointment BBJ is a Private Limited Company,

with 100% Government shareholding.
Moreover, on account of exemption

given to specified Government
Companies, these provision are not
applicable to BBJ.

4) Any changes in the capital structure of the company during Nil

the year

5) Issue of shares or other convertible securities Nil

6) Issue of Employee Stock Options or Sweat Equity Shares Nil

7) Issue of debentures, bonds or any non-convertible securities Nil

8) Issue of warrants Nil

9) Details of Deposits Nil

10) Investor Education And Protection Fund (IEPF) There is no unpaid Dividend in respect
of the last seven years.

11) the change in the nature of business, if any; Nil

12) the names of companies which have become or ceased to Nil

be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year;

I N
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SI. No. Particulars Comments
13) the details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of Nil
the Act
14) the details of deposits which are not in compliance with the Nil

requirements of Chapter V of the Act;

15) the details of significant and material orders passed by the Nil
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status and company’s operations in future.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Directors commend the indefatigable efforts of the employees at all levels which has contributed immensely to the
growth of the Company during Reported . Their dedication and commitment will stand the organization in good
stead to meet the challenges in future.

BBJ has also enjoyed unstinting support and guidance from all the Ministries of the Government of India,
particularly the Ministry of Heavy Industries , State Governments etc. All the stakeholders, especially the suppliers,
customers and business partners, have extended tremendous support towards the success of the Organization.

The Directors assure of their unwavering focus on the strategic plans of your Company to steer it responsibly to
stellar heights.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction Company Limited

Cmde. Rakesh Chhillar (Retd.)
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: -09832486

Date: 20th August, 2025
Kolkata
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This Report is in accordance with the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises
issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Govt. of India.

Company’s The Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance is aimed at enhancing long term
Philosophy Shareholders value and capacity of the Company to generate wealth through :
on Guidelines e Assisting top Management in taking sound business decisions and prudent Financial
on Corporate Management
Governance e Achieving transparency and professionalism in all decisions and activities of the
Company

o Adhering to Compliances of disclosure requirement
e Achieving excellence in Corporate Governance by :

1. Conforming to the prevalent guidelines on Corporate Governance and excelling
in wherever possible
2. Setting high ethical standards in conduct of business complying with laws and

regulations
3. Reviewingperiodically the existing system and controls for further improvements
Board of All Directors of the Board of the Company are appointed on behalf of the President of
Directors India by the Ministry of Heavy Industries, Govt. of India.

The details of Directors on the Board of the Company during the Financial Year ended
31st March, 2025 are given hereunder :

Board DIN of
Composition Directors Name Category
09832486 Cmde. Rakesh Chhillar Chairman & Managing Director and
(Retd.) Director (Technital)/ Additional Charge

Deputy Secretary — MHI
(Govt. Nominee Director)

09614219 Shri Sujit Kumar Ghosh Director (Finance)-Functional Director

Following changes occurred in the Board of Directors during FY 2024-25 including
period after 31st March, 2025 till the date of Report:

Shri Rajiv Kumar Singh Superannuated as Director Technical, BBJ on 31.01.2025.

Shri Udai Bhan Singh, Deputy Secretary — MHI has been appointed as Govt. Nominee
Director vice Shri Aditya Kumar Ghosh w.e.f. 27.02.2025.

Tenure of Smt. Sarla Devi as Non-official Independent Director, BBJ ended on 14.02.2025.
Pursuant to the order of Ministry of Heavy Industries, Government of India vide Order
Ref. No. 12 (2) / 2022.PE.III dated 06th June 2024, Shri Sujit Kumar Ghosh has been
appointed with effect from 07.06.2024 as Director (Finance) in the Board of The
Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction Company Limited for a period of five years
from the date of assumption of the charge of the post or till the date of his superannuation,
whichever is earlier.

Pursuant to the order of Ministry of Heavy Industries vide Reference No. 12(1)/2020-PE-
III dated 08th July 2025 Shri Naresh Kumar has been appointed with effect from
14.07.2025 as Director (Technical) in the Board of Directors of The Braithwaite Burn
and Jessop Construction Company Limited for a period of five years from the date of
assumption of the charge of the post or till the date of his superannuation, whichever is earlier.

09222808 Shri Udai Bhan Singh,

2 nos. of Sanctioned Strength for Non-official Independent Director in the Board of
Directors of the Company are vacant.
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Meetings Held

: Directors’
(Board & Audit Meeting No. & Date of Meeting / Members
Committee) Attendance
Board Meetings held ') (74, b 214 Meeting on 28-06-2024 | Attended by all
during the Financial
Year 2024-25 168th Board Meeting on 08-08-2024 Attended by all
169th Board Meeting on 03-12-2024 | Attended by all
170th Board Meeting on 21-03-2025 Attended by all
) ) 73rd Meeting on 28-06-2024 Attended by all
Audit Committee
Meetings held 74th Meeting on 08-08-2024 Attended by all
During financial year | 75th Meeting on 03-12-2024 Attended by all
2024-25
76th Meeting on 21-03-2025 Attended by all
Board has Re-constituted Audit Committee of total 2 Members
comprising Government Nominee Director & Functional
Director.
This re-constitution shall continue till Independent Directors
are appointed in the Board.
Audit Committee

Role and the Terms of | @
Reference :

To attend the Matters specified under para 4.2 of the
Guideline on Corporate Governance for Public Enterprises
and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

e To act as link between the Management ,the Statutory and
Internal Auditors and the Board of Directorss

e To assesses financial reporting system and Risk related
matters

Composition ,

Board Meetings & Name of Directors

Board Meetings attendance during FY 2024-25

Attendance Cmde. Rakesh Chhillar | Meeting held -04 Attended - 04
Shri Aditya Kumar Ghosh | Meeting held -03 Attended — 03
Shri Rajiv Kumar Singh | Meeting held -03 Attended — 03
Shri Sujit Kumar Ghosh | Meeting held -04 Attended - 04

Smt. Sarla Devi

Meeting held -03

Attended — 03

Shri Udai Bhan Singh

Meeting held -01

Attended - 01

Composition ,
Audit Committee
Meetings &
Attendance

Name of Directors

Audit Committee Meetings attendance during FY 2023-24

Shri Rajiv Kumar Singh

Meeting held -03

Attended — 03

Shri Aditya Kumar Ghosh

Meeting held -03

Attended — 03

Smt. Sarla Devi

Meeting held -03

Attended — 03

Shri Udai Bhan Singh

Meeting held -01

Attended — 01

Shri Sujit Kumar Ghosh

Meeting held -01

Attended — 01

All the recommendations in the financial year 2024-25, made by Audit Committee of the

Board, which were mandatorily required, were accepted by the Board of Directors.
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Board has Re-constituted Audit Committee of total 2 Members comprising Government
Nominee Director & Functional Director.

This re-constitution shall continue till nomination of Independent Directors is received
from MHI.

CSR and other | During Financial Year 2024-25, one Meeting i.e. 13th CSR Committee Meeting was held
Committee on 21st March 2025. All the Members were present in this Meeting.
Meetings
Independent Independent Directors are appointed by the Govt. Orders, having expertise/experience in
Directors their respective field/profession. The Independent Directors are neither connected nor
related to the Promoters and do not have pecuniary relationship with the Company and
further do not hold two percent or more of the total voting power of the Company.
Due to vacant position of Non-official Independent Director in the Board of Directors of
the Company, declaration from the Independent Directors as per the requirement under
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.
The sitting Fees of Independent Directors are within the limits prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.
Code of Conduct | The Draft Code of Conduct for Members of the Board and Senior Management as laid
down has been Implemented.
In terms of Clause 3.4.2 of the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public
Sector Enterprises 2010 issued by the DPE, the declaration by C&MD that all Board
members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code on an
annual basis for the FY 2024-25 is given under relevant portion of the Directors’ Report.
. Meeting No. and . Special
General Body Fin. Year Dga te Time & Venue Res[:)lu tion
Meetings 15:30 Hours at the Registered
. 36th AGM, Office of the Company at 27, R. N. .
Particulars of 2021-2022 September 30, 2022 | Mukherjee Road, Kolkata — 700 001, Nil
last three Annual W. Benoal
General Meetings : £ .
(AGM) 11:00 Hours at the Registered
20022023 37th AGM, Office of the Company at 27, R. N. Nil
September 30, 2023 | Mukherjee Road, Kolkata— 700 001,
W. Bengal
o, [0 Mo e Koo
2023-24 1 August31,2024 |\ kheriee Road, Kolkata— 700001, | 1
W. Bengal

All AGMs were held within the prescribed time limit under the Companies Act, 2013.

Annual General
Meeting — 2025

39th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company is scheduled to be held
within the prescribed period as per the requirement of the Companies Act 2013 i.e. within
September 2025.
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Other Disclosures

Transactions of material nature with | Nil
Directors or their relatives that may
have potential conflict with the Interest
of the Company

Related Party Transactions Disclosed, attached to Accounts for the year
ended March 31, 2025

Details of non-compliances by Company | Nil

or strictures imposed on it

Whistle Blower Policy and affirmation | It is affirmed that none was denied access to
that no personnel has been denied access | the Audit Committee
to Audit Committee

Details of Compliance of the | Complied.

requirements of these Guidelines In the Board of Directors of the Company, 2
nos. of Sanctioned Strength for Non-official
Independent Directors are vacant.

Details of Presidential Directives issued | No Directives are pending for compliance
by Central Govt. & their Compliance
during the year & last three years

Items of Expenses debited in Books of | Nil
Accounts not for business purposes

Expenditure incurred which are personal | Nil
in nature and incurred for the Board of
Directors & Top Management

Means of Being an Unlisted Government Company, quarterly Results are not required to be
Communications | published in the News Papers.
Annual Audited Financial Results are displayed on the Company’s website
Address for Correspondence: The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction
Company Limited, 27, Rajendra Nath Mukherjee Road. Kolkata — 700001, West Bengal.
Web-site : www.bbjconst.com
e-mail . info@bbjconst.com
Telephone : 91 332248 5841-44 (EPBX)
913322103961 (FAX)
Audit Management Reply on the Auditors’ Observation has also been placed along with the
Qualifications | Report of Statutory Auditors in the Audited Financial Statement section of this Annual
Report.
Training Policy for Training of Board Members is approved by the Board and is followed by the
Company.
Corporate Certificate of the Statutory Auditors on Corporate Governance is received and annexed to
Governance Audit | the Directors’ Report.
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members,

The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction Co. Ltd.,
27, R.N.Mukherjee Road,

Kolkata-700001, West Bengal

&
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We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by The Braithwaite
Burn and Jessop Construction Co. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025 as stipulated in Clause 8.2.1 of Guidelines on Corporate
Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs), 2010 issued by the Department of
Public Enterprises (DPE), Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of
India (hereinafter referred to as “the Guidelines™).

Compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management.
Our examination has been limited to review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted
by the Company, for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated in the Guidelines. It is neither an Audit nor an expression of opinion of financial
statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
we hereby certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance
during Financial Year 2024-25, as stipulated in Guidelines.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For Batliboi, Purohit & Darbari
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number 303086E

Hemal Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 063404
UDIN: 2506340YBMIJMIF8&8820
Chartered Accountants
Place: Kolkata
Date: 25 June 2025

I N
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Format For The Annual Report on CSR Activities to be Included in the Board’s Report For
Financial Year Commencing on or After 1st Day of April, 2020

Annexure —II as prescribed under Rule 8 of The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibilit
Policy) Rules. 2014]
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

In alignment with the vision of the Company, BBJ through its CSR initiatives, approved CSR Policy in the
Board Meeting held on Sept., 2012 for the first time and made subsequent amendments thereafter to keep
pace with dynamic changes made from time to time in the CSR related matters under the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rules framed thereunder, addressing various areas which inter-alia included the following:

° Planning of the CSR Project
Baseline Survey
Process of Implementation

Funding, Monitoring and Qualifying Criteria for executing agency

In the areas of Health, Education, Sanitation and Public Health etc. including contribution to the Fund
notified under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

CSR Guidelines of the Department of Public Enterprises read with guidelines as prescribed under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:
Composition of CSR Committee is as under :-

SI. No. Name of Director Designation / Nature of Directorship
1. Shri Udai Bhan Singh Government Nominee Director - Chairman
2. Shri Sujit Kumar Ghosh Director (Finance) - Member

Number of meetings of CSR Committee held during the year: 1 (One) CSR Committee Meetings was
held in the FY 2024-25

Number of meetings of CSR Committee attended during the year: Attendance in CSR Committee
Meeting is given hereunder:

12th CSR Committee Meeting held on 21-03-2025 was attended by all the Members as follows:

S.No. Name Designation / Nature of Directorship
1. Shri Udai Bhan Singh Government Nominee Director - Chairman
2. Shri Sujit Kumar Ghosh Director (Finance) - Member

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company.

° Weblink: https://bbjconst.com/rti.html

4.  Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8
of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).

° Not Applicable.
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Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

° Not applicable
Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

The average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) for immediately preceding three Financial Years
is as follows:

Financial Year Profit Before Tax (Rupees Lakhs)
2021-22 494.13
2022-23 1309.43
2023-24 2795.32
Average Net Profit 1532.96

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
Rs. 30.66 Lakhs (which is 2% of Average Net Profit of FY 2021-22 , 2022-23 & 2023-24)
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years.
None
(©) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any
None
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).
Total CSR obligation for the financial year 2024-25 is Rs.30.66 Lakhs

(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount
Spent for the Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule
open to Unspent CSR Account VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)
Financial Year. | g4 per section 135(6). p P! '
(in Rs.) (in Rs.) (in Rs.)
Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
' transfer. Fund ’ transfer.
30.66 Lakhs* 27.03.2025
Nil PM Cares Fund 30.66 Lakhs
(FY 2024-25) (FY 2024-25)
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
M @ A3) 4) () (6) (7) (8) (€] (10) 1)
Sl. [ Name | Item from | Local | Location of the | Pro- | Amount allo- | Amount spent| Amount | Mode of Mode of
No.| ofthe | thelistof | area project ject | cated for the | inthe current| trans- [Implementa- Implementation -
Project |activities in| (Yes/ dura- | project (in Rs.) | financial Year | ferred to | tion - Direct Through
Schedule | No) tion. (in Rs.) Unspent [ (Yes/No) | Implementing Agency
VII to the CSR
Act. Account
State | District for the Name CSR
project Registration
as per number
Section
135(6)
(in Rs.)
Not Applicable
() Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: N.A.
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads- N.A.
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable- N.A.
() Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)- N.A.
(2) Excess amount for set off, if any- N.A.
SI. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
)] Two percent of average net profit of the company as per| Rs.30.66 Lakhs (FY 2024-25)
section 135(5)
(i1) Total amount spent for the Financial Year * Rs.30.66 Lakhs (FY 2024-25)
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(1)] Nil
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or Nil
activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years Nil
[(ii1)-(iv)]
(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Amount Amount transferred to any fund Amount
. transferred to | Amount spent | specified under Schedule VIl as | remaining to
Preceding . . . . .
SI. . . Unspent CSR | in the reporting per section 135(6), if any. be spent in
Financial . . .
No. Year Account under | Financial Year succeeding
" |section 135 (6) (in Rs.). Name of Amount | Date of | financial years.
(in Rs.) the Fund | (in Rs). transfer. (in Rs.)
Not Applicable
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial

year(s): Not Applicable
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details)- NIL

Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)- Nil
Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset- Nil

Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc-Nil

Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of
the capital asset)-Nil

11.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section

135(5).

Date :

Not Applicable in view of point 6 above.

(Charman & Managing Director). (Chairperson, CSR Committee).

20th August 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION CO. LTD.

Report on the Audit of the standalone financial statements

Revised Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

On the basis of the observation made by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, this revised audit report
has been prepared to substitute the earlier report dated 25 June, 2025 to comply with the observations by the

Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop
Construction Company Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including

a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2025, and its profit(including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for

the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Note No.7 current assets include loan of Rs.5932.96 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.5932.96 lakhs) and interest
accrued Rs.33656.29 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.33656.29 lakhs) to Bharat Process and Mechanical
Engineers Ltd (BPMEL), a subsidiary company and loan of Rs.656.03 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.656.03
lakhs) and interest accrued Rs.350.26 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.350.26 lakhs) to Weigh bird India Ltd
(WIL), a subsidiary of the company. Note No.16, Borrowings includes loan from GOI Rs.6588.99 lakhs
(31 March 2024 Rs.6588.99 lakhs) and Note No.20, Other Financial Liabilities, includes interest payable
Rs.34006.55 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.340006.55 lakhs) on said GOI loans. BPMEL is under liquidation
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since 2004 with company s admitted claims of Rs. 39898.01 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.39898.01 lakhs) and
WIL dissolved in 2020 after completion of all liquidation proceedings.

Notwithstanding the status of above subsidiaries, based on facts that loans due to said subsidiaries along
with interest and loans from GOI along with accrued interest representing same, as per internal assessment
made by the company same have been carried at cost. As no assessment and consequent provision for loss
allowance of loans and accrued interest have been made in the financial statement for the year its specific

financial implication on company s profitability and liabilities/assets for the year is unascertained.

2. Note No.7 Other Financial Assets, Advance to Creditors comprises Rs.571.56 lakhs (31 March 2024
Rs.571.56 lakhs) to different parties against which a corresponding liability of Rs.885.25 lakhs (31 March
2024 Rs.885.25 lakhs) stands on date. Company considered the same as good and no adjustments have
been made during the year. Due to pending such adjustments, with advance to creditors and corresponding
liabilities, specific financial implication on company s profitability and liabilities/assets for the year is

unascertained.

3. Note no.5 Investments includes Rs.486.30 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.486.30 lakhs) in Bharat Process and
Mechanical Engineers Ltd (BPMEL), an erstwhile subsidiary company, Rs.2558.01 lakhs (31 March 2024
Rs.2558.01 lakhs) in Jessop & Co. Ltd, both are under liquidation. Based on internal assessment made
by the management, notwithstanding the status of above entities as at the reporting date, said investments
have been carried atcost. As no assessment and consequent provisions for impairment in the value of such
investments have been made in the financial statement during the year its specific financial implication on

company s profitability and liabilities/assets for the year is unascertained.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs),as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial

statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements:

1.  Note No.7 Other Financial Assets-Current includes other advances of Rs.26.21 lakhs (31 March 2024
Rs.26.21 lakhs) comprises of Rs. 15.76 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs. 15.76 lakhs) for deposit against sales tax
appeal and balance of Rs. 10.45 lakhs (31 Marcg 2024 Rs. 10.45 lakhs) as salary advance which is under

reconciliation.
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2. Note No.13 Other Current Assets includes deposited as advance with Statutory Authorities Rs.21.84 lakhs
(31 March 2024 Rs.21.84 lakhs) which are very old. The Company is in process of reconciliation and

adjusting the same.

3. Note No.58, the company has not considered any interest accrued for current financial year on loans of
Rs.6588.99 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.6588.99 lakhs) granted both to Bharat Process and Mechanical
Engineers Ltd. a subsidiary, which is under liquidation and to Weigh bird India Ltd. (WIL) a subsidiary,
closed as per Calcutta High court Order dated 07 February 2020 in view of non-recoverability thereof.

Also, the company has not considered any interest payable for current financial year on loans of Rs.6588.99
lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.6588.99 lakhs) from the Government of India, which was used for granting loans

to the aforesaid subsidiary companies.

4. Note No.54, balances of some trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances etc. incorporated in
the books as per balances appearing in the relevant subsidiary records, are subject to confirmation from the
respective parties and consequential adjustments arising from reconciliation, if any. The Company however

is of the view that there will be no material discrepancies in this regard.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

“Other Information”

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
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other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or

has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures

in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
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are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31
March 2025 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”a

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial

statements except for the matters described in Basis for Qualified Opinion Section;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books except for the possible effect of the matter described

in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement

with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015, as amended except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
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Opinion section;
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on31 March 2025 taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March2025 from

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B” to this report. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone

financial statements;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed impact of pending litigations on its financial position in

standalone financial statements refer note 31 and note 43 to standalone financial statement;

il. The Company has entered into long term construction contracts and has accounted for
foreseeable loss of Rs.362.38 lakhs as at the end of financial year on unexecuted portion of

long-term contracts. The company has not entered into any derivative contract;

1. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a)  The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b)  The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties”),with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of

the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(c)  Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause(i) and (ii) of Rulell(e), as provided

under(a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

V. During the year by the company has declared and paid dividend for the year 2023-24 and

is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used accounting
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software for maintaining its books of accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail

(edit log) facility and the same has operated during the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the application. During the course of our audit, we have not come across any

instance of audit trail feature being tampered with respect to the accounting software.

Additionally, the audit trail of previous year has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the

previous year.

(h) As required by sub-section (5) of section 143 of the Act and in terms of directions issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India during audit of annual accounts of The Braithwaite Burn

and Jessop Construction Company Limited, we give a report in the attached Annexure “C”

For Batliboi, Purohit & Darbari
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 303086E

Hemal Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 063404
UDIN: 25063404BMIMKG3167
Place: Kolkata
Date: 5August2025
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND
JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED, FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

section of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

1. Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

I (a)

(b)

(A) TheCompany has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

Plant, property & equipment were physically verified by the management during the year and
according to the information and explanation given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification. It has been observed during our audit that the locations of the Plant, Property &
Equipment are not mentioned in the Fixed Assets Register excepts in cases of new Purchase during
the year.

Building includes permanent structures amounting to Rs. 131.46 lakh (Previous year Rs. 131.46
lakh) on land at Circular Garden Reach Road, Kolkata obtained under License/Rent Agreement from
Shyma Prasad Mukherjee Port Trust (Earlier Kolkata Port Trust). The company is regular in payment
of rental but copy of the deed/agreement has not been furnished to us for our verification.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during
the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 31
March 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(as amended in 2016) and rules made there under.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the management of the Company has
conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year and in our opinion
the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a working capital limit
in excess of X 5 crore sanctioned/renewed by banks on the basis of security of current assets and the
quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks are in agreement with the books
of accounts of the Company.
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III.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any investment
in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advance in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties during the year. Hence,
clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

IV.  According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, the Company has not given
any loans, made any investment, provided any guarantees and given any security to which the provision
of section 185 and 186 of the Company Act 2013 are applicable. Hence, clause 3 (iv) of the order is not
applicable.

V.  According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, the Company has not accepted
or is not holding any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections
73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rule, 2014. Hence, reporting under clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

VI. According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, the maintenance of cost
records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

VII. In respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined by
us, the company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities the undisputed statutory
dues relating to Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax,
Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and
other statutory dues as applicable to it have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company
with the appropriate authorities except for delay in few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Income tax, Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues were in
arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable
except as stated below.

S. No Nature of Dues Amount (Rs. in Lakh) | Period to which it Relates (FY)
1 Professional Tax 0.66
2 Tax Collected on Source 0.16
3 Service Tax Payable (BBUNL) 1.94 Old Dues
4 Tax Deducted at Source 1.45
5 Sales Tax 1.54
6 Income Tax 4.57 2006-07
7 Income Tax 2.35 2008-09
8 Income Tax 0.08 2012-13

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the books and records
examined by us, as may be applicable, given herein below are the details of dues of income tax, sales
tax, service tax, provident fund which have not been deposited on account of disputes and the forum
where the dispute is pending:
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& SI. Name of the P.erlod of Forum where dispute is A.mount
) No Statute Nature of Dues | which relates pending/dismissed (in Rs.
e ) (F.Y) Lakh)
(: 1 W.B. Value Added | Works Contract 2011-12 Joint Commissioner of 430
% Tax Act, 2003 Tax Commercial Taxes )
E ) Bihar Value added | Works Contract 2010-11 Joint Commissioner of 3395
- Tax Act, 2005 Tax Commercial Taxes ’
< Bihar Value added | Works Contract Joint Commissi f
S ihar Value adde orks Contrac i oint Commissioner o
% 3 Tax Act, 2005 Tax 2011-12 Commercial Taxes 30.98
< Service tax
Demand, Interest
thereon under 2007-08 to The Customs, Excise &
4 | Finance Act, 1994 section 75 2011-12 Service Tax Appellate
(amount not ) Tribunal 154.45
qualified) and
penalty imposed
Provident Fund
Commissioner, RO, Kolkata,
West Bengal has raised the
demand. The Company has
Employees preferred an appeal before
Provident Fund Employees Provident Fund
5 | and Miscellaneous I Dantlages/bl ng/ggg 8to Appellate Tribunal New Delhi | 54.14
Provisions Act nterest payable and before Hon’ble High
1952 Court, Calcutta. Demand
amount is Rs. 96.10 lakhs &
fund with BBUNL Provident
Fund Trust Organisation Rs.
41.96 lakhs
Delhi Value Added | Works Contract .
6 Tax Act, 2004 Tax 2004-05 Commercial Tax Department 19.36
7 Bihar GST TRAN 1 Interest 2017-18 Appellate Tribunal 12.55
W.B. Value Added | Works Contract .
8 Tax Act, 2003 Tax 2016-17 Appellate Authority 0.21
9 Income Tax Income Tax 2009-10 Commissioner of Income Tax 10.65
Demand (Appeal)
10 Income Tax Income Tax 2010-11 Jurisdiction Assessing Officer 0.96
Demand
1 Income Tax Income Tax 2011-12 Commissioner of Income Tax 69.95
Demand (Appeal)
Income Tax C e .
12 Income Tax Demand 2012-13 Jurisdiction Assessing Officer 78531
Income Tax e .
13 Income Tax Demand 2013-14 Jurisdiction Assessing Officer 66.80
14 Income Tax Income Tax 1999-2000 Income Tax Appellate 58.67
Demand Tribunal
15 Income Tax Income Tax 2014-15 Jurisdiction Assessing Officer 4.94
Demand

I [
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SL. Name of the P.erlod of Forum where dispute is A.mount
No Statute Nature of Dues | which relates ending/dismissed (in Rs.
' (F.Y) pending Lakh)
16 | Chhattisgarh GsT |  TX¢ess ITC 2019-2020 Joint Commissioner 5.15
claimed

VIII. According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, there were no transactions
relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

IX. (a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(b)

XI. (a)

(b)

(©)

According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings to banks or in the payment of the interest thereon.

According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, the Company has not
been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, the Company has not taken
any term loan during the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, on an overall examination
of the standalone financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short- term basis have, not
been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, an overall examination
of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary companies or joint
ventures.

According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, the Company has not
raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, the Company has not
raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, during the year, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully
or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, no fraud by the Company
and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by us in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

There are no whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the company.

XII. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

XIII. According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, the Company is in compliance
with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the
related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

XIV.(a)

In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
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the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and till the date
of our audit report.

XV. According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

XVI. According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, the Company is not required
to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable.

XVII. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and the immediately preceding
financial year.

XVIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, there are no unspent
amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section
135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for
the year.

(b) The Company has no ongoing projects. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is
not applicable for the year

For Batliboi, Purohit & Darbari
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 303086E

Place: Kolkata
Date: 5 August 2025 Hemal Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 063404
UDIN: 25063404BMJMKG3167



BEd]

THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

Annexure -B

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statementsof The Braithwaite
Burn and Jessop Construction Company Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with
our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements based on “the internal control with reference to standalone financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at
31 March 2025, based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Batliboi, Purohit & Darbari
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 303086E

Hemal Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 063404
UDIN: 25063404BMJIMKG3167
Place: Kolkata
Date: 5 August 2025
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Annexure - C

ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

CAG’s directions to statutory auditor under section 143(5) of the Companies Act 2013 applicable to the
financial statements of Government Companies for the year 2024-25.

Directions u/s 143(5) of the companies Act, 2013

Auditor’s reply on action taken on the directions

() Accounting software
Whether the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transaction through IT
system? If yes, the implication of processing of
accounting transaction outside IT system on the
integrity of the accounts along with the financial
implication, if any, may be stated.

The company is using accounting software named Tally
Prime and processes all the accounting transactions
through it except Stock which is being accounted for
manually. According to information and explanation
given to us, no accounting transactions are processed
outside the aforesaid accounting software, which is
currently in use by the company.

(IT) Debt restructuring
Whether there is any restructuring of an existing
loans or cases of waiver/ write off of debts/ loans /
interest etc. made by a lender to the company due
to the company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes,
the financial impact may be stated.

There were no restructuring of an existing loans or
cases of waiver/ write off of debts/ loans / interest etc.
made by a lender to the company due to the company’s
inability to repay the loan.

(IlI)Treatment of Govt. Fund/ Grant
Whether funds received/ receivable for specific
scheme from central/ state agencies were properly
accounted for/ utilized as per its terms and
condition?

List the cases of deviation.

According to information and explanation given to us,
no funds received/receivable for specific scheme from
central/state agencies during the year.

For Batliboi, Purohit & Darbari
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 303086E

Place: Kolkata
Date: 5 August 2025

Hemal Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 063404
UDIN: 25063404BMIMKG3167
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MANAGEMENT'’S REPLIES TO THE AUDITOR’S OBSERVATIONS

Rs.5932.96 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.5932.96
lakhs) and interest accrued Rs.33656.29 lakhs
(31 March 2024 Rs.33656.29 lakhs) to Bharat
Process and Mechanical Engineers Ltd (BPMEL),
a subsidiary company and loan of Rs.656.03
lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.656.03 lakhs) and
interest accrued Rs.350.26 lakhs (31 March 2024
Rs.350.26 lakhs) to Weigh bird India Ltd (WIL),
a subsidiary of subsidiary of the company. Note
No-16, Borrowings includes loan from GOI
Rs.6588.99 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.6588.99
lakhs) and Note No.20, Other Financial Liabilities,
includes interest payable Rs.34006.55 lakhs (31
March 2024 Rs.34006.55 lakhs) on said GOI
loans. BPMEL is under liquidation since 2004
with company’s admitted claims of Rs. 39898.01
lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.39898.01 lakhs) and WIL
dissolved in 2020 after completion of all liquidation
proceedings.

Notwithstanding the status of above subsidiaries,
based on facts that loans due to said subsidiaries
along with interest and loans from GOI along with
accrued interest representing same, as per internal
assessment made by the company same have been
carried at cost. As no assessment and consequent
provision for loss allowance of loans and accrued
interest have been made in the financial statement
for the year its specific financial implication on
company’s profitability and liabilities/assets for the
year is unascertained.

133 Audit Observations Management Replies
Qualified Opinions
1 Note No.7 current assets include loan of|GOI loans to erstwhile subsidiaries of BBUNL

(now BBJ) towards Plan and Non-Plan purposes
were routed through BBUNL (erstwhile Holding
Company) for disbursement to respective
subsidiaries. Irrespective of status of subsidiaries,
in case of any eventuality of non-realizability
of such loan and interest thereon, same to be
adjusted with the corresponding amount of loan
and interest payable to GOI, with appropriate
directives from GOI. Regarding carrying of such
loans to subsidiaries at cost is based on company’s
Significant Accounting Policies at Para.17 and the
same is being followed consistently over the years.
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Note No.7 Other Financial Assets, Advance to
Creditors comprises Rs.571.56 lakhs (31 March
2024 Rs.571.56 lakhs) to different parties against
which a corresponding liability of Rs.885.25
lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.885.25 lakhs) stands on
date. Company considered the same as good and
no adjustments have been made during the year.
Due to pending such adjustments, with advance
to creditors and corresponding liabilities, specific
financial implication on company’s profitability
and liabilities/assets for the year is unascertained.

Such advances were given to different parties for
executing projects and their bills remain unadjusted
till date. For cases where credit balances are lying
unadjusted against the contracts same to be adjusted
accordingly and for rest, necessary follow- up to
be made for their recoveries. In case of any non-
recovery or any pending adjustment, appropriate
provision to be made on case-to-case basis.

Note no.5 Investments includes Rs.486.30 lakhs (31
March 2024 Rs.486.30 lakhs) in Bharat Process and
Mechanical Engineers Ltd (BPMEL), an erstwhile
subsidiary company, Rs.2558.01 lakhs (31 March
2024 Rs.2558.01 lakhs) in Jessop & Co. Ltd, both
are under liquidation. Based on internal assessment
made by the management, notwithstanding the
status of above entities as at the reporting date,
said investments have been carried at cost. As
no assessment and consequent provisions for
impairment in the value of such investments have
been made in the financial statement during the
year its specific financial implication on company’s
profitability and liabilities/assets for the year is
unascertained.

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture are carries at cost as per
company’s Significant Accounting Policies Para.17.
Erstwhile BBUNL (now BBJ) made investments
into such subsidiaries out of equity fund released by
GOI for corresponding investments into specified
subsidiary. Irrespective of status of subsidiaries, in
case of any differences in realizable value of such
investments, with appropriate directives from GOI,
the company will make necessary adjustments into
its books of accounts.

Emphasis of Matters

Note No.7 Other Financial Assets-Current includes
other advances for Rs.26.21 lakhs (31 March 2024
Rs.26.21 lakhs) comprises of Rs.15.76 lakhs (31
March 2024 15.76 lakhs) for deposit against sales
tax appeal and balance of Rs. 10.45 lakhs (31
March 2024 Rs. 10.45 Lakhs) as salary advance
which is under reconciliation.

A list of such advances is given to Note No.49
of Notes forming part of Financial Statements.
Company will thoroughly inquire into all such
advances and wherever appropriate necessary
follow-up be made for its recovery/adjustment.

Note No.13 Other Current Assets includes
deposits as advance with Statutory Authorities
Rs.21.84 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.21.84 lakhs)
which are very old. The company is in process of
reconciliation adjusting the same.

Alistofsuch deposits is given to Note No.50 of Notes
forming part of Financial Statements. Company
will thoroughly inquire into all such deposits and
wherever appropriate necessary follow-up be made
for their recovery/adjustment.
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Note No,58, the company has not considered
any interest accrued for current financial year
on loans of Rs.6588.99 lakhs (31 March 2024
Rs.6588.99 lakhs) granted both to Bharat Process
and Mechanical Engineers Ltd. a subsidiary, which
is under liquidation and to Weigh bird India Ltd.
(WIL) a subsidiary, closed as per Calcutta High
court Order dated 07th February, 2020 in view of
non-recoverability thereof.

Also, the company has not considered any interest
payable for current financial year on loans of
Rs.6588.99 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.6588.99
lakhs) from the Government of India, which was
used for granting loans to the aforesaid subsidiary
companies.

GOl loans to erstwhile subsidiaries of BBUNL (now
BBJ) towards Plan and Non-Plan purpose were
routed through BBUNL (then Holding Company)
for disbursement to respective subsidiaries.
Irrespective of status of subsidiaries, in case of
any eventuality of non-realizability of such loan
and interest thereon, same to be adjusted with the
corresponding amount of loan and interest payable
to GOI, with their appropriate directives. As the
subsidiaries are under liquidation/ closed, interest
on such loan and advances have not been provided
into books. Since, realization of interest is uncertain
from subsidiary companies.

Note No.54, balances of some trade receivables,
trade payables, loans and advances etc. incorporated
inthe books as per balances appearing in the relevant
subsidiary records, are subject to confirmation
from the respective parties and consequential
adjustments arising from reconciliation, if any. The
Company however is of the view that there will be
no material discrepancies in this regard.

Confirmation from some parties have since been
received and shown to the Auditors. However,
observation of the auditors is noted for further
compliance.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR
GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The preparation of financial statements of The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction Company Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion
on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the
standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide
their Revised Audit Report dated 05 August 2025 which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 25 June 2025.

1, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the
financial statements of The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction Company Limited for the year ended 31
March 2025 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently
without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory
auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

In view of the revision made in the statutory auditor’s report, to give effect to some of my audit observations raised
during supplementary audit, I have no further comments to offer upon or supplement to the statutory auditors’
report under section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Audit General of India

(Yashodhara Ray Chaudhari)
Additional Deputy Comptroller
and Auditor General (Mines) Kolkata
Place: Kolkata

Date: 12 August 2025
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March’2025

v
g (All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)
§ As at As at
% Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
E Assets
b Non-current assets
5 Property, plant and equipment 2 490.56 572.94
% Intangible assets 3 3.94 8.47
< Capital work-in-progress 4 - -
Financial assets
Investments 5 3,179.16 3,174.47
Trade receivables 6 - -
Others 7 4,839.82 5,457.91
Deferred tax assets, net 8 719.82 639.15
9,233.30 9,852.93
Current assets
Inventories 9 2,802.85 3,853.50
Financial assets
Trade receivables 6 1,987.61 2,343.28
Cash and cash equivalents 10 5,190.80 2,280.41
Other bank balances 11 13,945.21 13,695.70
Others 7 43,579.61 43,769.24
Current Tax Assets 12 - 456.29
Other Current Assets 13 6,245.06 982.49
73,751.14 67,380.91
Total assets 82,984.44 77,233.83
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 14 12,086.05 12,086.05
Other equity 15 14,291.54 11,644.53
Total equity 26,377.59 23,730.58
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 16 192.11 217.92
Other financial liabilities 20 69.89 121.49
Trade payables 19

I N
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As at As at

A

THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED B

Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 §

[a\}

5

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 323.96 323.55 E
enterprises and small enterprises g
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - §
enterprises j
Provisions 17 418.34 441.98 =)
Other non-current liabilities 18 4,135.28 4,156.89 %

5,139.58 5,261.82

Current liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 16 6,589.00 6,589.00
Lease Liabilities - -
Trade payables 19 - -

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 499.00 501.04
enterprises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - -
enterprises (refer note 36)

Other financial liabilities 20 38,233.69 38,369.00
Other current liabilities 18 6,013.08 2,701.14
Current tax liabilities 21 90.98 -
Provisions 17 41.52 81.26

51,467.27 48,241.43
Total liabilities 56,606.85 53,503.26
Total equity and liabilities 82,984.44 77,233.83
Material accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial

statements.
As per our report of even date for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For BATLIBOIL, PUROHIT & DARBARI The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction
Chartered Accountants Company Limited
Firm’s Registration Number: 303086E CIN: U70100WB1986G0O1041286
Hemal Mehta N K Mishra S K Ghosh
Partner Company Secretary Director (Finance)
Membership No. 063404 PAN - AIQPM3388P DIN - 10659781
UDIN : 25063404BMIMIES079
Place: Kolkata Cmde. Rakesh Chhillar (Retd.)
Date: 25.06.2025 Chairman & Managing Director

DIN - 09832486

I E1
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THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March’2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventories and work in progress
Sub Contract & other conversion charges
Consumption of Stores, Spares & Loose Tools
Employee's benefit expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expense

Profit before tax
Tax expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax

Total tax expense
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Income-tax effect

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share (nominal value of INR 1,000)

in INR
Basic
Diluted

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial

statements.
As per our report of even date

For BATLIBOI, PUROHIT & DARBARI
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 303086E

Hemal Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 063404
UDIN : 25063404BMJMIE5079

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25.06.2025

Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

22 18,276.59 25,010.37
23 1,301.48 1,064.61
19,578.07 26,074.99
24 556.02 6,449.10
25 959.74 536.78
25A 9,879.07 10,644.07
25B 80.79 453.02
26 2,350.97 3,325.23
27 50.84 69.29
28 119.49 149.72
29 1,572.51 1,652.45
15,569.43 23,279.67
4,008.63 2,795.32
30 1,029.68 730.29
30 (80.67) 1.99
949.01 732.29
3,059.62 2,063.03
30 - -
3,059.62 2,063.03

37
253.15 170.70
253.15 170.70

1

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction

Company Limited
CIN: U70100WB1986G0I1041286

N K Mishra
Company Secretary
PAN - AIQPM3388P

Cmde. Rakesh Chhillar (Retd.)
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN - 09832486

Director (Finance)
DIN - 10659781
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March’2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

I. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of tangible assets
Amoritsation of intangible assets
Profit on sale Property, Plant & Equipment (Net)
Interest income on bank and Security Deposits
Deferred Assets
Investment impairment
Finance costs
Apportioned Income from Government Grant
Interest income
Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in working capital:
Adjustment for (increase)/decrease in operating assets
Trade receivables
Inventories
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Adjustment for (increase)/decrease in operating liabilities
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

II. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (including
capital work in progress)

Disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (including
capital work in progress)

(Investments in)/ redemption of term deposits with Banks with
original maturities of more than 3 months

Interest received

Deposits with Bank having maturity if more than one year from the
balance sheet date

Net cash used in investing activities

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

4,008.63 2,795.32
113.53 142.33
5.96 7.38
(4.67) (2.03)
(1,245.64) (962.73)
- (19.29)

- 0.30

50.84 69.29
(4.69) (4.47)
2,923.96 2,026.11
355.67 433.35
1,050.65 816.21
593.80 569.66
(5,262.57) 451.08
(1.64) (2,070.67)
(186.91) 330.53
3,311.94 672.52
(63.37) 33.18
2,721.53 3,261.97
(482.42) (593.53)
2,239.11 2,668.44
(34.76) (47.64)
6.86 2.06
(249.51) (5,451.59)
1,245.64 962.73
213.92 1,697.71
1,182.15 (2,836.72)
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For the year ended For the year ended

§ 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
g II1. Cash flows from financing activities
‘: Proceeds from/(repayment of) long-term borrowings, net (47.42) (411.99)
% Proceeds from/(repayment of) short-term borrowings, net - -
A Interest paid (50.84) (69.29)
E Final dividend (412.61) (177.17)
j Tax on final dividend - -
E Net cash provided by financing activities (510.87) (658.46)
- Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (I+11+I1T) 2,910.39 (826.74)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,280.41 3,107.15
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 5,190.80 2,280.41
below)
Note:
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash on hand 2.17 2.57
Balances with banks: -
- On current accounts 324.29 229.65
- In deposit accounts with Original Maturity of less than three months 4,864.34 2,048.19
Overdraft from Canara Bank - -
5,190.80 2,280.41
Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial
statements.
As per our report of even date for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For BATLIBOIL, PUROHIT & DARBARI The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction
Chartered Accountants Company Limited
Firm’s Registration Number: 303086E CIN: U70100WB1986GO1041286
Hemal Mehta N K Mishra S K Ghosh
Partner Company Secretary Director (Finance)
Membership No. 063404 PAN - AIQPM3388P DIN - 10659781
UDIN : 25063404BMJMIE5079
Place: Kolkata Cmde. Rakesh Chhillar (Retd.)
Date: 25.06.2025 Chairman & Managing Director

DIN - 09832486
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

a. Equity Share Capital

No. of shares Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2023 12,08,605 12,086.05
Balance as at 31 March 2024 12,08,605 12,086.05
Add: Issued during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 12,08,605 12,086.05
b. Other equity
Share Reserves and Surplus
application | Restructurin
Particulars pll:mney Equity Shareg Capital General Retained 133 3‘;‘::;‘:;; Total
pending Deposit Reserve reserve earnings
allotment Reserve
As at 31 March 2023 - - 0.06 1,473.65 8,181.29 103.66 9,758.66
Profit for the year - - - - 2,063.03 - 2,063.03
Transfer to retained earnings - - - - 12.50 (12.50) -
Final dividend - - - - (177.17) - 177.17)
Tax on final dividend - - - - - - -
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on - - - - - - -
defined benefit plans
Income-tax effect - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 - - 0.06 1,473.65| 10,079.66 91.16| 11,644.53
Profit for the year - - - - 3,059.62 - 3,059.62
Final dividend - - - - (412.61) - (412.61)
Tax on final dividend - - - - - - -
Transfer to retained earnings - - - - 12.50 (12.50) -
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on - - - - - - -
defined benefit plans, net of tax
Income-tax effect - - - - - - -
Balance as of 31 March 2025 - - 0.06 1,473.65| 12,739.17 78.66 | 14,291.54

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial

statements.

As per our report of even date

For BATLIBOI, PUROHIT & DARBARI

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number: 303086E

Hemal Mehta

Partner

Membership No. 063404
UDIN : 25063404BMIMIES079

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25.06.2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

N K Mishra

Company Secretary
PAN - AIQPM3388P

S K Ghosh

The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction
Company Limited

CIN: U70100WB1986G0O1041286

Director (Finance)

DIN - 10659781

Cmde. Rakesh Chhillar (Retd.)
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 09832486
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THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

1 Company Information and Material Accounting Policies

A. Company Overview

The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction Company Limited (‘the Company’) is a Company domiciled
in India and limited by shares(CIN: U70100WB1986G0OI1041286). The address of the Company’s registered
office is 27, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Modi Building, Kolkata - 700001. The Company is primarily involved in
business of construction engineering including fabrication work.

B. Basis of preparation of financial statements

1 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent
amendments thereto, the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified and applicable) and applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956.

2 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Statndard (Ind AS),
under historical cost convention on accrual basis as per provision of the Companies Act, except as otherwise
as mentioned

3 Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed
in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared
and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure requirements
with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule 111
to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements.

4 Functional currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company.
Functional currency of an entity is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates.

All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest lakhs (upto two decimals), except
as stated otherwise.

5 Operating cycle

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule I1I to the Companies Act, 2013.

Assets:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)
operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date.

Liabilities:

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in
its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets/ liabilities respectively. All
other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-
current.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities and contingent
assets at the date of financial statement and the results of operation during the reporting period. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future period affected. Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the accounting
policies and/or the notes to the financial statements.

In order to enhance understanding of the financial statements, information about significant areas of estimation,
uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements is as under:

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the



>
AN

54|
THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the
actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties
in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of
financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and
assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Material accounting policies
Revenue recognition
Revenue from construction contract is recognised as follows

In accordance with IndAS 115 “’Revenue from Contracts with customers”, Revenue is recognised from
construction and service activities is based on “’over time”” method and the company uses the output method
to measure progress of delivery.

When the outcome of individual contracts can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract cost are
recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of completion at the reporting
date. Costs are recognised as incurred and revenue is recognised on the basis of proportion of total cost at the
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d)

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)
reporting date to the estimated total cost of the contract.

The estimated outcome of a contract is considered reliable when all the following conditions are satisfied:
i. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

ii. itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the Company;

iii. the stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably; and
iv. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the contract can be measured reliably.

Expected loss, if any, on a contract is recognised as expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective
of the stage of completion of the contract.

Contracts result in revenue recognised in excess of billings are considered as Contract Assets and advance
payments received against Contracts are considered as Contract Liability. Contract Assets and Contract
Liabilities are presented as part of Current Assets and Current Laibilities in Financial Statements. For
depository works, Contract assets are shown net of deposit received against those contracts.

Contract Assets releate to Company’s right to consideration on certain definite basis for work completed but
not billed at the reporting date. The amount of Contract Assets during the period was impacted by impairment
and / or provisions whenever felt appropriate. Contract Liabilities relate to advance consideration received
from customers for which revenue is recognised over time.

Amounts billed for work performed but yet to be paid by the customer are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as
trade receivables. The amount of retention money held by the customers is disclosed as part of other current
assets and is reclassified as trade receivables when it becomes due for payment.

Sale of Goods: Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the Company has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods, it no longer retains control over the goods sold,
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Company and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can
be measured reliably.

Rendering of services: Revenue from rendering services is recognised when the outcome of a transaction can
be estimated reliably by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. The outcome of a transaction
can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

1. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

2. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company;

3. the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably; and
4. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Stage of completion is determined by the proportion of actual costs incurred to-date, to the estimated total
costs of the transaction.

Unbilled revenue represents value of services performed in accordance with the contract terms but not billed.

Interest Income: Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

e)

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial assets to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend Income: Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is
established.

Leases

Leases are accounted as per Ind AS 116 which has become mandatory from April 1, 2019.

Assets taken on lease are accounted as right-of-use assets and the corresponding lease liability is accounted at
the lease commencement date.

Initially the right-of-use asset is measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, discounted using the
Company’s incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or a rate, or a change in the estimate of the guaranteed residual value, or a
change in the assessment of purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured
in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the rightof-use asset, or is recorded
in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The right-of-use asset is measured by applying cost model i.e. right-of-use asset at cost less accumulated
depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line
method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset
whichever is earlier. Carrying amount of lease liability is increased by interest on lease liability and reduced
by lease payments made.

Lease payments associated with following leases are recognised as expense on straight-line basis: (i) Low
value leases; and (ii) Leases which are short-term.

Assets given on lease are classified either as operating lease or as finance lease. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset. Initially asset held under finance lease is recognised in balance sheet and presented as a receivable at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Finance income is recognised over the lease term, based on a
pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on Company’s net investment in the lease. A lease which
is not classified as a finance lease is an operating lease.

The Company recognises lease receipts in case of assets given on operating leases as income on a straight-
line basis. The Company presents underlying assets subject to operating lease in its balance sheet under the
respective class of asset.
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3 Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the company’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

4 Borrowing costs

Specific borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalized as part of the cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use and
borrowing costs are being incurred. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Borrowing cost includes interest expense, amortization of discounts, ancillary costs incurred in connection
with borrowing of funds and exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they
are regarded as an adjustment to the Interest cost.

5 Income Tax

Income tax expense consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized
in equity.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit; differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent
that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and taxable temporary differences arising
upon the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied
to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on
the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
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A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

6 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares. The basic
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the period by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the year
relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have
been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be
dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share.

7 Property, plant and equipment

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended
use, including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of decommissioning, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period
in which the costs are incurred.

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of PPE.

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE when they
meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, Plant and
Equipment costing Rs.10,000/- or less are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition

7.1 Expenditure during construction period

Expenditure during construction period (including financing cost related to borrowed funds for construction
or acquisition of qualifying PPE) is included under Capital Work-in-Progress, and the same is allocated to the
respective PPE on the completion of their construction. Advances given towards acquisition or construction of
PPE outstanding at each reporting date are disclosed as Capital Advances under “Other non-current Assets”.

7.2 Depreciation
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is provided
as per the Written Down Value Method over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II to the Act.
Depreciable amount for PPE is the cost of PPE less its estimated residual value. The useful life of PPE is the

period over which PPE is expected to be available for use by the Company, or the number of production or
similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the Company.

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of installation or acquisition.
Depreciation on deductions/disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis up to the date of deduction/disposal.
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Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included
in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortized over their respective estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are
available for use.

Amortization

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry
and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected
future cash flows from the asset.

The Company amortizes computer software using the straight-line method over the period of 3 years.

Inventories

Inventories are valued after providing for obsolescence, as under:

(i) Raw materials, components, construction materials, stores, spares and loose tools at lower of weighted
average cost or net realisable value. However, these items are considered to be realisable at cost if the
finished products in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or above cost.

(i1)) Completed property/work-in-progress in respect of construction activity at lower of specifically
identifiable cost or net realisable value.

Assessment of net realisable value (NRV) is made at the end of each reporting period and when the
circumstances that previously caused inventories to be written-down below cost no longer exist or when
there is clear evidence of an increase in net realisable value because of changed economic circumstances, the
write-down, if any, in the past period is reversed to the extent of the original amount written-down so that the
resultant carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised net realisable value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits
with banks that are readily convertible into cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing

activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method, adjusting the profit before

tax excluding exceptional items for the effects of:

(1) changes during the period in inventories and operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-
cash nature;

(il)) non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses; and
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(ii1) all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items
which are not available for general use as at the date of Balance Sheet.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with.

Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are accounted at fair value and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the expected useful life of the asset.

Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
(as defined below) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-
generating unit. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset
or its cash-generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods
are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss
had been recognized. Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate is not
recognized separately, and therefore is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire amount of the
investment in an associate is tested for impairment as a single asset when there is objective evidence that the
investment in an associate may be impaired.

An impairment loss in respect of equity accounted investee is measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of investment with its carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement, and reversed
if there has been a favorable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for
the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement as and when
the services are received from the employees.

Defined benefit plans

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the
projected unit credit method consistent with the advice of qualified actuaries. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related defined benefit obligation. The current service
cost of the defined benefit plan, recognized in the income statement in employee benefit expense, reflects the
increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit changes,
curtailments and settlements. Past service costs are recognized immediately in income. The net interest cost is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value
of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the income statement. Actuarial gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed, without
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the
normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized as an expense if the Company
has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the
number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of other long term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and previous periods. That benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurements are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
in the period in which they arise.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate thatreflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities & contingent assets

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present
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obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related
income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes party to a contract
embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and financial guarantee
contracts are initially measured at transaction values and where such values are different from the fair value,
at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from as the case may be, the fair value of such financial assets or liabilities, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the statement of Profit or Loss.

In case of funding to subsidiary companies in the form of interest free or concession loans and preference
shares, the excess of the actual amount of the funding over initially measured fair value is accounted as an
equity investment.

(i) Financial assets:

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety either at amortised cost or at fair

value depending on the classification of the financial assets as follows:

1. Investments in debt instruments that are designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) - at fair
value.

2. Investments in debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at - at
amortised cost (unless the same designated as fair value through profit or loss):

1) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

ii) The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

3. Investment in debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income [FVTOCI] (unless the same are designated as fair value through
profit or loss)

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

ii) The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

4. Debt instruments at FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments, if any, and all changes are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Investment in equity instruments issued by subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies are measured
at cost less impairment.

Investment in preference shares of the subsidiary companies are treated as equity instruments if the same
are convertible into equity shares or are redeemable out of the proceeds of equity instruments issued for
the purpose of redemption of such investments. Investment in preference shares not meeting the aforesaid
conditions are classified as debt instruments at FVTPL.

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the related instruments are not held
for trading and the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair
value in Other Comprehensive Income.

For financial assets that are measured at FVTOCI, income by way of interest and dividend, provision
for impairment and exchange difference, if any, (on debt instrument) are recognised in profit or loss
and changes in fair value (other than on account of above income or expense) are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in other equity. On disposal of debt instruments at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in other equity is reclassified to profit or loss. In case of
equity instruments at FVTOCI, such cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of investments.

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
1). the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or

i1). the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through
arrangement; and

(a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount measured
at the date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in Profit or Loss.

Impairment of financial assets: The company recognises impairment loss on trade receivables using
expected credit loss model, which involves use of a provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical
credit loss experience as permitted under Ind AS 109. Impairment loss on investments is recognised when
the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

(ii) Financial liabilities:

1.

Financial liabilities, including derivatives and embedded derivatives, which are designated for
measurement at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Financial guarantee contracts are
subsequently measured at the amount of impairment loss allowance or the amount recognised at inception
net of cumulative amortisation, whichever is higher.

All other financial liabilities including loans and borrowings are measured at amortised cost using Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) method.
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2. A financial liability is derecognised when the related obligation expires or is discharged or cancelled.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when
there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended to either
settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Dividends

Dividends and interim dividends payable to Company’s shareholders are recognized as changes in equity in
the period in which they are approved by the shareholders’ meeting and the Board of Directors respectively.

Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the prior
periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period presented, the
opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are restated.

Operating segments

In accordance with Ind AS 108, the operating segments used to present segment information are identified on
the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to allocate resources to the segments and
assess their performance. The Board of Directors is collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision
Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within the meaning of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for internal reporting purposes
may evolve in connection with performance assessment measures put in place.

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate expenses, finance
expenses and income tax expenses.

Revenue directly attributable to the segments is considered as segment revenue. Expenses directly attributable
to the segments and common expenses allocated on a reasonable basis are considered as segment expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Segment assets comprise property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, trade and other receivables,
inventories and other assets that can be directly or reasonably allocated to segments. For the purpose of
segment reporting for the year, property, plant and equipment have been allocated to segments based on the
extent of usage of assets for operations attributable to the respective segments. Segment assets do not include
investments, income tax assets, capital work in progress, capital advances, corporate assets and other current
assets that cannot reasonably be allocated to segments.

Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities in respect of a segment and consist principally of trade
and other payables, employee benefits and provisions. Segment liabilities do not include equity, income tax
liabilities, loans and borrowings and other liabilities and provisions that cannot reasonably be allocated to
segments.
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2 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Plant and Ship | Computers | Furniture | Vehicles Total
Buildings | Machinery | (Speed and
Boat) Fixtures
Cost or Deemed Cost ( Gross Carrying Amount)
As at 31 March 2023 132.63 2,336.73 2.32 92.69 75.41 3721 2,643.49
Additions - 45.54 - 0.38 1.72 - 47.64
Less: Disposal / Adjustments - (1.406) - - - - (1.46)
As at 31 March 2024 132.63 2,380.80 2.32 93.07 77.13 3721 2,689.67
Additions - 4.54 - 28.11 0.68 - 33.33
Less: Disposal / Adjustments (0.00) (49.35) - 0.00 (0.00) 0.00 | (49.35)
As at 31 March 2025 132.63 2,335.99 2.32 121.18 77.81 3.72| 2,673.65
Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 March 2023 89.40 1,732.64 2.29 82.85 64.95 3.68 1,975.82
Additions 4.41 129.83 - 4.43 3.67 0.00 142.33
Less: Disposal / Adjustments - (1.43) - - - - (1.43)
As at 31 March 2024 93.81 1,861.04 2.29 87.29 68.62 3.68| 2,116.73
Additions 4.00 100.18 - 6.47 2.88 0.00 113.53
Less: Disposal / Adjustments - 47.17) - - - -1 (47.17)
As at 31 March 2025 97.81 1,914.05 2.29 93.76 71.50 3.68 | 2,183.09
Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2025 34.82 421.94 0.03 27.42 6.31 0.04 490.56
As at 31 March 2024 38.82 519.76 0.02 5.78 8.52 0.04 572.94
Note:
a) Building includes Rs. 131.46 lakhs (Previous Year - Rs. 131.46 lakhs) in respect of permanent strucutres on lease/
rented land from Syama Prasad Mukherjee Port at Circular Garden Reach Road, Kolkata.
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Particulars Computer
Software

Cost or Deemed Cost ( Gross Carrying Amount)

As at 31 March 2023 46.33

Additions -

As at 31 March 2024 46.33
46.33

Additions 1.44

As at 31 March 2025 47.77

Accumulated amortisation

As at 31 March 2023 30.48

Charge for the year 7.38

As at 31 March 2024 37.87
37.87

Charge for the year 5.96

As at 31 March 2025 43.83

Net Book Value

As at 31 March 2025 3.94

As at 31 March 2024 8.47

4 a. Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)
Particulars CWIP

As at 31 March 2024 -

Additions -

(Transfer) -

As at 31 March 2025

b.  Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) ageing schedule

Amount in CWIP for a period of

year

CWIP Less than 1

1-2 years | 2-3 years

years

More than 3 Total

As at 31 March 2025
Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

Total

As at 31 March 2024
Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

Total
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5 Investments As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current investments
(A) Investments in Equity Instruments

(a) Subsidiary companies (Unquoted, Valued at Cost)
Bharat Process and Mechanical Engineers Ltd* 486.30 486.30
48,630 (31 March 2024 : 48,630) Equity Shares of Rs 1000/- each fully paid-up

(b) Joint Venture companies
Bhagirathi Bridge Construction Company Limited (Unquoted, Valued
at Cost) 0.30 0.30
300 (31 March 2024 : 300 )Equity Shares of Rs 100/- each fully paid-up
Less: Provision (0.30) -

(¢) Other companies
Lagan Jute Machinery Co Ltd. (Unquoted, Valued at Cost) 42.20 42.20
4,22,000 (31 March 2024 : 4,22,000 ) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid-up
Jessop & Co. Ltd. (Unquoted, Valued at Cost)* 2,558.01 2,558.01
2,55,80,122 (31 March 2024 : 2,55,80,122 ) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each
fully paid-up

(Unquoted, Valued at Cost)

3,015 (31 March 2024 : 3,015)fully paid Equity share of Woodlands

Multispeciality Hospital Ltd (earlier “5% Non -Redeemable Registered

Debenture Stock of East India Clinic Ltd.”) 0.16 0.16
(B) Investments in debentures or bonds
99 No. (31 March 2024: 99 No.) ICICI Redeemable Money Multiplier Bond-2026 92.49 87.79
Total investments 3179.16 3,174.47
Aggregate book value of
- quoted investments - -
- unquoted investments 3179.16 3,174.47
Aggregate market value of quoted investments N/A N/A

* Bharat Process and Mechanical Engineers Ltd. (BPMEL) and Jessop & Co. Ltd, earstwhile subsidiaries of Bharat
Bhari Udyog Nigam Ltd (BBUNL), are under liquidation.

6 Trade receivables (Unsecured) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current

Long Term Trade Receviables, considered good 1,108.42 1,108.42

Less: Allowances for doubtful receivables (1,108.42) (1,108.42)

Current

Considered good 3340.51 3,263.01

Considered doubtful - -
3340.51 3,263.01

Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (1352.90) (919.72)

Total trade receivables 1987.61 2,343.28
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Trade receivables (contd.)

Trade receivable ageing
schedule

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Sl
No

Particulars

Not due

Unbilled
amount

<6
months

6month-1
year

1-2
years

2-3
years

> 3 years

Total

vi)

As at March 31,2025

Undisputed Trade Receivables
— considered good

Undisputed Trade Receivables
— which have significant
increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables
— Credit Impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables —
considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase
in credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables —
Credit Impaired

662.52

145.71

489.59

1,001.17

200.34

841.18

1,108.42

3,340.51

1,108.42

Less: Expected Credit loss and
doubtful receivable adjustment

(2,461.32)

Total

1,987.61

i)

vi)

As at March 31,2024

Undisputed Trade Receivables
— considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivables
— which have significant
increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables
— Credit Impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables —
considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables —

which have significant increase
in credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables —
Credit Impaired

2,162.46

147.92

111.44

42.99

798.20

1,108.42

3,263.01

1,108.42

Less: Expected Credit loss and
doubtful receivable adjustment

(2,028.14)

Total

2,343.28
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7 Other Financial Assets g
As at As at =,
Non-current 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 j
Deposits with Bank having maturity of more than one year from the 2
balance sheet date 213.92 591.00 %
Others
Security Deposit/EMD/Other Deposits 4,679.05 4,920.06
Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits (53.15) (53.15)
4,839.82 5,457.91
Current
Loans & Advances
GOI Loan receivable on loan to subsidiary companies and others 6,796.31 6,796.31
Less: Provisions (207.25) (138.16)
Advances to Creditors 6,589.06 6,658.15
Other advances 1,034.10 1,079.22
111.11 145.46
Interest Receivable/Accrued
On loans to subsidiary companies 34,006.55 34,006.55
Accrued Interest on Investment, Deposit & Term Deposits 745.45 625.96
Others
Security Deposit/EMD/Other Deposits 1,171.10 1,262.31
Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits (77.76) (8.44)
Receivables - Others - 0.04
43,579.61 43,769.24

I B e
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Deferred tax asset, net

Deferred tax asset
- Expected credit loss on financial assets
- Provision for employee benefits

Total

Deferred tax liability

- Tangible and Intangible assets

- Financial assets at amortised cost
Deferred tax asset, net

Inventories

Raw materials

Stores,Spare Parts & Consumables
Loose Tools

Less: Provisions

Work in progress

Total inventories

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
- On current accounts

- In deposit accounts with Original Maturity of less than three
months*

Cash in hand
Total cash and cash equivalents

*Includes deposits marked lien in favour Bank Rs.2335.81
Lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.139.15 Lakhs).

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

591.94 506.54
108.96 118.17
700.90 624.71
28.79 23.13
9.87) (8.70)
719.82 639.15

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

595.05 669.76
16.90 23.74
15.44 12.82
(66.64) (54.65)
2,242.10 3,201.84
2,802.85 3,853.50

As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

324.29 229.65
4,864.34 2,048.19
2.17 2.57
5,190.80 2,280.41
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Other Bank balances

Term deposits with Banks with original maturities of more
than 3 months*

Less: Deposits with Bank disclosed under 'other financial
assets' having maturity of more than 12 months

Total other Bank balances

*Includes deposits marked lien in favour Bank Rs. 4,831.42
lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs.6,924.87 lakhs).

Current tax assets

Current tax assets (Net of provision)

Other Current Assets

GST A/C - (INPUT) - ASSETS
Others Balance with Government and Statutory Authorities

Contract Assets

Changes in Contract Assets during the year are as follows:-
Particulars

Contract Assets at the beginning of the Reporting Period

Add: Contract Assets during the Period

Less: Recognised as Contract Receivable

Less: Expected Credit Loss to Contract Assets

Contract Assets at the end of the Reporting Period

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
14,159.13 14,286.70
(213.92) (591.00)
13,945.21 13,695.70
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
- 456.29
- 456.29
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
727.22 960.27
22.22 22.22
749.44 982.49
5,495.62 -
6,245.06 982.49
5,495.62 -
5,495.62 -

&
3
&
=
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14  Share Capital As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Share Capital
34,81,000 (31 March 2024: 34,81,000) equity shares of Rs.1000/- each 34,810.00 34,810.00

Issued Share Capital
Equity Share Capital
12,08,605 (31 March 2024: 12,08,605) equity shares of Rs.1000/- each 12,086.05 12,086.05

Subscribed and fully paid-up Share Capital
Equity Share Capital
12,08,605 (31 March 2024: 12,08,605) equity shares of Rs.1000/- each 12,086.05 12,086.05

12,086.05 12,086.05

(a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

Particulars No. of equity shares No. of equity shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 12,08,605 12,08,605
Issued during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 12,08,605 12,08,605

(b) Terms / rights attached to the equity shares
Equity shares of the Company have a par value of ¥ 1000 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directos (except interim dividend) is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meetings.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Shareholding Pattern with respect of Holding or Ultimate Holding Company
The Company does not have any Holding Company or Ultimate Holding Company.

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars No. of equity shares held No. of equity shares held
President of India and its nominees 12,08,605 12,08,605
12,08,605 12,08,605

(e) No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/
disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet date.

(f) Consequent to Capital Restructuring Schemes sanctioned by Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction
(BIFR) in respect of Braithwaite & Co. Ltd. (‘BCL’), Burn Standard Co. Ltd. (‘BSCL’), Bharat Brakes &
Valves Ltd. (‘BBVL’) and RBL Ltd. (‘RBL’) and pursuant to approval of the Government of India for financial
restructuring allowing conversion of loans & interest into equity share capital & Zero Rated Debentures in respect
of BSCL, BCL and BBJ and in consideration of the direction of Department of Investment and Public Asset
Management for the aforesaid amount, the company has issued equity shares to President of India on 28th April,
2017.

(g) No securities convertible into Equity/ Preference shares have been issued by the Company during the year.

(h) No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year.
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15 Other equity As at As at E
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 g

Capital Reserve 0.06 0.06 §
General Reserve 1,473.65 1,473.65 )
Debenture Redemption Reserve 78.66 91.16 g
Retained Earnings 12,739.17 10,079.66 %
14,291.54 11,644.53 <

(a) Capital Reserve

Opening balance 0.06 0.06
Additions during the year - -
Closing balance 0.06 0.06

(b) General Reserve

Opening balance 1,473.65 1,473.65
Add: Transfers during the year - -
Closing balance 1,473.65 1,473.65

General Reserve are free reserves of the company which are kept aside out of company’s profits to meet the future

requirements as and when they arise.

(¢) Debenture Redemption Reserve*

Opening balance 91.16 103.66
Add: Transfers during the year (12.50) (12.50)
Closing balance 78.66 91.16

* The Company had created Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) on the basis of outstanding amount of Debentures
in terms of the applicable provision under Companies Act’2013

(d) Retained Earnings

Opening balance 10,079.66 8,181.29
Profit/(loss) for the year 3,059.62 2,063.03
Other comprehensive income - -
Final dividend (412.61) (177.17)
Tax on final dividend - -
Add: Transferred from Debanture redemption Reserve 12.50 12.50
Less: Transfers to general reserve - -
Closing balance 12,739.17 10,079.66
Total other equity 14,291.54 11,644.53

I ]
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Borrowings As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current Borrowings

Unsecured loans
Restructuring Debenture Deposit (ZRD)* 192.11 217.92

Total non-current borrowings 192.11 217.92

Current Borrowings

Secured loans repayable on demand

- Overdraft from Canara Bank ** - -
Other Loans and advances from the Government of India 6,589.00 6,589.00

Total current borrowings 6,589.00 6,589.00

* Restructuring Debenture Deposit (ZRD) :

As per approved scheme of Financial restructuring of The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction Company
Ltd (BBJ) by GOI in 2005, allowed conversion of GOI loan amounting to Rs.3.88 crore into Equity, conversion of
interest outstanding on GOI loan amounting to Rs.10.00 crore into Equity and conversion of interest outstanding
on GOI laon amounting to Rs.10.00 crore to Zero Rate Debanture (ZRD). In pursuance company is repaying Zero
Rated Debantures (ZRD) in equal yearly installments of Rs.0.50 crore since 2007-08 and has issued Equity shares to
President of India on 28th April,2017.

** Overdraft from Canara Bank:

Overdraft from Canara Bank is primarily secured by hypothecation of stock and book debts and collaterally secured
by hypothecation of Fixed assets including Plant and Machinery, Furniture and Fixtures and Vehicles and Equitable
mortgage of the Company’s Flat at 22, Lee Road, Kolkata - 700020. The overdraft having interest rate 10.10% p.a.is
repayable on demand.

As at As at

Provisions 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-Current
Provision for employee benefits

- Gratuity 8.15 50.54

- Leave Encashment 410.19 391.44

418.34 441.98

Current
Provision for employee benefits

- Gratuity 15.90 -

- Leave Encashment 25.62 81.26

41.52 81.26
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18 Other liabilities As at As at E
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 g
Non-current E
Restructuring Debanture Deposits (ZRD) 48.33 69.94 )
Other Non Current Liabilities 4,086.95 4,086.95 5‘
4,135.28 4,156.89 %
Current <
Statutory Dues 139.41 130.11
Restructuring Debanture Deposits (ZRD) 24.19 26.77
Advance from customers 262.14 247.23
Other Current Liabilities 5,587.34 2,297.03
6,013.08 2,701.14
19 Trade payables As at As at
Non-current 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 323.96 323.55
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer
note 36) - -
323.96 323.55
Current
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 499.00 501.04
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer
note 36) - -
499.00 501.04
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19  Trade payable
Trade payable ageing schedule
As on March 31, 2025 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
S.no Particulars Not due | Unbilled amount | < 1year | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | >3 years| Total
i) MSME - - - - - - -
ii)  [Others - -| 49435 - - 328.61| 822.96
iii) | Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - - -
iv) | Disputed dues-Other - - - - - - -
Total - -|  494.35 - - 328.61| 822.96
As on March 31, 2024 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
S.no Particulars Not due | Unbilled amount | < 1 year | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | >3 years | Total
i) MSME - - - - - - -
ii) [Others - -|  501.04 - - 323.55| 824.59
iii) | Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - - -
iv) |Disputed dues-Other - - - - - - -
Total - - 501.04 - - 323.55| 824.59
20 Other financial liabilities As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current
Trade and Security Deposits 69.89 121.49
69.89 121.49
Current
Employee Benefits Payable 107.15 121.48
Interest accrued & due on borrowing from GOI 34,016.12 34,016.12
Restructuring Debanture Deposits (ZRD) 50.00 50.00
Trade and Security Deposits 4,060.22 4,181.39
Payable Others 0.20 -
38,233.69 38,369.00
21 Current tax liabilities As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current tax liabilities (Net of advance tax)

90.98

90.98
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Revenue from operations

Revenue from Contracts
Contract Assets

Gross Revenue from Contracts - Rs.21,482.90 Lakhs (31 March 2024

Rs.29,333.89 Lakhs)

Other Revenue:
Project Management Consultancy
Sale of Scrap

Other income

Interest income

- on bank and Security Deposits

- on bonds
Other Non-operating income
Prior Period Adjustment
Profit on sale Property, Plant & Equipment (Net)
Allowance for doubtful receivables written back
Encashment of B.G / Forfiture of S.D. & E.M.D.

Cost of materials consumed

Opening Stock of Raw Materials and Consumables
Add : Purchases during the year

Less : Closing Stock of Raw Materials and Consumables

Add : Other expenses during the year

Changes in inventories and Work in progress
Work in progress

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Less : Inventories at the end of the year
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories

Sub Contract & other conversion charges

Sub Contracting Expenses

Fabrication Work Expenses
Contract Expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

12,710.23 24,859.23
5,495.62 -
18,205.85 24,859.23

70.74 151.14

18,276.59 25,010.37

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1,245.64 962.73

4.69 4.47

45.18 18.53

- 21.97

4.67 2.03

- 41.68

1.30 13.21

1,301.48 1,064.61

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

669.76 892.13

466.49 6,117.46

1,136.25 7,009.59

595.05 669.76

541.20 6,339.83

14.82 109.27

556.02 6,449.10

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

3,201.84 3,738.62

2,242.10 3,201.84

959.74 536.78

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

6,055.19 8,579.54

792.52 2,064.53

3,031.36 -

9,879.07 10,644.07
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Consumption of Stores, Spares & Loose Tools

Consumption of Stores, Spares & Loose Tools

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Bank interest and commissions

Depreciation and Amortisation expense

Depreciation
Amortization

Other expenses

Advertisement

Allowance for doubtful debts,receivables & others
Bank Charges

Car Hire Charges

Corporate Social Responsibility (Note 42)
Freight & forwarding

Insurance

Labour Cess

Legal Expenses

Consultancy Fees

Miscellaneous Expenses

Payment to Auditors (Note 34) :

Audit Fee

Tax Audit Fee

Others

Postage, Telephone & Fax

Printing and stationery

Wages (Con)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

80.79 453.02

80.79 453.02

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

2,135.37 3,007.82

179.99 270.74

35.61 46.67

2,350.97 3,325.23

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

50.84 69.29

50.84 69.29

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

113.53 142.33

5.96 7.38

119.49 149.72

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

6.77 7.14

583.57 89.10

11.00 15.20

61.21 81.87

30.66 22.07

43.22 32.74

118.81 50.38

79.20 178.58

72.73 76.70

85.05 93.61

72.37 119.27

0.80 0.95

0.25 0.55

0.35 1.04

4.74 5.23

8.03 12.52

83.40 117.03
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Plant & Crane Hire Charge
Power & Fuel

Rates and taxes

Rent

Repair & Maintenance :
- Buildings

- Plant & Machinery

- Others

Site Establishment expenses
Subscription & Donation
Testing Charges

Travelling Expenses

Tax expenses

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge

MAT credit entitlement

Deferred tax:

Relating to originating and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Deferred tax related to items considered in OCI during the year
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Income tax charge to OCI

Reconciliation of tax expense with the accounting profit multiplied by
domestic tax rate:

Accounting profit before income tax

Tax on accounting profit at statutory income tax rate 25.17% (31 March
2024: 25.17%)

Adjustments in respect of items taken to opening equity allowed for tax
purposes

Adjustments in respect of deferred tax

Others

Total at the effective tax rate of 25.17%

Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

2.15 28.83

119.81 349.93

5.24 189.21

108.69 110.20

0.01 0.05

0.51 1.97

4.24 331

- 0.25

8.22 0.80

12.86 14.50

48.62 49.40

1,572.51 1,652.45

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1,029.68 730.29
(80.67) 1.99
949.01 732.29

4,008.63 2,795.32

1,008.97 703.58
(80.67) 1.99
928.30 705.58
949.01 732.29




4
AN

THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

31 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024

i) | Contingent liabilities:
- Disputed Sales Tax demand 88.10 87.89
- Disputed Income Tax demand 497.28 497.28
- Disputed Service Tax demand 154.45 154.45
- Disputed PF demand under appeal 54.14 54.14
- Bank Guarantee 6,556.09 5,960.21
- Disputed Goods and Service Tax demand (TRAN 1 Interest) - BIHAR 12.55 12.55
- Disputed Goods and Service Tax demand due to differences between 5.15 -

GSTR 3B & GSTR 2A (Year 2019-20) - Chattisgarh

** In addition, there is disputed interest demand pertaining to Income tax of Rs.31.85 Lakhs

*The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business including
litigation before tax authorities and including matters mentioned above. The uncertainties and possible eventualities are
dependent on the outcome of the different legal processes which have been invoked by the claimants or the Company, as the
case may be, and therefore cannot be predicted accurately. The Company engages reputed professional advisors to protect
its interests and has been advised that it has strong legal positions against such disputes. The Management believes that it
has a reasonable case in its defense of the proceedings and accordingly no further provision is required. Further details of
court cases is provided in note 43.

32 Related party disclosures
a) The following table provides the name of the related party and the nature of its relationship with the Company:
Name
Cmde. Rakesh Chhillar (Retd.) from 27.12.2022 Chairman & Managing Director
Cmde. Rakesh Chhillar (Retd.) from 03.02.2023 to 06.06.2024 Director (Finance) - Additional Charge
Cmde. Rakesh Chhillar (Retd.) from 01.02.2025 Director (Technical) - Additional Charge
Shri Rajiv Kr. Singh from 21.05.2022 to 31.01.2025 Director (Technical)
Shri Sujit Kumar Ghosh from 07.06.2024 Director (Finance)
Shri Aditya Kumar Ghosh Upto 27.02.2025 Part time Official Director
Shri Udai Bhan Singh from 27.02.2025 Part time Official Director
Smt. Sarala Devi Upto 14.02.2025 Non Official independent Director
b) Details of all transactions with related parties during the year:
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
i) | Remuneration of Managing/Whole-time Directors: -
Salaries and Allowances as Director 137.34 94.84
Contribution to provident fund as Director 9.59 8.69
(Salaries and allowances include leave encashment payment)
ii) | Sitting Fees & Other Fees to Non Official independent Director 0.60 0.85
¢) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.




BEd]

THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

33

34

35
a)

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)
Segment information

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108”) establishes standards for the way that business enterprises report
information about operating and geographical segments and related disclosures about products and services,
geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating
segments and geographical segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates
resources on overall basis

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of construction including fabrication, which as per Indian
Accounting Standard - 108 on ¢ Operating Segments ° is considered to be the only reportible business segment. The
Company is operating in India which is considered as a single geographical segment.

Auditors’ remuneration include:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Statutory audit fee 0.80 0.80
Tax audit fee 0.25 0.25
Others 0.35 1.48
Total 1.40 2.53

Disclosure as per Ind AS 19 ‘Employee benefits’

Gratuity

The Company provide its employees with benefits under a defined contribution plan, referred to as the “Gratuity
Plan”. The Gratuity Plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to receive
15 days salary for each year of completed service as Gratuity at the time of retirement/exit, restricted to a sum of
Rs.20.00 Lakhs.

The Company has taken a Group Gratuity Policy from LIC of India and the resultant liability as determined by LIC
has been remitted by the Company every year.

Gratuity expenditure of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 amounts to Rs.15.90 Lakhs (31 March 2024:
Rs.42.39 Lakhs) determined by LIC(the Fund Administrator).

As per acturial valuation, following tables summarize the different components of Gratuity fund as on balance sheet:

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the obligation:

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024

Opening defined benefit obligation 542.89 499.23
Current service cost 18.22 41.79
Past service cost

Interest cost 39.36 33.59
Benefits paid (140.15) (34.606)
Actuarial gain (10.48) 2.94
Acquisition Adjustment
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Closing balance defined benefit obligation 449.84 542.89
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets as at :

Fair value of Plan Assets at Beginning of period 509.23 484.04
Interest Income - 33.73
Employer Contributions 50.98 21.45
Benefits Paid (140.15) (34.66)
Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income 37.64 4.67
Fair value of Plan Assets at End of measurement period 457.70 509.23

Assumptions As at As at
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024

Discount rate (per annum) 7.25% 7.25%

Expected Return on Plan Asset

7.68%, 7.67%

7.68%, 7.67%

Rate of Compensation Increase(Salary Inflation)

9.00%, 5.50%

6.25%, 5.50%

Leave

The Company provides for earned leave benefit (including compensated absences) to the employees of the Company

which accrue annually at the rate of 30 days. Earned leave (EL) is en-cashable while in service. However, total number

of leave that can be encashed on superannuation shall be restricted to 300 days. The scheme is unfunded and liability

for the same is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation. Accumulated provision of Rs. 435.81 Lakhs (31 March

2024: Rs. 472.69 Lakhs) have been made on the basis of actuarial valuation at the year end in the Financial Statements.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss

and the amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the obligation:

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
Opening balance 472.69 458.56
Current service cost 21.02 23.22
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 26.61 28.48
Benefits paid (154.62) (100.02)
Actuarial gain 70.11 62.45
Acquisition Adjustment - -
Closing balance 435.81 472.69
Accrued leave Encashment 428.10 473.60
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -
Net liability recognised in the balance sheet 428.10 473.60
Current provision 25.62 81.26
Non current provision 410.19 391.44




THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED  ESS

BEd]

KOLKATA

Notes forming part of the financial statements

36
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L For the year ended | For the year ended
Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Service cost 21.02 23.22
Interest cost 26.61 28.48

Re-measurement gains/ (losses)
Actuarial gain / (loss) due to demographic assumption changes - -
Actuarial gain / (loss) due to financial assumption changes - -
Actuarial gain / (loss) due to experience adjustments 70.11 62.45
Return on plan assets greater (less) than discount rate - -
Total cost 117.74 114.15
. For the year ended | For the year ended
Assumptions

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate (per annum) 6.73% 6.97%
Future salary increases 7.00% 7.00%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption and its impact in percentage terms on projected

benefit obligation are as follows:

For the year ended

Discount rate

Salary escalation

rate
Impact of increase in 50 bps on projected benefit obligaiton -4.02% 4.26%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on projected benefit obligaiton 4.31% -4.01%

For the year ended

Discount rate Salary escalation

rate
Impact of increase in 50 bps on projected benefit obligaiton -3.80% 4.05%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on projected benefit obligaiton 4.08% -3.80%

These sensitivies have been calculated to show the movement in projected benefit obligation in isolation and

assuming there are no other changes in market conditions.

Dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008
which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers
the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure
in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2025 has been made in the financial statements
based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the management, the impact of
interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (‘The MSMED Act’) is not expected to be material. The Company has not received any
claim for interest from any supplier.
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Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a) | the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any Nil Nil
supplier at the end of each accounting year.
b) | the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Nil Nil
MSMED Act, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;
c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making Nil Nil
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under this MSMED Act
d) | the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each Nil Nil
accounting year; and
e) |the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nil Nil
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.
37  Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity Shares.

The following table sets out the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Profit for the year attributable to equity share holders 3,059.62 2,063.03
Shares
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year — basic (in nos) 12,08,605.00 12,08,605.00
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year — diluted (in nos) 12,08,605.00 12,08,605.00
Earnings per share
Earnings per share of par value X 1000 — basic () 253.15 170.70
Earnings per share of par value X 1000 — diluted () 253.15 170.70
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)

iii)

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Fair valuation techniques

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and
most relevant data available. The fair values of assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate certain fair values:

Fair value of cash and deposits, trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts .

Fair Value hierarchy

The following tables provide the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and liabilities, grouped into
Level 1 to Level 3 as described below:

Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1). It includes fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets and are based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

Inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). It includes fair value of the financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) and are determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on the company specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value of an
instrument are observable, then the instrument is included in level 2.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Investment in equity instruments - 3,086.51 - - 3,086.51 -
Investments in debentures or bonds - 92.66 - - 87.95 -
Total Financial Assets - 3,179.17 - - 3,174.47 -
Financial Liabilities
Loan converted to Zero Rate - 192.11 - - 217.92 -
Debenture
Total Financial Liabilities - 192.11 - - 217.92 -

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
fair value measurements and no transfer into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. There is no transaction /
balance under Level 3.
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Risk management policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance and support Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets
include inventory, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and refundable deposits that derive directly from
its operations.

a) Market risk
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s short-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of variable rate borrowings. The Company
does not enter into any interest rate swaps.
Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of
loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected
through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/decrease in interest rate

March 31, 2025

INR 1%

INR -1%

March 31, 2024

INR 1%

INR -1%

b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The credit risk arises principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables)
and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom
credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The collection from the trade receivables are
monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade
and other receivables based on the past and the recent collection trend. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at
reporting date is primarily from trade receivables and other financial assets. The movement in allowance for credit loss
in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

Allowance for credit loss As at As at
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
Opening balance 1,062.68 1,015.26
Credit loss provided 583.57 89.10
Credit loss reversed - (41.68)
Closing balance 1,646.25 1,062.68
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

¢) Liquidity risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank

deposits and loans.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

payments:

Carrying Amount Less than 12 After 12 Total
months Month

Year ended 31 March 2025

Borrowings 314.62 50.00 264.62 314.62
Trade payables 822.96 499.00 323.96 822.96
Other Financial Liabilities 4,287.46 4,217.57 69.89 4,287.46
Year ended 31 March 2024

Borrowings 364.62 50.00 314.62 364.62
Trade payables 824.59 501.04 323.55 824.59
Other Financial Liabilities 4,474.36 4,352.87 121.49 4,474.36

There is outstanding GOI loan of Rs.6589.00 Lakhs and accumulated interest of Rs.34016.13 Lakhs on such loan included
in financial liabilities which were given by GOI through earstwhile BBUNL to its subsidiaries namely BPMEL and WIL.
BPMEL is under liquidation and WIL winded up (post liquidation). As the recoverability of the said loan and interest is
uncertain from subsidiaries, has not been shown into the maturity profile of financial liabilities.
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40  Capital management

well as the debt to total equity ratio.

&
3
&
=
o
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=
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of issued share capital and all other equity reserves.
The capital structure as of 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024 was as follows:

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and
to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as

For the purpose of debt to total equity ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings. Total equity comprise

Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company 26,377.59 23,730.58
As a percentage of total capital 98.82% 98.49%
Long term borrowings including current maturities 314.62 364.62
Short term borrowings - -
Total borrowings 314.62 364.62
As a percentage of total capital 1.18% 1.51%
Total capital (equity and borrowings) 26,692.22 24,095.20

41  Disclosure pursuant to IndAS 115 “’Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

A Effective 1 April, 2018, the company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customer” and recognition
from construction and service activities is based on “’over time” method and the company uses the output method to
measure progress of delivery using the Percentage Complition method, which is in line with the policy used by the
company earlier. There is no significant transaction impact on the financials of the company.

During the year revenues earned by the Company are as follows:-

B Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Revenue from operations (Gross Revenue from Contracts -Rs.21,482.90 Lakhs 12,710.23 24,859.23
(Previous Year-Rs.29,333.89 Lakhs)

Contract Assets 5,495.62 -
Other Revenue 70.74 151.14
TOTAL 18,276.59 25,010.37
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42  Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises, GOI, the
Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made
during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Policy. The details of CSR expenses for

the year are as under:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A. Amount required to be spent during the year 30.66 22.07
B.  Shortfall amount of previous year - -
C. Total(A+B) 30.66 22.07
D. Amount spent during the year on:
- Construction/acquistion of any asset - -
- On purposes other than above 30.66 22.07
Total 30.66 22.07
Shortfall amount - -
a) Amount spent during the year ended 31 March 2025:
Particulars In cash | Yet to be paid in cash Total
Construction/acquistion of any asset - - -
On purposes other than above 30.66 - 30.66
b) Amount spent during the year ended 31 March 2024:
Particulars In cash | Yet to be paid in cash Total
Construction/acquistion of any asset - - -
On purposes other than above 22.07 - 22.07

¢) Break-up of the CSR expenses under major heads is as under:

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1. Swachh Bharat Kosh

Clean Ganga Fund

Skill Development Training

Education

Health

Armed Forces Flag Day Fund

N RPN

PM CARES FUND

30.66

7.09




plemy uoneniqly pres oyl Juiduoqe % Mwm.mo.i pajep
eRNO[E) 18 10D YSIH 91d.UOH o awz oﬂwﬂmawcov
eadd : ¥ ['or uo
[ v uoneniqry juesaid oy pajy rgg poadu3de Surog
SUYE] LSy SeA pIEAY JO an[EA . *JSQIQIUT +
oy Jsurede Eoug_u.w\mé LNEWMW_L ommm A.quv:o%e
(010Z°60°ST ParEp IOpIO UR Aq ﬁB.oobOo :own Uwso>ww o
0107°60'%1 U0 premy oyl passed 10 1 YoIym)
' ‘661 10qE SEM 10K 1enIqIy 2[0S dYL (fn10qe
M “(ap1§ SUOS-UOLIGD(] U2NY ©oA 100f01d oy “TeIes[RYSN\ puE ¢ qeyey) eypied
S . [ewSLO) ENNO[E)) 1e ; 19q SUOIIBOO] JUDIQYIP XIS 1 SIPIT TIN) Y9AALD *S/IN
= (op1g [euI ausodwod Jo uo Pl
= PIS [eutl COV 1ano) :m:* 219, U0y . J 1}ONIISU0? I0J \AN\KL:NM uIo)ser Jo 100(01 — SNS.PA —
~ eNNOE)) 1€ 1IN0 ou1 £ auo 03 Suneas sondsip oy 1o, i
S YBIE 910, 00K & ) AQ paxy 9q 0} 1S9I0YUL PquEd I AQ poyuosaid ) 10y rgg pue (K1oqenyey) rad
M : JUOH 9y L 1K STIOPRW O | + SPET L1'SH | oy oM s3 pojuasoIdor) [OAJALY) “S/Al OUO UGOMID] — uIM)Ig
N uIpadooid UONENIGIY UY : JOLIq Ul SPEL o 0107 0107 JO 8EL —"ON AV
W [eaddy uoneniqay | ()¢
S
P11
m ‘0D 29 dossap — snsIIA —
._w A (rgd sou) INNdd
S (9) — WIIMD
= $0d ¥ ‘todiyy ye 210 ‘83500 Jsa1dpul YHA Suofe g0z Ut Auedwo) G:M
m ow@%mmtﬁﬁ 101U0S) wﬁ %M popunjor A[Suoim (7S 1L 78Sy JO .mo Sy o JO €S91000 "ON S L
w ﬁ%o { :\or”ﬁm.w JSI1q JO .w:_hwoﬂ m%%wwsw ONMMWmUOMMQ o 10 PIT 0D W QOwwm._. wouy /9T0T JO LTZ8E ON 'S "L)
N 5 powrea oy L | 105 Surpuad st sone | sy 1£28°SY | INNEE £q po 7O A10A0001 10J 6007 11°LZ U0 ([gg mou) 600730 16 'ON 'S "L
S q po[y sem g KGUOIN SIYL : JOLIq UL S)IBJ o 6007 A
M“uu JIng AQUOIA [ T
W
> rdd — SnsIap —
W (‘py1 Swipping
= D3 IPOJAl A[Sno1adad)
1800 !
Dﬂn . m €4 JO 90JO PeoH dy} d10ym sastward oy Eoﬂ 0 mmﬂw *PYT SIIIAIIG puy
W . AMEm [euISLQ) Bﬂ%ﬁ.& SWA.EA SOJIAIOS PUY AJUR)NSUO)) UBISNPUIH Ad>ue)nsuo)) uejsnpuiy
e :wﬁ ow?U 18 3no) | Suueay 10y Surpuad TS ﬂM_ uIp[ing IPOJA Se PIWRUII UO Id)e[ Smm. ) usampyg
= IH 9]9,U0H ayL stsouew oyl | 1ms vonomg |zg mw :m 29 $I001S snoroald — umQ Surpying oy £q . 7861 JO 8%
W ! 1ol 61 ‘AIN[ UI o[ Sem 9SBD UONOIAF : JOLIQ UI S)IBY o —*oN (*S*D) Mn§ [1A1D
= (s up) : 861 yng uondAy [ I
= aseD AL, poAjoAU 5
M 310J9g Surpudg JO sne)s JuISAIJ :::::aw hMEEoU
m sremanIeJ 1o u”—ucmv “ON
ﬂ G707 €0°T€ uo se INNFd/rdd SuruIoouod (sase)) 1noy) 29 uol A s[re3R( dse) IS
: e
~ neniqry) sase) (8397 Surpuad Jo snyels JuasaId
$3se)) 31N0)) Jo S[IeId(q “€F

L0°TC

99°0¢

e,

&)
P EM“— oﬁm_w”“tc 13yM pue eyep daeys 3dodXd ‘sypjeT soadny uvipuy ul s)unowe [[v)
Jje)s Jenueulj 3Yj} Jo jred BuiuLioj .mouoz =

\
N
-3

<
-
<|
x|
|
o|
=
7




\
-3

<
-
<
x|
|
o
7Y
7

THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

‘Teyrg ‘13unjy

“Teyrg 1o3unA e 9se)) AJ1oLod[H Juasaid o

Jo asodsip 03 sdays Sunyey mou s1 rgg ‘7207 21 80 Parep
1opIQ) pres ayy Jo swid) uf “(TOHSE) "PyT Aueduwo)
SurpjoH Iomod 91l Ieylg oy) JO WIe[D oY) OpIse J3S
BUjed 18 LNOD YSIH 9[q.UOH Oy} ‘TTOT'TI'80 Parep
IopI0 ue Ag "gHASH JO UONOE JAIOID0D PIes oy jsurede
N0y ySiH euwed 9]q,U0H oy} 210599 (6107 JO 690LI
"ON DIMD) Uonndg 1A € 31y 03 pajjodwod sem g
‘(99 WOl SYNET 9¢ S SY JO AIOA0II I0] ]

~€10C JO [ "ON 9Se)) 21edgnIay) Jo9[H Syl pa[g SHY
g 109fo1g o3pug

eduen je Komooe Alddns jsureSe rgg wol syye]

rdd — snsmA — gaAsd
udIM)Ig

‘109 dJeOY1ID) 9¢'¥$'sY papuewop AJ[e3a[[t (TOHJSH) ‘Y1 Aueduwio) PI-€1/10 "ON 35€D
uonony jo1siqg Jo | “Suwredy 1oy Surpuad SuIpjoH Iomod 91elS Jeylg 9y} st pa[ed mou (gd4Sd) 9)BIYNID) AILINIIY
HNOT) PIUIBaT YL, STIO)BW U, | SYNET 9€'HS'SY | pIeog ANoLoo[q ejels Ieqlg oyl : JOLIq Ul S)OBq . €107 JpeN AP | S
“HnoD YSIH JIA 919.UOH 9} JO youag Ioi[emn
A} 210J9q 1IN0Y) JOLSI(J PAUILYT Y} JO JOPIQ pIes dy)
poSud[reyod sAemyrey [enud) YMON ‘poAdliZSe Julg .
"600T 11°60 Paep 19pIQ passed pue skem[rey
[e1Ud)) YHION JO SWIB[D) Pa3odfor I9AOMOY 1IN0D) PIEs YL o rad — SnSIdA —
"pa3e3ud sem dUOU dIUY Kemqrey *D°'N
‘rgg uodn paalas sem Adod ON N0D) 1OLISI(] JOI[BMD) — UIIMPY
POUIBT 9} 210J3q 966 1OV UOHRI[IOUO0)) 29 UONBNIqIY (19)3eW JoRHUOD)
(youog ‘Surreay A} JO H¢°S/N pIeMy pIes ) paSud[[eyd sAem[rey [enua)) J3prig Is| LieMunyj)
lo1/emn) ‘d A Jo Moy Jeuy 1oy Surpuad YMON ‘[eunqui, [eNIqIY 9y) Aq 80T 11°C1 uo passed 010TJO [ —"ONVV
YSIH 9]q,UOH oYL, StIeNew oYL | AN[IQEI] 0107 [ SeA pIEAY UOLENIQIY ANJIeI] [IN, SUQ : JOLI] Ul S)IB] » 0107 [eaddy uoneniqry |y
“19)BW
dY} SUIPUIJAP puB S[ASUNO)) 29 SIONDI[OS S g YysnoIy)
epnofe) e uno) YJIH 9[q.UOH dY) 210j9q pareadde
Amnp ‘ooueseadde 10y 2onou oy} SulAlOAI IOYPe [ e
(958D rdaq
uonnooxy juoesaid oY) Jo Suly Jo drep Ay} [[I} PONIdOE — SNSIIA —
JSQIIUI SAPNJIUL YOIYM) ST [8°SY SI Junowe pawre[d (Kr0qenyey) eyqried
(oprs [8103 9L "010C'60 11 Paiep pIlemy UonenIiqly pauonuau TIAD YIANALD “S/IA
[euIS1IO) BPNO[R)) JB (ponuooe 9A0Qe 9} Su1010Jud 10§ (SpIS [BUISLIO) BINO[ED) JB 1IN0D) — UMY
'(9pIS [eUIBLIO) | 1NOD YSIH A UOH | IsaIdu] | YSIH 9[q UOH Y 210j9q gg Isulese ase) uonnddXy 720730 W1 ON D'H
B)INOTE)) JB 1IN0 oyy Aq paxgy oq 03|  Surpnpour)  [judsaxd oy payy (Aroqenyey) eyued I Aq pajuosardor) e)INde)) an0)) Ysiyg
Y314 919, U0y YL WPASTIONEW YL | SYNRT [8'SY | YONAID'S/IN ‘S18dA 7T Jo Surssed 103y : JOLIQ UI S)OB] o 7207 ase) uonndRxXyY | (q)¢
sy up) JuIWR))
ENJO LN pIA[oAU] uIWWo)) ‘ON
3.10J3g Suipudd JO snye)S JudIsaId junowry sae[nonIed JO aeax s[1ela( Ase) ‘IS

(P93e)S ISIMIIY)IO 1YM pue eyep daeys 3dadxd ‘syyje] saadny ueipuy ul s)unowe [[y)

sjuLduIdje])s jenueuly 3Yj) Jo ped DUIULIO) SI)OL




"S10T°60° 11 PAIEP PIBAY UOHENIQIY [EUL PIEs Y}
SuBuo[[eyd 9102 10"+0 U0 HN0D YSIH 9]q,U0H dYs 210)0q
uonnod uoneniqly Sy poly THMI posdus3e Jug .

"1se10jul SUO[E 0101)

20 TH'sY Jo wns & Aed o) THMI Pa1oap pue INNEd (INNCd d11YM)SI9)

‘Surreay JO InoARy Ul G10Z'60 ] U0 plemy ) passed (paInoy) rdd — SnsIdp —

Ioypng 10§ (9p1s nIeqeD{Ry)) YOV 201SN[ - J0JeNIqIY [0S 9]q UOH oYL, *py1 SuLRdWSUY

[euIS1IQ) eNnofe)) Je uosep\ opuy

1o Y3y 9[q,uoy ‘s1otpo pue ( dossar,,) ‘py1 0D 2 dossor — UIIMPY

(op1s [euISLIO) [ oy 210J0q PAISI| o Jsarequt Jo sareys Aynbo oy Sunejor sayndsip ayy 10§ (TAMI) PYT 910T 30 OTI:ON V'D

B)INO[ED) I8 1IN0D) 01 304 pue 3urpuad + S2I0ID) Suoouiduyg uodepy opu] pue Auedwo) 9y} UdIMIOq 9107 J0 6 'ON'd'V
YS1H 91q.UoH YL SI 1917w Ay ], 20°14°sY PIoY d1om s3uIpasoold uoneniqly Uy : JOLIq Ul S108 o 9107 [edaddy uoneniqry | “(e)L

‘sjuopuodsay] ewiojoid are (fgg mou) INNGL
pue [ON) 21oyMm 0310 DJL 0} Jueg QD[ Jo juowuIisse
Jo Surpeoued pue [-1Yd/O'd Aq passed S19pIo IoT[IRD [[B

Bur[ooued /FUIMAIAST 10 [V Y 210599 10T 'S0 60
uo [eaddy juasaid ay) pa[y DANQO PoAduSTe Judg .

‘da

I00LJ() SUIPISAIJ WO IOPYBIIAY} PUB IO AIOA0INY

JY) woly sourw pres oy} Jo uoissassod 2y} Jurwreld
SI “THINdG JO I0IIPaId paindds y) Sudq DJJ MON »

‘(Vod)

Kdu1opy Jo 1amod e ysnoryy DANO 03 o)1 pue Sy

['syuapuodsay
euriojoad dae
(INNId AMYMISId)
rdd pue erpuy

Jo uorun) 31H]

(rdd mou) INNAd °S
saLsnpuy AAedH
Jo Anstury ‘erpuy
JO JUIWUIIA0D)

IOyl [[e pasea pey THING ‘sourw pres oy Sunerodo JIERBEINELI R e
sem DAINO 90oulS “TANdG JO [0HU0D dALRISIUIWIPE (uonepmbry
JIopun SQUIW JY} JSOA 0) UOHBOYNOU Y} Pansst vIpu] JO un) THINdA ‘€

14000 ‘Auedwo) 1A00 se (86101 #] U0 pajerodioour ‘P
sem THINJE USUM PuB 9)B)S BSSLIQ UI SIUTW 1Y) JO JAd 7P JUdWISRURIA]
suonesado ) paurejurews JoIIed INIY JO Arerpisqns L£mby odL T

THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

oy ‘(DANO) PyT 0D 1uewdo[PAd( [EIUIA BSSLIQ o queqg 00N I
Py 1ad Judwddeury Anbyg DL 03 yueg ODN — SNS.IA — DAINO
[(uonepibriy | Aq pauSisse sem yoiym uoneZI[eAl ([} [66]° SO0 WOLF — UMY
1opun) THINAY | SIUNOWE PIYNIdd PIesaiofe,, AY) U0 %G 6] @) 1SAIAUI #1027
jsurede yued | yum  -/0L7°97 80 sy SuIre1o) Ajjeuosiod pue AJ[eIoAds JO 9506 "ON A1e1(q)
Teunquiy, 00N Jo sonp | ‘Aputof [ON woly Se'TIEE191°7'SY pue (uonepmbr ur) v10T JO
ope[[oddy £104000y | “Surreay Joy Surpuod Surpre3ai] [ THINAE WOl T6'LS6°TI TE T'SY 10§ €00 11+0 U0 LA 671 "ON [edddy 1e[n3ay
1qo( pauIed Ay, stopew oy | JopeN [eaddy | woiy 00100p © paurelqo pey yueq O[] : JOLIQ UI S)IB] o 102 JNeIA [eaddy | -9
(*sy up) JUIUR)
ENJO LN pPIA[oAU] uIWWo)) *ON
3.10Jog Surpudg Jo sme)s Judsalg junowry sae[nanIed Jo aeax s[reaq ase)d ‘IS

(PI3.)S ISIMIIY)IO 1YM pue eyep daeys 3dadxa ‘syyjer s9adny ueipuy ur s)unowe [[y)

sjuduIAje)S Jenueulj 3Yyj) Jo jed DUIuLIO) S9JON]

4
8

<
-
<
x|
|
o
P«
7




\
-3

<
-
<
x|
|
o
7Y
7

THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

‘seuedied 4

ynog ‘arodipy je o3pnf

WLISIA [PPV PIE JO

Juowingie
Teuy 10j Surpuad

1SQI0)UI +

‘Surnunuod [[ns
st Aeys du) pue ] O3 JO 10O 21eIsH oY JO L10Z'€0'80
pajep 19p1Q Judwked paudndwir oy pakeIs £107°90°CC
parep 1op1Q ue £q o3pny[ 1OLUSI(T [PPY PIE POUILST AL
"L10T'€0°€T uo 210di[y Je oFpn[ joLusIq poured] oy
a10§0q [eaddy sIy) pa[y [ ‘L102°€0'80 PAIEP 19pI0
pres oY) £q poasu33e urog "1 JOY Jo swreld oy pioydn
LdO3] JO I120JO 9jeisy paured] af) L0080 Parep
19pIQ paudndwr ue Ag ‘Spunoid JUARYIP U0 DO
deIsg Y 210J2q rgq Aq paSud[[eyd sem [ JO3 JO WIL[d
UL "SHIOM BHOWIA, JB 6861°€O'TE O 88617010
wioj uonedndoo pazuoyneun I0J -/7L8°LS01°SY 01
Sununowe sofewep Jo juowked Jurpre3or gy isurese
‘1061 WY (suednoo pozuoyneur) JO UONOIAY)
SISIWRIJ 21[qNnd Y3 JO (€)/ uo1dS Jo uoisiaold ayy opun

(310 dd[xj00n
peseld BweAS Mou)
LdO3 — Sns.dA — 49

— UMY

(19))eW ISNOH BILIOYIIA)
LT0T J0 9 “oN [eaddy 4d

1N0D) PAUILdT Y, St Io1RwW AU L, | SYNET LS 01°SY | L0 Aq WIed & 0] SUNR[OI ST Io)BW SIY ], : JOLIQ Ul S)IB] « L10T eaddy Ay [ 6
1oy YSIy Heynen 91q,UoH Y 210§2q (6107700 U0
pantwipe) G10z°01°L] uo [eaddy uoneniqry jussaid oy
pojy Aempiey AN SAep [G€ JO Aejop YV Kem[iey AN £ — SNSIIA —
JO swire[d Yy passIwisIp eynen ‘dniwey] 4nop) J01si(q Kemprey I'N
PauIBdT oyl ‘p[0T°L0'ET VO "BeRYNED 18 UN0) JoMsq — UdaM)ag
pauIedT 9y} 910J9q PAJEP PIEMY UONBNIQIY [eUl Oy} (19)3BW JORIUOD
pasuajreyd Aemyrey JN paAdLSSe Sureg "rgg Jo InoAeJ agprig edoygidor)
ur [eUnquU [eNIqIy oY) A9 0TOT T1°C0 U0 passed premy 6107
‘wessy no) y3iy | ‘Surreay 1oy Surpuad [euy oyl yim oouerdwod Ul WeSSY JB PIjoNnsuod Jo 7o\ eaddy "qay
neynen 9[q UOH YL st1opew oy] [ Aujiqer] ooz | a8pug edoy3i3of 03 pajeal SII10)jewW Y, : JOLIQ UI $)OB ] o 9107 [eaddy uopeniqry | g
‘Surreay Pr1
Joyany 10§ (op1s *JSOIQIUT + SAIOID) 7O T4 SY JO WNS POpIEME JO ATOA0IAT *0)) "33uy uosep\ opuj
[euISLIO) ePnofe)) I8 10} 8107°60°61 uo uoneorddy uonndoxy Sy} pajy — SNSJIA —
HnoD YSIH 9[q, U0y ("INNE4d d[yMISId) [ IS103ul SUO[e 101D 7O [+'SY (INNGd A1Yssi) rgd
‘(op1S [eUISLIQ) | QY 910J9q PIISI] 2q JsaIa)ul Jo wmns & Aed 0) TAM] PA10211p pue (rgg mou) INNGd — UMY
B)INO[ED) I8 1IN0D) 01 394 pue urpuad + S2I101D) Jo anoaej u1 passed G107 60 11 PRIEP Plemy uoneniqry 8107 JO 8S¥ 'ON D'H
YSIH 91q.UoH ], SI Iojew oy |, 20 1¥'sY [BUL PAUOHUSW JAOQE A} ANOIXI O] : JILIQ Ul S)IB] 810T ase) uonnddxy | *(q)L
(*sy up) JuIWI)
ase) Y, pasjoAuy udwuo)) N
2.10J0g SuIpudg Jo sme)§ JuasaIg junowy saremonIBg Jo aeax s[re)d( Ise) ‘IS

(P93e)S ISIMIIY)IO 1YM pue eyep daeys 3dadxd ‘syyje] saadny ueipuy ul s)unowe [[y)

sjuLduIdje])s jenueuly 3Yj) Jo ped DUIULIO) SI)OL




1ano)H oy
paute 4N
v e@s% Pl Sefio
S 10 poureoT oy 40 ‘Peqe urpuad st 10 00 [BIOIOUIL
= 6 1m0 (PO ou pue 310710 addy nof moy 1oLsIq - Kpuosonl -
o 1019 Lo I st .
W JO 1Ino)) paur wwo)) — s 091 uo m:o.HbE&Q USm.Q a1 Jo N0
(k) e ns1 ) jo W 1es 9 o)
S ToUL uyy 10§ wanﬁm ON 0 4n00 pouiee an’ ns o E>§ Supsajuod
S St Tonew o oy womo :oﬁmbﬁhq oY) 210J9q peqeye[vy ¢ 10021 [gd
M UL \Au—:@&: o qION ._.um.m\s —u.ﬁmkfwv 9661 Jo{whONBOO— QOH.MEOU uo_.smﬂgo
S [orZ | piem rdd jo I pres oy vomo_um_:ocoo 810C30 ﬁ.N- SNSIIA rda
= Y uor 0AR} U uo[[e 2 uor — Aem q-
S neniqry Ap 1 passed m_m Yo sKemrey emary ey "O'N
I[iqer M s Tex — U
= poux an’ N, ¥ S102°%0°L0 - a3 (opew teuium
m EOQNO‘H oy D.HO%MNDNQ&:< - Jouq ur mﬁuwwwﬁﬁ pLIg pug —NQN.H—:OU
(6] * wr
S d P Nmom.ow.ﬁu mmo< co:&%@ﬂ%ﬁ&ﬁoo Jour - 8107 1T "ON 3seD) M:M_N_WW
o I - u
= " t:ooﬂmmmgﬁm:/x MMM@EEoo Jjo shom wﬂm o mcuwﬁcoooo [eaddy =NWMh«_f<
m JoHned EEMWMoU [euy Juoumsie t:ow: uwﬁ uo H%Ww M@DEE%A .%w dm@mmwmwn“& rag - ey
UL 105 3 ° 180 ‘pe 0} © 3110
” St Mﬁﬁnq& ommu A .om_uﬁ o105eq SMEEE ntsowot& suen mmw sns.1
S oyL| £ 0 JO g ) 9661 ¢ CIrLIw PSIq A — Aem rdd -
n persm [ 90 [ uo( oy ey -
2 fliqet ooz [BIUS)) YUON * preay 9% uoneI1ouo L10230858 o e o
[ pajEp press [€16 Jo Inc s oy padu O % uonen N (10pew oM
Iy Y uone OAeJ U o[y 191y a3pu penu
() HENIAV \Q:ERM possed sem sKemrey HE ST _NQE«——QU
M AN V r_moow.o:m “ON 95E (L1027 30 wov
= Hq uf $)0 DD S8
& i g 12 “2SIAD
W 810¢C O7~-w Ise) EO—H&NHNON Jo
E readdy _swsmm“«
S (rg :
m i | BoA::v INNGD b
3 one
= IeyosIp ur KoM I ur) JHE:EJ
= o Soms ot 10 rayeunn oo Aue £ g
M o ‘Jeunqr uoru) 19 1 Jo 1ojsue AT q 1o Ayiqer d ® Pr1
w [10ddy £10A00: L Juow PIQO prEs 9 1) IOPISUOD b D] 11 11943 Jo ) dwogeue
= 192 paured 003y | ‘Sutwe @m>%oo§m Jo h.ﬁzoﬁw 1 19A9MO 0} PoRaIp % OV THNdE nnbg Umh_.z
oYL 1Iea] 10§ Surpu pore oY S199q I ) opise wc_m TN IO eM BIPUJ JO yueg 00 &
st oo vmm Dol DI g . i Supisorq p1 0y T RInGL 10 nopuodsay
poIy py1 e Iprsa1d - I-
a105og Su 1oneN [roddy 4 Sm.w%&i EoEowM:mﬁom J0 wmﬁ.wq o Jo N__ %%:nc 1 ® xw:mwm o000
fPod ase) d . oW pary U0 10T JO W Aimbg N opia [eadd aee eIpu NSIA —
30 snyey L sy up) (1o0) e1pu Q1T 'ON 2 OdL puey 1o V Sso10 IpuJ Jo uoru
S JuIsAIg paAoAuy pul Jo oty Hoﬁwmo optA Eomwro P uo ( - :ov%.uom
! oA )
yunoury e E Jortq _”« yuasaxd ON E?ENSN Jo 811
1 S)o8] » <hﬁ—=wvﬂ—v
sJaenr 810t ON ﬂQH—NQ:MMON.%O 0
ped yudw B §§E< 2SI
u )N eadd
Jwwo)) V| ‘o1
JO Jedx
S
[rex( ase) N
s

Aﬁva—w
Y30 21oym pue eje
P 2J1eys
“—QQUNQ 3
Syyqeys

3adn
¥ uBIpUJ uI spun
I owe
V)

Sjudm
3je)s
emn
ueury a3 jo yed
ed Bul
JONI

\
N
-3

<
-
<
x|
|
\o
x|
7




\
-3

<
-
<
x|
|
o
7Y
7

THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

“(paIney)
so1omey) Nlerpuy

oonsn( I 9[q UOH

‘premy
uonenIqly [euy Jo
Surssed 103 Surpuad

JSQIYUT +

*s3UIpa900I] UONENIqLY dY) JO uonespnipe
Iopun [[Js oIe 0I0ID) €9°¢'SY JO WIB[) IAUNOD
s Aem[rey uiojseq pue ‘e'd 9481 @) uonesuadwos JoyIng
pue 2101) 9p'Z['SY JO swiel) S [dg Sururewor oyl .
Tag 01 dL9°LTT°SL T T'SY
sy Jo junowy pres oy} pred Aem[rey urdiseqy —
Juepuodsay aY) ‘Z70T'S0'0T UQ rgd — IuewIe[) oy} 0
dzoL11°6L21°1°sY Jo wns & Aed 01 Aemjrey uidjsey -
Juapuodsay ay) SUNdAMIP 7707 20 8T PRIEP I9PIO WLIU]
ue passed 10jeniqry 9[0S PAUIBdT AU} ‘TZOT €010 UO o
‘Kemyiey] UI0)seq pue [gg Udam)aq SOUdIOYIP pue
sondsip oy 93ed1pnlpe 03 101e1IqIY [0S ) Sk (PAINY)
oofropey) nlerpuy oonsnray poyutodde epnore) e
1N YSIH 9[q,UOH oY) “1Z0T+#0°LO PAYep 1opIQ ue Ag
‘uonenIqry
ur pajestpnipe 9q 03 parmnbal o1e YoIyMm SWIL[o I9YI0 OS[e
pue Aem[rey q isurede 101D (g 1Sy INoqe rgg Jo wreld
panIwpe d93ny e s1 219y} ‘rgd Jo swire[) 1oylo woiy Jedy .
‘Kemyrey] uroiseq
J0109[014 UOISIAI(] BP[RIA| PUB [OSUBSY ‘YBIMOH ‘Uep[eas
18 S93pLIg JO I9qUINU 9¢ JO UONNIIXD Ay} FuLINp pIsnole
sondsip oy} 10 Aemjrey uidiseq jsurese rgg Aq po[y

19130 29 Kemiey
wId)sey — sns.adA — rdd
— UMY

393[0aq uorsiaiq
BPICJAl PUE [0SUBSY
‘YeIMOH ‘Yep[eds)
(810Z JO 0EE'ON'A'V
Jo Ino guisLy

6107

JO 88T "ON d°V : "Jo¥)

— 103e1IqIY 9[0S YL SI Io)ewW AU [, | 101D 947 'SY | sem Surpassord uoneniqry jussaid oy : JOLIq Ul s)oB 1202 SuIpaddoeag uoneniqay [ €|
KeMmqrey widseq
yinog — SnSA — g9
— UMY
(1dpew uone.NIqIy
‘Aqrenredwr 29 Aj1odoxd andsip oy 9jearpnipe epunwepuog -
03 10je11qIy UE se uosiad juopuodopur ue jo juounurodde indaieyoue])
djerpowrwil 10J UO eIPU] JO 1IN0 dwdidng 9]q UOH 910J9q 6102
“eIpu] rdd 4£q 0Z0T'€0'91 uo pojy sem S Judsaid oyf o Jo 69 "ON ‘d'V - Jo¥)
J0 11no) swaidng "DDD 1ad sk (s)101en1qry Jo jusunurodde 191 e Uoos 020730 1228 ‘'ON (D)d'1IS
9]q,UOH 9} 210J0q K19A pojenIul 9q 03 Surog SI YOIYM UOIBNIQIY 10 PILIQJAI (1neN
‘BIPU JO N0 | Surreay 1oy Surpuad JsIo)ul sem Aem[iey'q'S jsurede 2101) ¢°/SY INOGe JO WIB[d [eaddy uone.niq.ry)
owardng 91q, UOH Yy, ST Io)eW AU [, | + 101D t¢2 Sy | vew3o s, rgg Surpie3ar amndsip oy, : JoLIq Ul S)IE] o 0207 uonndg ey [eAdg| -z
(‘sy up) JudUR)
ENJO LR PaAJoAuU] udwWuwo)) UN
J10jog Surpudg Jo sme)§ JuasaIg junowy saremonIeg Jo aeax s[re)a( Ase) ‘IS

(P93e)S ISIMIIY)IO 1YM pue eyep daeys 3dadxd ‘syyje] saadny ueipuy ul s)unowe [[y)

sjuLduIdje])s jenueuly 3Yj) Jo ped DUIULIO) SI)OL




-owres o} Junsoyuod pue Jpew ay) ul pareadde rgg .
1207 €0°L1 PAIEp pIemy UOLENIGIY POUOIUSW JAOQE
oty Suruayreyo Jeyrq ‘IeysteA e 93pn[ 10LISI( pAuIed|
oy} 210J2q [TOT JO SHON 9seD OSIA [1A1D) [eaddy
uoneniqry juesaid oy pajy Aem[rey Dd ‘120°L0°80 UO
‘Kemqrey

[enud)) Jseq Aq opew ueaq 10u Sy (0'SL6°9T TL'8E SY
Jo junowe popremy Jo judwAked oy ep L
"Qwies oY) JO UONEZI[BAI 9Y) 0} pIemy JO d)ep oy} Wolj
JUNOWE POPIBME [B10} Y} UO %G 7 [ @) 1S21ul Y3m Juofe
44 01 00°SL6°9T TL Y S JO Junowe papresme [e1o) & Aed
0} SABM[TRY D" dY} POIdAIIP pue [gg JO SWIL[O dY) JO
JSOW POMO[[E J0JeNIqIy [0S 9[q UOH dY [ (g JO INOALY rdd
UL [Z0T'€0°LT patep premy [eul] & passed (pamoy) eyr — SNSIOA — SIYIQ pue
Teypruley( odusnf I 9[q,UOH — Iojenigqly [0S 9y sAem[rey [enud)) )seyq
. TeIes[ey3nyA 18 suo3em d[qepeoyu) UMY

Teyrg %STI®  |A108938D . g, 00501 % 1039380 D, 00+¢ Jo Sutireda,, 105

‘Ifeysre je a8pnf 1S910)UL 10BIUOO WO} UOTJBUTULIY) [ESQ[[1 0] AeM[IEY [BNUI)) ISB 120T Jo
JOLNSI(] [BUODIPPY ‘Surreay 10y + 83101 jsuteSe (3SIU] %8 +) 101D LL'0f SY INOQe JO wIe[d S ON IS8 ISIJAl [IAID
ST poweaTaYL | Poxy SIIonell oy ], TL8ESY arewnISo] s, rgg Surpredor andsip oy : JorIq ul spoeyq 120¢ [eaddy uoneniqry | (Qpl

.

.

.

"TC0TC0°LT pajep premy
uonenNIqly PIUONUIUL JAOQE U} JO JUIWIDIOJUD I0J
Iepes eujed Je 9Spn[ JoInsiq pauIed oy 910J9q 70T JO
T'ON 9580 uonndaxy Juesald oy paty rdd 70T 10°€0 U0

‘Kemjrey

[enud) Jseq £q opew uddq 10U SeY 00'SL69TTL']E ST
Jo junowe popremy Jo judwAked oy 9ep [IIL
"QUES QU] JO UOIBZI[BAI AY) 0) PIeMY JO d)ep Y} WOoIf
JUNOWE POPIEME [£10} O} UO G 7 [ @) 1S9I0)Ul Yyim Suofe
94 01 00°SL6°9T TL Y€ SY JO Junowe popreme [e10) & Aed
01 SAem[Iey'D"d U} POIdIP pue [gg JO SWILO 3} JO
JSOW POMO[[e J0JeNIqIy 9]0 9[q,UOH Y], ‘g JO INOABJ
ul [Z0T'€0'L1 Povep premy [eul e passed (poindy) eyf sy pue
Teyprureyq 2o1snf I 9]qUOH — I0jeNIqly 9]0S Y], sAemqiey [eud)) Jseq
‘Kemrey . Texes[eySnjA e suoSem ojqepeofun) —SnSIIA — rdd
‘DA Aq wins %S 71 K103912D) . g, 00501 2 £103918)) .0, 00%¢€ Jo Surmedas,, 103 uPMPY
‘Teyrg | popiemy jo juowked JsQI)Ul JOBIIUOD WO} UOTIRUIWLIS) [eS0[[1 10J Aem[Iey [enud)) Iseq

‘repesg eujed Je oSpns pue Surresy 10§ + S9101) jsureSe (3SOIU] %8 +) 9I0I) L/ °0p SY IMOQe JO WIe[d 720730 T'ON D'
JOLISI(J POUIBIT OYL |  PIXY SI JopeW Y], TL8€SY ewniol s, rgg SurpreSor gndsip oy ], : JOLIQ UI SPIB . 70T IS8 UONNXY | I

.

THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

sy up) JUIWR))
ase) Y, paAjoAuf udwIwo)) ON
210J9g SuIpud g JO smye)s JudsAIJ junowy saremnonied Jo aedax s[rea( ase)d ‘IS

(PI3.)S ISIMIIY)IO 1YM pue eyep daeys 3dadxa ‘syyjer s9adny ueipuy ur s)unowe [[y)

sjuduIAje)S Jenueulj 3Yyj) Jo jed DUIuLIO) S9JON]

<
-
<
x|
|
o
P«
7




\
-3

<
-
<
x|
|
o
7Y
7

THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

“BULIRYS
edoo( (painoy)

"10Je11QIY 9]0 9]q,UOH 910Joq
‘Kemyrey WIOUMON -'SA- [dd Ueamjaq sSurpasooid
uoneniqry juesaid ay) yo Sumis 381y oY) ‘4702 10°2Z U0
“Jo)eW SIY) Ul J0JenIqry 2[0S oy} sk (PaInay)

ewreys edoo(q sonsn( S\ 91q.uoH jurtodde o3 pasesrd
sem Y[ JO Hno) YSIH 9]q,U0H oY ‘€Z0T'CT1'0T U0
‘A[rennau Jopew ay) djeslpn(pe o) [eunquiy, [eniqrly

mau jo juounuiodde pue [eunquy, [eniqry snoiadid jo
UOT)RUTUIIY) [BWIO) IOJ TY[O I8 1no) YSIH 9[q.U0H
oYy 210joq uonnpRd uoneniqry juesaid oy poy [gd

Aemrey UIYLION
— SNSIIA — r9d

— UMY
(1930w

393foag anduner)

donsn( S| 10Jen1qIy ‘Juawngre mdunep (220730 €L (CININOD)
910§ 9[q,UOH — [euy 1oy Surpuad JSQIIU] IeQU UOI}0dS PEqRIjEZ — MOUNONT Ul AeM[Tey UISYION (L) d'IN°O - 19
10JeN)IQIY 9[0S Ay [, ST 19w oY, [ 4+ 91010 G¢'G Sy | JO 109f01d oY) 03 pajefar st ndsIp oy : JOLIQ UI S)IB] €702 SuIpadoag uoneniqay | 9
B[00 d'd £q pOXy Udaq Sey djep IoYIINng
ou 21ep [[13 pue Surpuad (s SI JoPeW Y[ [Yyme[un
Suoim st 'O 4'd’d £q rgg isureSe pasodwr ouy oy pue
JOV pung juopraoid jo uoisiaoxd Aue pokoqosip IoAdu
sey (gg ey poprwuqns sey [gg Suliesy pres oy uf
"YT0T'TO'1T PU® $20T'T0CI ‘20T 10°L1 ‘€T0TTI'LT UO
49 preay eeyoy “O'dd'd ‘ysurs rewnyy Lely I —
JOUOISSIWWO)) PUn,j JUSPIAOIJ JUBISISSY oY} ‘A[SUIPIOIDY
‘rgg o3 Sureay jo Aunyioddo ue Jurarg
Aq pue sie[noIrd ejusuniedop oY) UOTJBIOPISUOD OJUI
Sunye) 19)Je 19pI0 YsoJ € ssed 0} ejey[0Y IOUOISSIUWOo))
pun, JUOPIAOI] JUBISISSY ) 0} J9}JBW Y} PIYIWIAI OS[R
LIDD 91 “€20T'90" [T PAYEP 10PIQ) Ples oy A "ZS61 1OV
UOISIAOIJ SNOQUB[[IISIJA| PUE pun,f JudpIAold sadkojdwyg
JO gy uonoag Iopun ofewep Se -/[6LCH99'sY Aed
0} pajoaIIp sem ([gg Mmou) INNGH UleIoUM BIe[0]
IOUOISSTWWO)) pun, JUOPIAOI] JUBISISSY Y} Aq panssi ‘BR[O
9107°20°ST PaIEp JopIQ 2y} opise Sumas £q Jo pasodsip ‘0" “TIPUOISSTIWO0))
sem Jopew oy (I[DD) ©ILN[OY ‘[eunquy [emsnpuy pun, JudpPIA0A] “NISSY
JUSWIUIDAOD) [BIIUD)) Y} JO €207 90" [Z PAIEP JOpIQ U A o — SNSJIIA —
BR[O 10V pres o) Jo (A)y 1 (INNGd dMYMs1d) rgq
Q01O Ad [euoISoy s/ ofewep dA0QE SPIEMO} -/T6LCH99'SY Msodop 03 — udIM)Ig
(4®0) ‘fuoyny 444 910T'C0'ST Pa1EP 19PI0 pIA PadaIIp uteSe ele[0Y ‘0Y
[-IUOISSIUIWIOY) pun,j | 9y Aq paxy uoaq sey DddV oyl Sulieay [eI10AdS 10V -/SLL'60°96 Sul[[elo) (9102 30 60
JUSPIAOIJ [RUOISOY | o3ep ou jey Ioye pue I0] TSET ‘OV SUOISIAOIJ “OSIA 2 punj JuopIAoIig — Add oN [eaddy :'Joy)
Y3uIS | $70TCO 1T uo preay seafordurg ayy Jo (O)L pue (g)] UONIAS Iopun wWield Jone pung | ST
Tewny] Aely IA | 1se[ Ssem 1opew oYL [ SYRT 60°96SY | 2Sewep e apewr sey ejey[0Y ‘O DAV : JoLIq uI s)oeq . €702 JudpIr0ag sddkojdwy
(sy up juduR)
ase) Y, PIA[oAU] uIWwo) *ON
J10jog Surpudg JO sme)g JudsAIg junowry sae[nanaeq Jo aedx s[reaq dse) ‘IS

(P93e)S ISIMIIY)IO 1YM pue eyep daeys 3dadxd ‘syyje] saadny ueipuy ul s)unowe [[y)

sjuLduIdje])s jenueuly 3Yj) Jo ped DUIULIO) SI)OL




“epnore) je uno) Y3y
9[q,UOH 9y} 210§9q €Z0T'TI'61 PRIep IPIQ oY) Isutese
uonnoJ I 1udsaxd oy po[y sey rgg ‘posdud3e Surog .

‘uonrenuuerddns jo o3e ay) puope
10U S90P 9y JI JUSWIAILISUIAI JO J)Bp dU) 0] UOIBUIULID) JO
9Jep o) WOIJ JJousq pue saSem Yoeq [[NJ YHIM UBUDIOM
oy} 9JeISUIOL 0} PP sem [dg JO judwdFeuew oy}
pue Me[ Ul peq pue paynsnfun sem [esoyn unie] Lys Jo
UOTJBUTILIY) 9y} SULIOPISUOD IOPIQ [euly e passed [euog
1S90 [eunqul [ersnpu ISIL] Yl ‘€70TTI6I UO e

‘TeSuog 1s9M ‘Teunqriy,
JeLnsnpuy JSI] 0) paldjsuer) A[Ise] pue "g'A\ JO JA0D
‘JOUOISSIWUWO)) INOQeT] 0) PALIQJSULI) Sem IdJew L e

“d°M JO 180D ‘AI812100g

"[esOyD unJIey, LIy °g
‘Te3udg ISIAN JO Ne)S [

THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

Lndo(q oy 210J0q 1007 €0'ST PaIep 19T jure[dwos e —SnsIIA — r9d
‘Surreoy POy [esOYD UnIe] LYS JY) UOTJBUILLID) pTes ) Jsuredy udIMPg

10J 1N0D) 9]q UOH "PAIRUIUIR) SeM [BSOUD) UNIB] LIYS JO OIAIdS oU) ‘rgq
“(oprs aefoddy) 9} JO ISI'T osne)y JO 000T°S0°90 payep oonou & Ag 9661°L0'80 WOl PT0T 30 68LS "'V'd'M
B)INO[ED) I8 1IN0D) ay ur Sureadde Joreradp Anuen),, jo 1sod oy ur sokojdwe Arerodwo) se (1313 BIA AIIAIIS)
Y31y 219, UoH YL, j0U ST JopeW AT | Jopew 201A1S | poyutodde sem [esoyn unie] LIYS dUQ : JOLIQ UI SJOBY 20T uonnadg A

“1dDD Jo

swre[d ay) pasoddo rgg ‘wns papiemy [ediourd oy uo

jsexdyur preme jsod oyy 10§ [gg IsureSe 9se)) UOHNIIXY

pauonuaw 2A0qe Y} SunsAUOd SI TdDD APUSSAd e
20T 0°0C parep rad
pIemy uonenIqry oy} parjdwos pey (ggq oWnNuedw oY} U « — SNSIIA —
"1dDD £q Pa[y ose) uonndoxy ‘PN djBALId
pauonuaw d9A0qe A} Sunsauod mou pue pareadde rgg . JUIqUIO)) SIUBI[NSUO))
'€20T°S0°0T parep UIM)Ig
"UOISIAI(] plemy uoneniqly [euy oy Surolojud Ioj [gg isurede €207 J0 0Ly 'ON D'
[erorowro)) “(aprg ase)) uonnoaxy juasard ayy pajy TdDD ‘€TOTI1°91 UO S70¢
“UOISIAL(] [BIDIOWIOY) | [EUISLI)) BINOE)) 1B ‘rdd pue JO 6ST "ON NOD-D4
‘(ap1S reurduQ) | 1Mo ySiy 91q,uoy TdDD 03 unowe dwos JuIMO[[e €707 SO'0C UO pieme (19w uoNE.NIqIY
B)INOTE)) JB 1IN0D) oYy Aq paxy 2q 0} uoneniqry [eurj e passed (painoy) Seq rewny yluey 193[0aq uoqen)
YSTH 919, U0H YL JOA ST Io1BW AU T | SYNET [Z'ZH Sy |oonsnf — 10jeniqly 9[0S PoauIed] Y[ : JOLIq Ul S}Oe] .« €207 Ise) uonnNIIXY
(*sy up) JUIUR)
ENJO LN pPIA[oAU] uIWWo))
3.10Jog Surpudg Jo sme)s Judsalg junowry sae[nanIed Jo aeax s[reaq ase)d

(PI3.)S ISIMIIY)IO 1YM pue eyep daeys 3dadxa ‘syyjer s9adny ueipuy ur s)unowe [[y)

4
8

Y
7

<
-
<|
x|
|
o|
™

sjuduIAje)S Jenueulj 3Yyj) Jo jed DUIuLIO) S9JON]




5 ve [ejoL,
<
\ ¢ e wnio,] 1o Ajuoyiny oy Auy g
o
-0 ¢ [eunqu [eNIGIY [y
SLINOD) JaMOT] €
S 8
Wy
S 0l sunoD YBIH | g
S
W_ 1 BIpU] JO 3an0)) dwardng ‘1
W Surpuaq sase)) Jo Jaquiny [BIo], [eunqLi], / WNIo /31n0)) 3y} Jo dwieN | ‘oN ‘IS
S
M (STOT'€0°I€ NO SV) rdd A0 SASVD TVOAT ONIANAd A0 YAIINNN TVLOL :'dNS
S
=
<)
W ‘Ajrenaedunr 29 Ajxodoxd andsip Kemiey [enud)
n_\lu oy} ayeorpnlpe 0} 103enIqly ue se uosiod juapuadopur ue Iseq — SNSIIA — rdd
M Jo yusunurodde ojerpowrwur 103 110D Y31 eujed 9]q UOH UMY
S 210J9q (g9 Aq po[y uddq sey uonndd juoesaid oyj
a ed %81®) $T0T
w edoyg1® |uonesuadwo) snid a101) €8°8°'SY SI g JO sjunowe JO 6] "ON ase)) 1sonbay
n..n..u uonesuadwo)) |anp 18103 oY) Avd 01 PI[IR] ABM[IEY [RNUI)) ISR AJBP [N (Kemyrey renuo)
~ Jeyrg ‘ewed e uno) | Suweoy 1oy Sutpuad |  snid 2101y |Inq 309f01d o parordwods rgg ‘Aemyrey [enua) jseq jo jseq Jo j0elo1g yepuen)
W YSIH 9[q,UOH oYL, StIopew oy [, €8'8°SYd 109[014 epuen 0} PIJE[AI SI 9SLO SIYT, : JOLIQ UI $)IE] S70T uonnad uoneniq.ly [ *0¢
<
= “PaAjOAUL
W sem epysny 210ym 300foxd oyy 03 spredar ym DALIN JO rad
x S[11q oy} [e pred Apearje sey pue uoneniqry siy) oy Aured ‘uoneiodio)
E B joU SI rgd eyl 108] 2y} Jnoqe 3urjels 10jeniqry oS jumdopasdq
M o 21030q uonedrddy ue papruqns pue pareadde rgg requiy, andiuepy |
S ‘SASYAN 2y} Iapun soje)§ Iseq YMOoN Je sa3pLiq 29 peol — SNSJIA —
m Jo juowdoraadp 10} YJ( Jo uoneredard 1oy juensuo)) ‘PIT 1A (1) S1duISuy
I Se JIOM IOy} 10J SYeT £9°L8'SY JO S[[Iq jo juowked Supnsuo) vlysny
M uou I10j DALIN IsuteSe uoneniqry SIy} po[y epysny — UdIM)dg
w ‘s3urpasoold uoneniqie Juasald ay) ur Z'oN Juspuodsoy
= "0Jed0APY ‘Y3urg se pappe ueoq seyq [dd [7z0T JO 9SHI "ON UOnndg (SasyaN
ysowrey I pauted [ -Sunreay 1oy Surpuad 1SIU] + uoneniqry ur] R Jo 1uno) YySiy 1y 9[q,Uo0H ay} Japun 333f0ag)
—101enIqIy 9]0§ Sy L, st1oyew oYL, | SR #9°L8'SY | Aq passed $Z0T'C0"L0 PAIep JOPIQ Uk A : JoLIq Ul S)oey y70t 3urpaddo.ld uoneIqIy [ 61
('sy uy) JuAWI))
ase) Ay, pasjoauy udwWuwo)) UN
2.10J0g SwIpudg Jo sme)q JuasaIg junowy sremonIeg Jo aeax s[Ie)d( Ase) ‘IS

(P93e)S ISIMIIY)IO 1YM pue eyep daeys 3dadxd ‘syyje] saadny ueipuy ul s)unowe [[y)

sjuLduIdje])s jenueuly 3Yj) Jo ped DUIULIO) SI)OL




4
AN

THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

44 Disclosure Regarding analytical ratios:

31st 31st % Reason
Ratio Numerator Denominator | March | March Variaonce for
2025 2024 >25%
Current Ratio (in times) Current Assets .Cur.r?I.lt 1.43 1.40 2.59% -
Liabilities
Debt-equity ratio (in times) Total Debt Sharehqlder S 0.26 0.29 -10.38% -
Equity
Debt service coverage ratio (in times) -
(Net Profit + Depreciation + Interest on Earnings Due to
long term loans) / Total amount of interest| available for Debt Service 0.10 0.07 45.24% | increase
& principal of long term loan payable or| debt service in profit
paid during the year.
aI\IftZtr f;ig:s_ Average Due to
Return on equity ratio (%) Preference Shareholder’s | 25.32% | 17.07% | 48.30% | increase
Dividend (ifany)|  C4U® in profit
Inventory turnover ratio (in times) Revenue ‘from Average 5.49 5.87 -6.45% -
Operation Inventory
2
Trade receivables turnover ratio (in times) | Net Credit Sales Accounts 7.00 11.32 | -38.17% in
Receivable
revenue
. Average
Trade payables turnover ratio (times) Net Credit Sundry 13.09 12.33 6.16% -
Purchases .
Creditors
Revenue from Average dle?:rzrs)e
Net capital turnover ratio (%) . Working 88.24% | 142.71% | -38.17% .
Operation . in
Capital
revenue
Net Profit after Revenue from dle)cl:lri::s)e
Net profit ratio (%) tax operation/Net | 16.74% | 8.25% | 102.95% i
Sales
revenue
. . Due to
Return on capital employed (%) . Earning before Capital 14.51% | 11.10% | 30.74% | increase
interest and taxes | Employed .
in profit
Due to
Return on investment (%) Net Prt(;f;t after Total Assets 3.69% 2.67% 38.03% | increase
in profit

45 The Property Plant and Equipment includes items, which are very old and have outlived their useful lives.
Such assets have been fully depreciated in the books of accounts. During 2024-25 Company identified such
items of Rs.49.35 Lakhs (Previous Year 2023-24 - NIL) (Prime cost) and disposed as scrap. The Company
is in process to identify further such items which have outlives their useful lives for scrapping / writing-off.
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THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

46

47

48

49

50

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Trade Receivable — non-current assets of Rs.38.98 Lakhs (31 March 2024 :Rs.38.98 Lakhs) represents
amount due from Bharat Heavy Electrical Ltd (BHEL) for Lakwa Project, which was closed in 2009-10
and Other current financial assets includes Retention Deposit Rs. 42.29 Lakhs (31 March 2024 :Rs. 42.29
Lakhs) and Security Deposit Rs.37.49 Lakhs (31 March 2024 :Rs.37.49 Lakhs) relating to above work.
The amount has been considered as good because of corresponding aggregate liability of Rs.126.46 Lakhs
(31 March 2024 : Rs.126.46 Lakhs) lying in the books against the contractor M/S Frontier Engieering Co.
For Lakwa Project company has already provided Rs. 38.98 Lakhs (31 March 2024 :Rs.38.98 Lakhs) with
respect to amount due from Bharat Heavy Electrical Ltd (BHEL).

Other Financial Assets — Current includes amounts Rs.45.41 Lakhs (31 March 2024- Rs.45.41 Lakhs) as
Earnest Money and Other deposits, which are very old against which an amount of Rs.40.78 Lakhs (31
March 2024- Rs.40.78 Lakhs) is payable and is included in Other financial liabilities - Current, which
have not been confirmed by the respected parties, however company has considered it as good because of
corresponding liabilities.

Inventories for the year includes old and unused stocks Rs 119.85 Lakhs in Raw Material, Rs 2.78 Lakhs
in Stores Spares and Cosumables which are lying for more than 8 years, and Rs 8.18 Lakhs in Loose Tools,
which are lying for more than 10 years and accumulated provision of Rs.58.46 Lakhs against the same has
been made in the accounts till the reporting period.

Other Financial Assets — Current includes amount deposited as advance to the following parties which are
very old and the Company considered the same as current in nature.

SL. No. | Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
1 Sales Tax Recoverable from client-BBUNL 15.76 15.76

2 Salary Advance 10.45 10.45
Total 26.21 26.21

Sales Tax Recoverable from client-BBUNL represent amount deposited against appeals made before Joint
commissioner of Commercial taxes Bihar for the year 2010-11 and 2011-12.

Other Current Assets includes amounts deposited as advance to the following parties for which no
confirmation is available and are very old. The Company considers the same as good and realizable/
adjustable and hence considered the same to be current in nature.

SL. No. Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
1 Family Pension Scheme- Contract Labour 15.02 15.02

2 Workmen'’s Providend Institution 6.82 6.82
Total 21.84 21.84
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THE BRAITHWAITE BURN AND JESSOP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

51 Trade Payables — Non current and other liabilities non current includes following amounts against which
goods and services were received in earlier years, and the Company is in the process of reconciling the
same against other financial assets. However, Company considered the same as payable in long term and
Non current in nature:

SL. No. Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
1 Liabilities A/C-on completed contracts 1493.35 1493.35
2 Liabilities A/C 698.01 698.01
3 GOI Payable A/c - BBVL Liqud. & Interest 182.90 182.90
4 GOI P/E Payable (SUBS.) - BWEL 69.60 69.60
5 Interest on P/E Fund Payable to Subs. 357.65 357.65
6 Sundry Creditors - Misc. ( Subsidairy) 2.33 2.33
7 IT Suspance (Others) (194) Payable - OCL 1.04 1.04
8 Sale Tax Payable -OCL 1.54 1.54
9 Interest payable to BBCC 2.37 2.37
10 Old Un-Reconciled Balance 6.36 6.36

Total 2815.15 2815.15

52 Physical verification of Inventories of Raw materials, stores, Consumables etc. have been carried out at
the year end and discrepancies between physical and book stock, if any, not being significant, have been
properly dealt with in the Books of Accounts during the year.

53 There is an uncontested Income-tax demand of Rs.31.85 Lakhs (31 March 2024 :Rs.15.08 Lakhs )as per the
official portal of the Income-tax Department for which the company does not have appropriate documents
or evidences for rebuttal. However, the company is of the opinion that no amounts are outstanding to
be paid, which have not been contested and the amounts as displayed in the Income-tax portal may be
erroneous. The Company will take effort in getting the same rectified. Accordingly, no liability has been
provided for.

54 Balances of some of the trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances etc. incorporated in the books
as per balances appearing in the relevant subsidiary records, are subject to confirmation and reconcialiation
from the respective parties and consequential adjustments arising from reconciliation, if any. The Company
however is of the view that there will be no material discrepancies in this regard.
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As per sanction of Govt.of India (GOI) in 2015, BBJ (Transferor company) amalgamated with BBUNL
(Transferee company) under section 391(2) read with section 394 of the companies Act 1956. Before
amalgamation The Braithwaite Burn & Jessop Construction Co Ltd (BBJ) was a subsidiary of Bharat Bhari
Udyog Nigam Ltd (BBUNL). ROC, by its order dated 18th Nov’2015 conveyed approval for change of
name of the Company from Bharat Bhari Udyog Nigam Ltd (BBUNL) to The Braithwaite Burn & Jessop
Construction Co Ltd (BBJ), resultant from such amalgamation. Earlier BBUNL had subsidiaries in names
Bharat Process and Mechanical Engineering Ltd (BPMEL), Burn Standard & Co Ltd (BSCL), Braithwaite
& Co Ltd, Bharat Wagon and Engineering Ltd (BWEL), Jessop & Co Ltd.(JCL), Lagan Jute Machinery
Co Ltd and The Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction Co Ltd (BBJ). Braithwaite & Co Ltd, BSCL
and BWEL were assigned to Railways, Lagan Jute Machinery Co Ltd and Jessop & Co. were disinvested,
BPMEL is under Liquidation.

Other Financial assets (Current) included Loans of Rs.5932.96 Lakhs (31 March 2024 :Rs.5932.96 Lakhs)
in BPMEL, Rs.656.03 Lakhs (31 March 2024 :Rs.656.03 Lakhs) in Weighbird India Limited (subsidiary
of BPMEL) and Rs.207.25 Lakhs (31 March 2024 :Rs.207.25 Lakhs) in Bharat Wagon and Engineering
Company Ltd (earstwhile subsidiary) with interest receivable, Rs.33,656.29 Lakhs from BPMEL (31 March
2024 :Rs.33,656.29 Lakhs), Rs.350.26 Lakhs from WIL (31 March 2024 :Rs.350.26 Lakhs) are due as at
the reporting date. Said loan were given by GOI through BBUNL to its subsidiaries BPMEL, WIL and
BWEL for their different financial requirements. On date BPMEL under liquidation, WIL winded up (post
liquidation) and BWEL was assigned to Railways. Notwithstanding the status of above entities, such loans
are carried at cost.

The Company has investments of Rs.486.30 Lakhs (31 March 2024 :Rs.486.30 Lakhs) in Bharat Process
and Mechanical Engineers Limited (BPMEL), Rs2558.01 Lakhs (31 March 2024 :Rs.2558.01 Lakhs) in
Jessop & Co Ltd (JCL), earstwhile subsidiaries of BBUNL, are under liquidation and Rs.42.20 Lakhs (31
March 2024 :Rs.42.20 Lakhs) in Lagan Jute Machinery Co Ltd, (earstwhile subsidiaries of BBUNL) at the
reporting date. Notwithstanding the status of the above entities, such investments are carried at cost.

The company has not considered any interest accrued for current financial year on loans of Rs. 6,588.99
Lakhs granted to Bharat Process and Mechanical Engineers Ltd. (‘BPMEL’) and Weighbird India Ltd.
(‘WIL) in view of non-recoverability thereof as the aforesaid subsidiaries are under liquidation.

The company has not considered any interest payable for current financial year on loans of Rs.6588.99
Lakhs taken from the Government of India, which was used for granting loans to the aforesaid subsidiaries,
because of non recoverability. Had the interest payable on such loans been provided for the finance cost
for the current financial year would have been higher by Rs. 2153.03 Lakhs (31 March 2024 :Rs.2160.39
Lakhs) and the amounts payable to the Government of India towards the interest would have been higher
by Rs.27070.09 (31 March 2024 :Rs. 24917.06 Lakhs). Accordingly, the profit for the current financial year
would have been lower by Rs.2153.03 Lakhs, (31 March 2024 :Rs. 2160.29 Lakhs).
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)
Consequent to clearance of GOI vide letter No.17(12)/2000-PE.III dated 26.08.2003 and in terms of the
“Share Purchase Agreement” executed by and amongst the Company, Jessop & Co. Ltd. (Jessop) and Indo-
Wagon Engineering Ltd., the Company sold/transferred 6,81,34,428 equity shares of Jessop & Co. (i.e.
72%) for a consideration of Rs. 1818.00 Lakhs to Indo-Wagon Engineering Ltd. on 29.08.2003 and entire
sale proceeds of Rs. 1818.00 Lakhs as realised had been transferred to Government of India.

During the year 2005-06, Jessop & Co. Ltd applied to Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction
(BIFR) for de-rating (reducing) the nominal value of its equity shares from Rs.10 to Re.l. BIFR vide
directions issued on 31.08.2005 permitted Jessop & Co. Ltd. to proceed with reduction of their equity share
capital in terms of the provisions under Sections 100, 101, 102 & 103 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company preferred an appeal under Section 25 of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions)
Act, 1985 before the Appellate Authority for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (AAIFR) against the
aforesaid direction of BIFR. The Company also filed applications impleading itself in two other appeals
preferred before AAIFR against the aforesaid direction of BIFR. While one of the appeals was earlier
withdrawn, AAIFR vide Order dated 28.02.2008 dismissed the appeal preferred by the Company as well
as the other appeal.

The Company has filed a writ petition in the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta challenging AAIFR’s Order,
which is pending disposal as on date. The Company has also referred the disputes to arbitration as provided
in the “Shareholders Agreement” entered into by it with Indo-Wagon Engineering Ltd. (strategic partner in
Jessop) on 29.08.2003. The resultant accounting effect will be considered in the books of account after final
adjudication complying with the Accounting Standards and Government directives.

In the financial year 2005-06, an amount of Rs. 82.72 Lakhs was refunded to Jessop & Co. Ltd. on account
of ‘Service Charges’ recovered in respect of the period October 2001 to August 2003. The Company has
filed a suit for recovery of the amount together with interest and cost, which is pending disposal as on date.

During financial year 2008-09, the Company had entered into a consortium arrangement under the name
and style of “BCD INGAB Consortium” for construction of Neighbourhood Unit at Bikele township in
the Republic of Gabon. The value of services to be rendered by the Company (as per agreement with the
consortium partner) was aggregated and limited to Rs. 2.75 crores, excluding actual expenses incurred
on various heads such as on bank guarantee charges, travelling, establishment expenses, etc. As part of
its defined roles & responsibilities, the Company has provided a performance bank guarantee of US$
725,000 (5% of project order value) in favour of Government of Gabon against Mobilisation Advance
of an equivalent amount released to the Consortium. The Company has received margin money for such
guarantee (validity period since expired) from the Consortium.

The progress in execution of the project not being satisfactory, the Company decided to seek an honourable
exit there from, which is being pursued. In terms of extant agreement, the Company is not liable to
compensate the Consortium partner in the event of any loss and/or deficit arising out of the project.

An Arbitration proceeding between BBJ and CCPL (Consortium Partner) was initiated before Hon’ble
Arbitrator, appointed by Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta to resolve the various claim raised by both the
parties against each other for the payment made from Consortium along with interest.
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Award of the Arbitration proceedings, has been received in 2023-24 and advised BBJ to refund Rs. 3.64
Crore, the equivalent INR of US$ 7,25,000 to the consortium and in turn to CCPL and ordered BBJ to
retain the accumulated interest on the said amount. The Company has refunded the same as per direction
of Hon’ble High Court to BCD INGAB Consortium. However, CCPL filed an execution suit claiming post
award interest which is pending before Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta.

Bhagirathi Bridge Construction Company Limited (BBCCL), Joint Venture of BBJ and Bharat Process
and Mechanical Engineers Ltd (BPMEL), subsidiary of earstwhile BBUNL are defunct on date as BPMEL
is under liquidation since 2004 and BBCCL substratum lost after completion of the purpose for which
it was incorporated in 1971. As on date there is no business activites in both the companies and due to
non availability of financial statements of defunct JV / subsidiary, consolidated financial statement is not
prepared.

As per IND AS 116, there is no Operating Lease exist during the year and hence no disclosure is required
in this respect.

Other Statutory Information:

1) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any Benami property.
ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond
the statutory period.
iv) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
v) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company
shall:
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a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

vi) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

vii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any lender.

viii) The Company is maintaining proper books of accounts in electronic mode and these books of accounts
are accessible in India at all times and the back up of books and accounts has been kept in servers

physically located in India on a daily basis.

66 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged, whenever necessary.

The accompanying notes are an integral part
statements.

As per our report of even date
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